
Novem 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

North Liberty City Council 
Regular Session 

May 14, 2019 
 



 

 
 

City Administrator Memo 
 



City Council Memo 
for May 14, 2019 
from the desk of Ryan C. Heiar 

 

Ryan C. Heiar, City Administrator 
rheiar@northlibertyiowa.org • office (319) 626-5700 • fax (319) 626-3288 • cell (319) 541-8404 

published May 9, 2019 •page 1 
 

Meetings & Events 

Tuesday, May 14 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council  

Monday, May 20 at 7:00p.m. 
Library Board 

Tuesday, May 28 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council  

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and included in the 
packet: 

 City Council Minutes (04/23/19) 
 Claims 
 Liquor Licenses 

o Mosley’s 
o Jimmy Jack’s 
o Rusciano’s 

 Pay Application #4, Ranshaw House Project, Wolfe Contracting;  
$36,178.80  

 Pay Application #1, Main Street Improvements, Schrader Group;  
$185,665.77  

 Change Order #1, Main Street Improvements, Schrader Group;  
$2,350.00  

 Change Order #5, Kansas Avenue (RISE) Project, Streb  
Construction; $10,867.00  

 Pay Application #10, Kansas Avenue (RISE) Project, Streb  
Construction; $378,410.16  

 Change Order #1, Penn & Front Corridor Improvements, All  
American Concrete; $2,352.97  

 Pay Application #2, Penn & Front Corridor Improvements, All  
American Concrete; $389,326.51  

 Pay Application #10, Hwy 965, Phase 3, Streb Construction;  
$4,624.00  
 

Site Plan: Learning Begins Child Care Development Center 
This request of Penn Street Group LLC is to approve a day care 
commercial site plan located on Community Drive west of Ranshaw 
Way/965. The site layout is satisfactory with ample parking and good 
vehicular circulation. Landscape planning is complete. The building is a 
clean modern design that meets general design standards.  

A number of code and aesthetic issues have been addressed by the 
applicant during the staff review process, including: 

 Building façade improvements 



published May 9, 2019 •page 2 
 

 Pedestrian access requirements  
 Pedestrian feature added 
 Parking lot screening enhanced 

Staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the site plan. 

Community Identity Project: deNovo & Shive Hattery Proposal 
In February of 2018 the City Council held a strategic planning and goal setting session, establishing goals 
for 2018-2020.  One of the approved goals was “Strategic Plan, Community Identity and Visioning 
Planning,” which is very broad and has been difficult to define.   

Communications Director Nick Bergus has been tasked to develop a scope for a community 
visioning/identity type project.  Nick has been working with Jenifer Neumann of deNovo and Emily Naylor 
from Shive Hattery’s Des Moines office and that work has resulted in the included proposal and scope of 
work.  On Tuesday, the Council will be asked to discuss this proposal and consider moving forward with a 
community identity project. 

Staff believes this project can bring together stakeholders and community members to identify North 
Liberty’s “North Star” — who we are at our core and what we aspire to be (deNovo expresses this as 
working to discover how to complete this sentence: “North Liberty is the        for        .”). This becomes a 
touchstone for our community, our work and our priorities. This project also begins to integrate ways to 
express those values and aspirations in a cohesive way throughout the community — wayfinding, 
branding, and community identity.  Moreover, this project has the potential to bring the community 
together to build a cohesive community identity and promise, and lead to other successes including more 
participation in the community survey and volunteer opportunities, as well as awareness of city services, 
resources, boards and commission and more.  

Zoning Ordinance Correction 
This amendment corrects a previous ordinance that inadvertently left out unchanged sections of the code 
(169.06 Location of Accessory Building and Uses & 171.03 Temporary Uses), effectively deleting these 
laws. This amendment does not propose any new or 
modified provisions; rather it simply adds back to the 
code what was previously and unintentionally deleted. 

Annexation: 
This is a single-lot voluntary annexation plus the 
adjoining half-street right-of-way, approximately 2.69 
acres, generally located on the west side of Jones 
Boulevard and north of Forevergreen Road. There is 
one private home within the annexation area. This 
annexation is requested by the owners in part because 
they wish to connect to and be served by City utilities. 
The lot is part of a rural subdivision that has become 
almost surrounded by the North Liberty corporate 
boundaries, and is part of a larger area within which 
the City is actively promoting annexation in part to 
minimize or eliminate the existing near-island of 
unincorporated land. One public road is adjacent to 
this annexation area, South Jones Boulevard, and the 



published May 9, 2019 •page 3 
 

half-street is included in this annexation request. It should be noted that all of Jones Boulevard in this 
area has been treated as if it has been a part of North Liberty for many years, and the City completely 
reconstructed two miles of Jones Boulevard from a seal-coat surface with ditches to concrete with storm 
sewers and an urban cross section several years ago. This lot is already served with City sanitary sewer, 
and will be served with City water and all other typical City services upon annexation, including street 
maintenance (already managed by the City), police, fire, garbage pickup, building inspections and 
enforcement, and others. 

Trail Network Improvements: 
The 2019 Trail Network Project consists of three trail connection projects along Cherry Street, Zeller 
Street and Sadler Drive (see enclosed map). The agenda includes resolutions approving the plans and 
specifications and a temporary construction easement with US Bank. Staff recommends approval of both 
resolutions.  

Trustee Agent Agreements 
Traditionally, the City has contracted with Bankers Trust to manage it principal and interest payments for 
all of its bonds.  Bankers Trust has recently sold this piece of its business to UMB Bank, requiring the City 
to consent. Staff has worked with bond counsel on this issue and recommends approval of the resolution 
assigning the agreements to UMB Bank. 

Utility Easement: Dog Park 
Staff recommends approval of a 15’ utility easement for Linn County REC along the frontage of the new 
dog park property on North Liberty Road.  The easement will not impact the intended use of the park. 

Water Quality Grant: 
Last year, in conjunction with the City of Coralville, the City applied for and was awarded grant funding for 
water quality aspects of the Ranshaw Way/Coralridge Avenue project, south of Forevergreen Road.  
North Liberty was awarded $12,500.  As a result of the projecting extending into 2019, both City Councils 
are being asked to approve a resolution requesting an extension of the grant.  Staff recommends 
approval.  

Speed Limits: Kansas Avenue 
Staff is recommending that the current 35mph speed limit on Kansas Avenue, north of the roundabout, be 
extended south to the intersection of Forevergreen Road.  The previous speed limit, prior to the 
improvements and when the road was gravel, was 55 mph. 

City Council Vacancy: Appointment versus Election 
Included in your packet is a memo from City Attorney Grant Lientz outlining options the City Council has 
regarding the soon-to-be vacant City Council seat.  As soon as the Council provides direction, staff will 
take the appropriate steps so that the vacancy can be filled as soon as possible. 



 

 
 

Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2019                   Updated: May 9, 2019 5:00 p.m. 
Page: 1 
 
 
, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

 
Agenda 

North Liberty City Council 
May 14, 2019 

Regular Session 
6:30 p.m. 

City Council Chambers  
1 Quail Creek Circle 

 
1. Call to order   

 
2. Roll call 

 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session, April 23, 2019 
B. Claims 
C. Liquor License Renewal, Mosley’s  
D. Liquor License Update (Full liquor from Beer/Wine), Jimmy Jack’s Rib Shack 
E. Liquor License Update (Outdoor Service), Rusciano’s Authentic Taste of Napoli 
F. Ranshaw House Project, Pay Application Number 4, Wolfe Contracting, Inc., $36,178.80 
G. Highway 965, Phase 3 Pay Application Number 10, Streb Construction Co., Inc., $4,624.00 
H. Penn and Front Street, Change Order Number 1, All American Concrete, Inc., $2,352.97 
I. Penn and Front Street, Pay Application Number 2, All American Concrete, Inc., $389,326.51 
J. Main Street, Change Order Number 1, Schrader Group, $2,350.00 
K. Main Street, Pay Application Number 1, Schrader Group, $185,665.77 
L. Kansas Avenue, Change Order Number 5, Streb Construction Co., Inc., $10,867.00 
M. Kansas Avenue, Pay Application Number 10, Streb Construction Co., Inc., $378,410.16 

 
5. Public Comment 

 
6. City Planner Report 

 
7. City Engineer Report  

 
8. City Attorney Report  

 
9. City Administrator Report  

 



City of North Liberty – 2019                   Updated: May 9, 2019 5:00 p.m. 
Page: 2 
 
 

10. Mayor Report 
A. Proclamation of Bike to Work Week 

 
11. Liberty Centre Day Care 

A. Staff and Commission recommendations 
B. Applicant presentation 
C. Resolution Number 2019-53, A Resolution approving the Development Site Plan for Lot 10, 

Liberty Centre – Part One, North Liberty, Iowa  
 

12. Community Visioning Project  
A. Discussion and possible action regarding proposal  

 
13. Zoning Code Amendment 

A. Public Hearing 
B. First consideration of Ordinance Number 2019-07, An Ordinance adding various sections of 

the North Liberty Code of Ordinances 
 
14. Annexation 

A. Public hearing regarding proposed annexation 
B. Resolution Number 2019-54, A Resolution approving annexation of certain property to the 

City of North Liberty, Iowa  
 

15. Trail Network Improvements Project  
A. Public Hearing regarding plans, specifications, etc.  
B. Resolution Number 2019-55, A Resolution finally approving and confirming plans, 

specifications, and estimate of cost for the Trail Network Improvements Project   
C. Resolution Number 2019-56, A Resolution approving the Temporary Construction Easement 

Agreement between U.S. Bank National Association and the City of North Liberty  
 

16. Assignment of Trustee Agent Agreements to UMB 
A. Resolution Number 2019-57, A Resolution consenting to assignment of Trustee Agent 

Agreements; Escrow Agent Agreements; and/or Paying Agent and Registrar and Transfer 
Agent Agreements 

 
17. Easement for Electrical Utility 

A. Resolution Number 2019-58, A Resolution approving the Easement for Electric Utility 
Agreement between Linn County Rural Electric Cooperative and the City of North Liberty  

 
18. Urban Water Quality Initiative Grant Extension 

A. Resolution Number 2019-59, A resolution approving Contract Amendment #1 for the Water 
Quality Initiative Grant Agreement for the Coral Ridge Avenue/ Ranshaw Way 
Reconstruction, Phase Two between the City of North Liberty, the City of Coralville and the 
Iowa Department of Agriculture and Land Stewardship 

 
19. Speed Limits 

A. Resolution Number 2019-60, A Resolution approving special speed limits in the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa  

 
20. Council Vacancy 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding upcoming Council vacancy 



City of North Liberty – 2019                   Updated: May 9, 2019 5:00 p.m. 
Page: 3 
 
 

 
21. Old Business 
 
22. New Business 

 
23. Adjournment 



 

 
 

Consent Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2019                    
Page: 1 
 
 
, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

 
Minutes (Not official until approved by the City Council) 

North Liberty City Council 
April 23, 2019 

Regular Session 
City Council Chambers  

1 Quail Creek Circle 
 

Call to order   
At 6:31 p.m., Mayor Terry Donahue called the April 23, 2019 Regular Session of the North Liberty 
City Council to order.  Councilors present: Jennifer Goings, RaQuishia Harrington, Chris Hoffman, 
Sarah Madsen, and Annie Pollock. 
 
Others present:  Ryan Heiar, Grant Lientz, Tracey Mulcahey, Kevin Trom, Dean Wheatley, Joel 
Miller, Stacey House and other interested parties.  

 
Approval of the Agenda 
Heiar moved, Pollock seconded to approve the agenda.  The vote was all ayes. Agenda approved.  
 
Consent Agenda 
Madsen moved, Harrington seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including the City Council 
Minutes from the Regular Session on April 9, 2019; the attached list of Claims; March Revenues; 
March Treasurer Report; the Liquor License Renewal for LD Express; the Liquor License Renewal 
for Liberty View Wine & Spirits; Phase I Water System Improvements Division I – Water Treatment 
Plant, Pay Application Number 27, Portzen Construction, Inc., $37,368.00; and the Phase I Water 
System Improvements Division I – Water Treatment Plant, Pay Application Number 28, Portzen 
Construction, Inc., $13,248.00.  The vote was all ayes. Consent agenda approved.  
 
Public Comment 
No public comment was offered.  
 
City Planner Report 
City Planner Dean Wheatley reported on the Population and Land Use Statistics and Transit report 
handouts he provided to Council.  Council discussed the report with Wheatley. 
 
City Engineer Report  
City Engineer Kevin Trom reported that the punch list for the Highway 965, Phase 3 project is about 
two-thirds complete.  The Kansas Avenue Project is still ahead of schedule for completion.  Work 
continues on the Penn and Front Street Project.  The contractor for the Main Street project is 
installing underground utilities.  The 2019 Trail Network Project final plans have been submitted 



City of North Liberty – 2019                    
Page: 2 
 
 

for staff review. The North Bend Drive Project has been delayed due to a utility conflict.  The 
Sanitary Sewer Upgrades Project Bid Package #3 preconstruction meeting will be held on Thursday. 
Council discussed the report with staff.  
 
City Attorney Report  
Heiar introduced City Attorney Grant Lientz.   
 
Assistant City Administrator Report  
Assistant City Administrator Tracey Mulcahey introduced Stacey House, who will assist with 
meetings this summer, and reported on her presentation to Iowa City Area Landlords.  
 
City Administrator Report  
City Administrator Ryan Heiar reported Saturday is Clean Up Day.  City employee clean-up day is on 
Thursday.  Heiar reported that the progress report for goals should be in next Council packet. 
 
Mayor Report 
Mayor Terry Donahue thanked Lucy Caskey for inviting him to speak to the Liberty High Student 
Senate.  He attended the Iowa City Optimists Club awards luncheon where Margo Maras, 
representing North Central Junior High was recognized.  He provided an update on the latest 
proposal for the updated property tax law.  
 
Assessment Resolution 
Heiar presented information on the assessment.  Pollock moved, Madsen seconded to approve 
Resolution Number 2019-51, A Resolution assessing snow removal fees owed to the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa to individual property taxes. The vote was: ayes – Hoffman, Pollock, Harrington, 
Madsen, Goings; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Audit Contract 
Mulcahey presented information on the audit proposals.  Council discussed the proposals.  
Harrington moved, Madsen seconded to approve Resolution Number 2019-52, A Resolution 
approving the Audit Agreement for City Audit Services for FY 19, FY 20, FY 21, FY 22 and FY 23 
between the City of North Liberty and BerganKDV, LLC.  The vote was: ayes – Madsen, Goings, 
Pollock, Harrington, Hoffman; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Old Business 
Councilor Hoffman presented updates on the Convention and Visitor’s Bureau including the Iowa 
Arena and declining hotel/motel tax revenue.  The Joint Emergency Communication Center is 
working on a data driven justice initiative which will allow for data sharing amongst organizations.  
Councilor Hoffman participated in the March reading madness.  He will be playing in the North 
Liberty Pantry golf outing next week.  
 
New Business 
Mayor Donahue reported on the 52317 feature on Moxie Solar and Councilor Hoffman.  He is 
attending the EMA meeting tomorrow night.  Councilor Goings’ upcoming vacancy was discussed. 
The consensus was to have an application process with appointment.  

 
Adjournment 
At 7:16 p.m., Mayor Donahue adjourned the meeting. 
 
 



City of North Liberty – 2019                    
Page: 3 
 
 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
By:  ____________________________________________ 
        Terry L. Donahue, Mayor   

   

Attest: 

 

       ___________________________________________ 
       Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 
 



License Application (
Applicant

Name of Applicant: Iowa Hickory LLC

Name of Business (DBA): Mosley's

Address of Premises: 125 E. Zeller St.

City
:

North Liberty Zip: 52317

State
:

IA

County: Johnson

Business 
Phone:

(319) 471-2577

Mailing 
Address:

125 E. Zeller St.

City
:

North Liberty Zip: 52317

)

Contact Person

Name
:

Sean Keller

Phone: (319) 471-2577 Email 
Address:

sean.keller7@gmail.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Limited Liability Company

Corporate ID Number: XXXXXXXXX Federal Employer ID 
#:

XXXXXXXXX

Insurance Company Information

Insurance Company: Society Insurance

Effective Date: 06/01/2019  

Expiration Date: 05/31/2020  

Classification
:

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Outdoor Service

Sunday Sales

Sean Keller

First Name: Sean Last Name: Keller

City: NORTH LIBERTY State: Iowa Zip: 52317

Position: Owner

% of Ownership: 52.95% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Matthew Swift

First Name: Matthew Last Name: Swift

City: Iowa City State: Iowa Zip: 52240

Position: Owner

% of Ownership: 47.05% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 LC0044512 



Policy Effective Date: 06/01/2019  Policy Expiration 
Date:

06/01/2020  

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective 
Date:

Outdoor Service Expiration 
Date:

Temp Transfer Effective 
Date:

Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 
Continuously:

Insurance Company: Society Insurance



 
 

      North Liberty Police Department 

                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 

March 14, 2019 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   Mosley’s 
    125 E. Zeller Street 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
   
Owners:  Sean Keller    (DOB: 1979)  

    Matthew Swift  (DOB: 1982) 
 
The North Liberty Police department does not have any documented contacts for the above 
owner or business that would affect their liquor license.   
 
I recommend the license be granted. 
 
Sergeant Chris Shine 
 
 

   



City of North Liberty
Alcoholic Beverage Permit 

Chapter 120 of the Municipal Code

Legal Name of Applicant:          

Name of Business (DBA):

Address of Business:

Business Phone & Email:

________________________________________________________________

City of North Liberty: 

The above referenced property is located within a zoning district that permits the sale or 
consumption of alcoholic beverage.

City Official         
__________________________________________________________________________

North Liberty Fire Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with International Fire Code. . 

Fire Inspector                            
__________________________________________________________________________

Johnson County Health Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with Johnson County Public Health 
requirements. 

Johnson County Public Health Official   
__________________________________________________________________________

State of Iowa ABD License: ____________________ North Liberty Permit: _____________License Expiration Date: _______________            

                                         

The Municipal Code requires approval from the following City and County Departments.

Iowa Hickory LLC
Mosley's
125 E. Zeller St. Units B & C-North Liberty IA

319-471-2577 sean.keller7@gmail.com

Tom Palmer
Digitally signed by Tom Palmer 
DN: cn=Tom Palmer, o=City of North Liberty, ou=Building Safety, 
email=tpalmer@ci.north-liberty.ia.us, c=US 
Date: 2019.03.04 07:58:40 -06'00'







Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection

Inspection Date: 4/29/2019 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)
Time In: 14:41 Time Out: 15:38

Authorized Date: Not Author By:

Occupancy: Mosley's
Occupancy ID: BROW03

Address: 125 E Zeller ST

North Liberty IA 52317

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.3

Fire Extinguishers

Fire Extinguisher Monthly Inspection - Initial & Date Tag

Status: FAILED & CORRECTED
Notes: Complete monthly inspections.

NFPA 10: Standard for Portable Fire Extinguishers, 2013 Edition, Section 7.2.1.2 Fire extinguishers and Class D extinguishing agents shall be visually 
inspected at intervals not exceeding 31 days. Documentation of the visual inspection shall be recorded on the backside of the inspection tag (Date & Initials) 
or on a log book.

Electrical Rooms / Electrical Wiring

Electrical Equipment - 3 Feet Clearance in Front of Panel

Status: FAIL
Notes: Kitchen, no storage in front of or below electrical panels.

605.3 Working space and clearance. A working space of not less than 30 inches in width, 36 inches in depth and 78 inches in height shall be provided in front 
of electrical service equipment. Where the electrical service equipment is wider than 30 inches, the working space shall be not less than the width of the 
equipment. Storage of materials shall not be located within the designated working space.

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Next Inspection Date: 05/29/2019 Reinspection

Page 1 of 7Printed on 04/29/19 at 15:42:23



Surge Protector - Proper Installation 

Status: FAIL
Notes: Near bar; remount surge protector.

605.4.1 Power tap design. Relocatable power taps shall be of the polarized or grounded type, equipped with overcurrent protection, and shall be listed in 
accordance with UL 1363. 605.4.2 Power supply. Relocatable power taps shall be directly connected to a permanently installed receptacle. 605.4.3 
Installation. Relocatable power tap cords shall not extend through walls, ceilings, floors, under doors or floor coverings, or be subject to environmental or 
physical damage.

Fire Alarm System

Manual Pull Station Accessible & Unobstructed

Status: FAIL
Notes: Near rear exit, Keep 3 feet clearance around manual pull station.

907.4.2.6 Unobstructed and unobscured. Manual fire alarm boxes shall be accessible, unobstructed, unobscured and visible at all times.

Kitchen Hood System

Kitchen Hood System Inspection- Current Bi-Annual Inspection Tag

Status: FAIL
Notes: Past due.

904.12.6.2 Extinguishing system service. Automatic fire-extinguishing systems shall be serviced at least every six months and after activation of the system. 
Inspection shall be by qualified individuals, and a certificate of inspection shall be forwarded to the fire code official upon completion.

Kitchen Hood and Duct Cleaned- Current Inspection Tag on Hood 

Status: FAIL
Notes: All three kitchen exhaust hoods are past due fo bi-annual hood cleaning.

609.3.3.1 Inspection. Hoods, grease-removal devices, fans, ducts and other appurtenances shall be inspected at intervals specified in Table 609.3.3.1 or as 
approved by the fire code official. Inspections shall be completed by qualified individuals.

Page 2 of 7Printed on 04/29/19 at 15:42:23



Kitchen Hood Drip Tray in Place

Status: FAIL
Notes: Rear hood, grease drip tray is missing.

2015 International Mechanical Code, Section 507.2.8.2 Filters shall be installed at an angle of not less than 45 degrees from the horizontal and shall be 
equipped with a drip tray beneath the lower edge of the filters.

Cooking Equipment with Casters in Approved Floor Mounted Restraining Device

Status: FAIL
Notes: Rear hood, gas range only has 1 wheel device. Need to add another floor mounted restraining device to the other rear 
caster wheel.

Section 609.4 Movement of new and existing cooking appliances with caster(s) under a Type I hood shall be limited by an approved floor mounted restraining 
device and flexible gas connector installed in accordance with the connector and appliance manufacturer’s instructions.

Page 3 of 7Printed on 04/29/19 at 15:42:23



Fire & Smoke Doors

Fire Doors Close Completly/Latch

Status: FAIL
Notes: Both fire doors do not completely close and latch. Adjust closer on both doors.

703.2.3 Door operation. Swinging fire doors shall close from the full-open position and latch automatically. The door closer shall exert enough force to close 
and latch the door from any partially open position.

Exit Access & Doors

Proper Door Locks and Latches

Status: FAIL
Notes: Install on main door so visible from the outside; THIS DOOR TO REMAIN UNLOCKED WHEN THIS SPACE IS 
OCCUPIED. The sign shall be in letters 1 inch high on a contrasting background

1010.1.9.3 Locks and latches. Locks and latches shall be permitted to prevent operation of doors where any of the following exist: 1. Places of detention or 
restraint. 2. In buildings in occupancy Group A having an occupant load of 300 or less, Groups B, F, M and S, and in places of religious worship, the main 
door or doors are permitted to be equipped with key-operated locking devices from the egress side provided: 2.1. The locking device is readily distinguishable 
as locked. 2.2. A readily visible durable sign is posted on the egress side on or adjacent to the door stating: THIS DOOR TO REMAIN UNLOCKED WHEN 
THIS SPACE IS OCCUPIED. The sign shall be in letters 1 inch high on a contrasting background. 2.3. The use of the key-operated locking device is 
revokable by the fire code official for due cause.

Means of Egress & Corridors 

Means of Egress Unobstructed

Status: FAIL
Notes: No storage is allowed in rear exit access,

1003.6 Means of egress continuity. The path of egress travel along a means of egress shall not be interrupted by a building element other than a means of 
egress component as specified in this chapter. Obstructions shall not be placed in the minimum width or required capacity of a means of egress component 
except projections permitted by this chapter. The minimum width or required capacity of a means of egress system shall not be diminished along the path of 
egress travel.

Page 4 of 7Printed on 04/29/19 at 15:42:23



Combustible, General & Outside Storage 

Oily Rags Stored in Approved Containers

Status: FAIL
Notes: Obtained approved metal container with lid to be used with greasy rags used for cleaning kitchen hood and equipment 
under the kitchen hoods.

304.3.1 Spontaneous ignition. Materials susceptible to spontaneous ignition, such as oily rags, shall be stored in a listed disposal container. Contents of such 
containers shall be removed and disposed of daily.

Compressed Gas Cylinders / LPG 

Compressed Gas Cylinders Secured or Chained

Status: FAIL
Notes: Behind bar, secure cylinder.

5303.5.3 Securing compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks. Compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks shall be secured to prevent falling 
caused by contact, vibration or seismic activity. Securing of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks shall be by one of the following methods: 1. 
Securing containers, cylinders and tanks to a fixed object with one or more restraints. 2. Securing containers, cylinders and tanks on a cart or other mobile 
device designed for the movement of compressed gas containers, cylinders or tanks. 3. Nesting of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks at 
container filling or servicing facilities or in sellers’ warehouses not accessible to the public. Nesting shall be allowed provided the nested containers, cylinders 
or tanks, if dislodged, do not obstruct the required means of egress. 4. Securing of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks to or within a rack, 
framework, cabinet or similar assembly designed for such use. Exception: Compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks in the process of examination, 
filling, transport or servicing.

Page 5 of 7Printed on 04/29/19 at 15:42:23



Additional Time Spent on Inspection:

Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

No Additional time recordedNotes:

Total Additional Time: 0 minutes

Total Time: 57 minutes

Inspection Time: 57 minutes

Summary:

Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

Miscellaneous

No Other Unsafe Conditions 

Status: FAIL
Notes: Ensure all discarded smoking materials are disposed of of in approval smoking receptacle and are not on the ground.

110.4 Abatement. The owner, the owner’s authorized agent, operator or occupant of a building or premises deemed unsafe by the fire code official shall abate 
or cause to be abated or corrected such unsafe conditions either by repair, rehabilitation, demolition or other approved corrective action.

Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): None on file
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 04/29/2019 15:39

Page 6 of 7Printed on 04/29/19 at 15:42:23



Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Sergia natario on 04/29/2019 15:40

Page 7 of 7Printed on 04/29/19 at 15:42:23



License Application (
Applicant

Name of Applicant: Atlas World Grill, Inc

Name of Business (DBA): Jimmy Jack's Rib Shack

Address of Premises: 745 Community Dr

City
:

North Liberty Zip: 52231

State
:

IA

County: Johnson

Business 
Phone:

(319) 665-2486

Mailing 
Address:

1940 Lower Muscatine Rd

City
:

Iowa City Zip: 52240

)

Contact Person

Name
:

Jack Piper

Phone: (319) 351-9501 Email 
Address:

jack@jimmyjacksribshack.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: XXXXXXXXX Federal Employer ID 
#:

XXXXXXXXX

Insurance Company Information

Insurance Company: Columbia National Insurance Company

Effective Date: 05/22/2019  

Expiration Date: 01/01/1900  

Classification
:

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Outdoor Service

Sunday Sales

James Adrian

First Name: James Last Name: Adrian

City: Iowa City State: Iowa Zip: 52240

Position: Owner

% of Ownership: 50.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Jack Piper

First Name: Jack Last Name: Piper

City: Iowa City State: Iowa Zip: 52245

Position: Owner

% of Ownership: 50.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes



Policy Effective Date: 05/22/2019  Policy Expiration 
Date:

05/22/2020  

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective 
Date:

Outdoor Service Expiration 
Date:

Temp Transfer Effective 
Date:

Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 
Continuously:

Insurance Company: Columbia National Insurance Company



License Application (
Applicant

Name of Applicant: CGR LLC

Name of Business (DBA): Rusciano's authentic taste of Napoli

Address of Premises: 710 Pacha parkway #5

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 665-2761

Mailing 710 Pacha parkway #5

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

)

Contact Person

Name Carol Gorney 

Phone: (563) 357-2924 Email cgrllc2016@gmail.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Limited Liability Company

Corporate ID Number: XXXXXXXXX Federal Employer ID XXXXXXXXX

Insurance Company Information

ff / / / /

Insurance Company: Illinois Casualty Co

Effective Date: 10/23/2018

Expiration Date: 10/22/2019

Classification Special Class C Liquor License (BW) (Beer/Wine)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Outdoor Service

Special Class C Liquor License (BW) (Beer/Wine)

Carol Gorney

First Name: Carol Last Name: Gorney

City: iowa city State: Iowa Zip: 52240

Position: manager

% of Ownership: 45.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Gennaro Rusciano

First Name: Gennaro Last Name: Rusciano

City: Iowa City State: Iowa Zip: 52240

Position: owner/ chef 

% of Ownership: 55.00% U.S. Citizen: No

 BW0095672 



Policy Effective Date: 10/23/2018 Policy Expiration 10/22/2019

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective 04/22/2019 Outdoor Service Expiration 10/21/2019

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

















 

EJCDC® C-941, Change Order. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.   

Page 1 of 1 
 

 Change Order No. 1 

 
Date of Issuance:  Effective Date: 5/14/19  

Owner: City of North Liberty Owner's Contract No.: N/A 

Contractor: Schrader Group Contractor’s Project No.: N/A 

Engineer: Shive-Hattery, Inc. Engineer's Project No.: 1181520 

Project: Main Street Improvements Contract Name: - 

  
The Contract is  modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order: 
 
Description:  

1) As described in ITC 02 & 03 additional subdrain was required to connect a roof drain under the new 
paved parking stalls.  The subdrain riser did not have an established unit cost.  1 EA at $300.00 EA 

 

2) As described in ITC 02 & 03 additional storm sewer work was identified based on conditions encountered 
in the field.  The connection to the storm intake was extra work without an existing unit cost. 2 EA at 
$850.00 EA 

3) As described in ITC 02 & 03 additional storm sewer work was identified based on conditions encountered 
in the field.  The collar to connect to the existing storm sewer line was extra work without and existing 
unit cost. 1 EA at $350.00 EA 

 
Attachments:  Schrader CR 01, ITC 02 & 03 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES  
 

Original Contract Price: Original Contract Times: 
 Substantial Completion:  60 Working Days  
$ 730,248.67  Ready for Final Payment:  15 Working Days  

Increase  from previously approved Change Order 
No.:(n/a) 

Increase from previously approved Change Orders: 

 Substantial Completion:  N/A  
$0  Ready for Final Payment:     

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order: 
 Substantial Completion:  60 Working Days  
$ 730,248.67 
  

Ready for Final Payment:  15 Working Days  

Increase of this Change Order: Increase of this Change Order: 
 Substantial Completion:  0  
$2,350.00  Ready for Final Payment:  0   

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: Contract Times with all approved Change Orders: 
 Substantial Completion:  60 Working Days  
$732,618.67  Ready for Final Payment:  15 Working Days  

RECOMMENDED: ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED: 

By:  By:  By:  

 Engineer  Owner (Authorized Signature)  Contractor (Authorized Signature) 

Title: Construction Administrator Title:  Title:  

Date: 5/1/19 Date
:  

 Date
: 

 
 

Project Manager
Typewritten Text
Vice President

Project Manager
Typewritten Text
5/2/2019



5/8/19

$185,665.77











 

 
 

Mayor Report 
 



 

 

  

City of North Liberty, Iowa  

 PROCLAMATION 
Whereas, the bicycle is an economical, environmentally sound, and effective means of 

transportation, recreation, and fitness; and 
 
Whereas, the bicycle is considered a legitimate vehicle in all 50 states and is entitled to 

legal and responsible use of all public roads in Iowa, except interstate highways; and 
 
Whereas, increased use of the bicycle will benefit all citizens by improving air quality, 

reducing traffic congestion and noise, decreasing use of and dependence upon finite 
energy resources and will foster healthy lifestyles; and  

 
Whereas, the City of North Liberty has an ongoing commitment to encourage bicycling 

as a viable mode of transportation and recreation; and 
 
Whereas, the League of American Bicyclists has established the month of May as 

National Bicycle Month. 
 
Now, therefore, I, Terry Donahue, Mayor of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, do 

hereby proclaim May 13-19, 2019, to be 
 

 Bike to Work Week 
 
in North Liberty, IA, and encourage all residents to ride their bicycles to work, to the 
store, to the park, to school, and with friends and family to promote the many benefits 
achieved from bicycling. 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
                                                                                  Terry Donahue, Mayor              
 
        Signed in North Liberty, Iowa, 
        this __ day of __________, 2019 
 



Liberty Centre Day Care 



 
May 2, 2019 
 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Site Plan Approval Request 
(Lot 10 Liberty Centre Part One) 
 
Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in 
this memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 
Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
This request of Penn Street Group LLC to approve a commercial site plan located on Community 
Drive west of Ranshaw Way/965. 
 
The site layout is straightforward, with ample parking (21 required, 54 provided) and good vehicular 
circulation. Landscape planning and pedestrian accommodations are complete. The entire frontage 
is lined with parking, but is set back about 20 feet from the sidewalk, with landscaping in that 20 foot 
area. 
 
The building is a clean modern design that meets general design standards. HVAC equipment is on 
the roof, screened behind parapet walls. 
 
A number of code and aesthetic issues have been addressed by the applicant during the staff review 
process, including: 

Building façade improvements. 
Pedestrian access requirements addressed. 
Pedestrian feature added. 
Parking lot screening enhanced. 
Other technical details refined. 

 
Staff recommends approval of the site plan. 
 

Recommended for approval
by Planning Commission at
their 5/7/2019 meeting.

















AREA OF MASONRY





AMERISTARFENCE.COM  |  888-333-3422

Montage Plus ornamental steel fence has the versatility to fit many 

different project applications.  With its ability to traverse varying grades, 

variety of distinct product styles and unmatched coating performance, 

Montage Plus is the preferred choice for ornamental fence.    

P
R

IM
A

R
Y

AP
PL

IC
AT

IO
NS

     Commercial Developments
     Self Storage
     Apartments (Multi-Family)
     Parks & Recreation
     Schools & Universities

j

j

j

j

j

ORNAMENTAL STEEL FENCE



Also available in Pool, Pet & Play (3" air spacing) – styles vary 

Each picket is precisely welded at each 
rail intersection providing all-terrain 
flexibility and aesthetics.

PROFUSION WELDED STEEL

All Montage fence panels are fabricated using Ameristar’s ProFusion welding process. This technique 

combines laser and fusion technology to create a virtually invisible structural connection at every 

picket to rail intersection.  Unlike typical aluminum fence systems that are held together with unsightly 

screws, the ProFusion weld used with Montage promotes a “good neighbor” profile with sleek lines 

and no exposed picket to rail fasteners.  When compared to aluminum fencing, Montage’s welded 

steel construction is unmatched in strength and durability.

E-COAT ™PROTECTIVE FINISH

Montage galvanized steel framework is subjected to a multi-stage pre-treatment/wash (with zinc phosphate), 
followed by a duplex cathodic electrocoat system consisting of an epoxy primer, which significantly increases 

corrosion protection, and an acrylic topcoat, which provides the protection necessary to withstand adverse 

weathering effects.  This process results in years of maintenance-free ownership.  

20 YEAR LIMITED WARRANTY

The Montage families of fencing products are manufactured from superior quality materials by skilled 

craftsmen with the highest standards of workmanship in the industry.  Ameristar is confident in 

offering Montage with a 20 year limited warranty.

DOMESTIC MANUFACTURING

Ameristar is committed to providing products that are manufactured in the USA.  We have 

made significant investments in technology, process improvement, and employee training in 

an effort to secure American jobs and combat inferior import products. 

ORNAMENTAL STEEL FENCE

.75"sq x 18ga PICKETS  |  1.4375" x 1.5" x 14ga RAILS  |  2.5"sq x 16ga POSTS

STYLE OPTIONS

CLASSIC™ MAJESTIC™ GENESIS ™ WARRIOR ™

   |   TO PLACE YOUR ORDER CALL 888-333-3422   |   VISIT AMERISTARFENCE.COM



10

13
14

COMMUNITY DRIVE

S

S

S

8

12

15

20

8

8

a

sm wlk sm wlk sm wlk

sm wlk

sm wlk sm wlk sm wlk sm wlk

sm wlk sm wlk

sm wlklg wlk lg wlk lg wlk

lg wlk

lg wlk

lg wlk

a

a

a

a

a

lg wlk

3.5 3.7 3.3 2.8 2.1 1.3 0.7 0.4 0.4 0.6 1.41.9 5.4

0.5

3.60.8

3.53.23.24.93.12.6 0.70.61.01.72.5

3.1

2.7

1.4

1.3

0.40.81.42.65.09.29.63.91.1

2.83.03.30.6

2.1

3.4

0.3

0.30.30.50.91.62.54.37.17.53.41.1

4.0

4.0

1.31.8

2.41.30.60.4

1.51.71.92.62.62.22.22.5

4.0

1.9

0.3

1.9 2.2 2.4 2.0 2.02.3 1.31.3 1.4 1.9 2.4 1.9

2.9

2.1

1.7

1.50.9

2.72.62.53.42.51.30.90.80.91.32.1

3.8 1.51.9 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.3

3.0

2.6

2.6

1.9 2.3

0.5 0.8 1.2

1.7

2.1

3.7

0.31.92.32.32.21.30.50.3

0.70.60.40.81.9

0.7

3.22.0 2.2 3.3 4.0 4.1 3.53.5 3.72.7 2.5 3.1 3.4 3.9

0.4

4.3

2.2

4.0

0.3

1.8

0.61.21.81.82.02.12.12.01.81.91.3 0.40.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 2.00.4 2.20.7 1.2 1.7 1.9 2.0

1.0

0.5

1.2 4.13.72.51.91.91.51.62.01.70.80.40.20.2

1.5

1.1

1.0 2.2 3.1 1.8 2.1

0.30.7 0.73.7 8.8 8.2 4.5 2.3 2.3

2.5

0.3

3.5

5.1 4.8 3.4 2.20.8 0.60.4 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.6 0.9

0.5

1.2

3.5

1.1

2.4 2.3 2.2 2.7

2.6

3.52.9 2.8 1.6 0.6 0.5 1.4 1.63.1

4.6 3.72.43.46.08.48.05.62.61.82.34.48.2

4.4

8.9 8.11.80.90.70.6

1.13.37.66.74.02.72.32.96.2

10.5

1.2 2.63.13.84.54.33.62.82.22.63.75.36.76.2

6.7 10.2

7.3

5.3 2.7 2.0 2.6

3.6

8.5

1.8

4.7 1.5

1.3 1.5 1.2

8.9 4.5

0.5

9.5

1.52.23.74.54.43.21.61.01.21.92.72.3 3.7

1.21.2 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.2

1.6

1.2

1.1

1.4 1.4 0.7 0.4

0.3 4.3

1.2

2.9

4.7

3.72.33.67.410.29.66.12.61.61.93.97.5

2.2 3.44.3 3.4 2.2 1.9 2.1

7.8

3.2

5.8

1.6 0.7

0.4 0.5 1.1 10.0

2.4

1.71.5

1.61.51.61.92.32.42.73.76.610.49.34.5 2.3

1.6

3.2

2.2 1.9 1.5 1.3

1.4

1.4 1.11.7 2.0 2.6 2.7 2.3

2.1

1.3

2.4

1.61.71.92.84.66.87.24.21.50.6

1.01.41.92.1 1.92.0 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.7 2.62.3 2.81.3 1.3 1.8 2.2 2.2

1.4

2.1

2.2

1.9

2.32.32.32.42.52.32.32.42.93.53.63.0 2.6

9.5

1.6

3.6 2.5 1.9 2.3

1.9

7.2

1.6

5.6 1.9

2.4 4.4 3.8 2.6

4.1

5.7 1.41.61.91.91.71.61.82.12.52.72.42.43.5

2.5 3.12.4 2.4 2.2 2.1 2.1

6.6

2.0

9.1

4.7 5.3 3.6 1.6

2.2

0.4

1.8

Luminaire Schedule
Symbol Qty Label Arrangement Total Lamp Lumens LLF Description

6 a SINGLE 19036 0.950 ASL-24L-4K-210-4
11 sm wlk SINGLE N.A. 0.950 LNC-7LU-4K-3
7 lg wlk SINGLE N.A. 0.920 LNC2-18L-4K-070-4

Calculation Summary
Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min
parking lot_Planar Illuminance Fc 2.63 10.5 0.2 13.15 52.50





COMMUNITY DRIVE







COMMUNITY DRIVE







COMMUNITY DRIVE







COMMUNITY DRIVE







ECF-S_EcoForm_area_small 01/19 page 1 of 8

Project: 

Location: 

Cat.No: 

Type: 

Lamps:  Qty: 

Notes: 

Gardco EcoForm Gen-2 combines economy with performance in an LED area 
luminaire.  Capable of delivering up to 26,400 lumens or more in a compact, low 
profile LED luminaire, EcoForm offers a new level of customer value. EcoForm 
features an innovative retrofit arm kit, simplifying site conversions to LED by 
eliminating the need to drill additional holes in most existing poles. Integral 
control systems available for further energy savings. Includes Service Tag, our 
innovative way to provide assistance throughout the life of the product.

EcoForm

Site & Area

ECF-S small area light

Ordering guide  example: ECF-S-64L-900-NW-G2-AR-5-120-HIS-MGY

Prefix

ECF-S

Number 

of LEDs

Drive 

Current

LED Color - 

Generation Mounting Distribution Voltage

Options 

FinishDimming controls Motion sensing lens Photo-sensing Electrical Luminaire

ECF-S 
EcoForm  
site and 
area, 
small

32L 
32 LEDs 
(2 modules)

48L 
48 LEDs 
(3 modules)

64L 
64 LEDs 
(4 modules)

530 
530 mA
700 
700 mA
1A 
1050 mA
1.2A 
1200 mA

900 
900 mA
1A 
1050 mA
1.2A 
1200 mA

900 
900 mA
1A 
1050 mA

WW-G2 
Warm White 
3000K, 70 CRI 
Generation 2

NW-G2 
Neutral White 
4000K, 70 CRI 
Generation 2

CW-G2 
Cool White 
5000K, 70 CRI 
Generation 2

AR  
Arm Mount 
(standard) 2

The 
following 
mounting 
kits must 
be ordered 
separately 
(See 
accessories)

SF 
Slip Fitter  
Mount 3 
(fits to 2 3⁄8" 
O.D. tenon)

WS 
Wall mount 
with surface 
conduit 
rear entry 
permitted

RAM 
Retrofit arm 
mount kit 2

Type 2
2 Type 2
2-90  Rotated 

left 90°
2-270  Rotated 

right 
270°

Type 3
3 Type 3
3-90  Rotated 

left 90°
3-270  Rotated 

right 
270°

Type 4
4 Type 4
4-90  Rotated 

left 90°
4-270  Rotated 

right 
270° 

Type 5
5 Type 5
5W Type 5W

AFR 
Auto Front Row

AFR-90 
Auto Front Row, 
Rotated left 90°

AFR-270 
Auto Front Row, 
Rotated right 
270°

120 120V
208 208V
240 240V
277 277V
347 347V
480 480V
UNV  120-277V 

(50/60Hz)
HVU  347-480V 

(50/60Hz)

DD  0-10V External 
dimming (by others) 4

DCC  Dual Circuit Control 4,5,6 

FAWS  Field Adjustable 
Wattage Selector 4,5 

SW  Interface module  
for SiteWise 4,6,7

LLC  Integral wireless 
module 4,6,8

BL   Bi-level functionality1,4

DynaDimmer: Automatic 
Profile Dimming

CS50  Safety 50%  
Dimming, 7 hours 4,8

CM50  Median 50% Dimming, 
8 hours 4,8

CE50  Economy 50% 
Dimming, 9 hours 4,8

DA50  All Night 50% 
Dimming 4,8

CS30  Safety 30%  
Dimming, 7 hours 4,8

CM30  Median 30% Dimming, 
8 hours 4,8 

CE30  Economy 30% 
Dimming, 9 hours 4,8

DA30  All Night 30% 
Dimming 4,8 

IMRI3  
 Integral with  
#3 lens 15

IMRI7  
 Integral with  
#7 lens 16

IMRO  
 Pole mounted 
motion sensor 15 
(see accessories)

PCB  
 Photocontrol 
Button 8,9

TLRD5  
 Twist Lock 
Receptacle 
5 Pin 10

TLRD7  
 Twist Lock 
Receptacle 
7 Pin 10

TLRPC  
 Twist Lock 
Receptacle w/
Photocell 9,11

Fusing
F1 Single  
(120, 277, 347VAC) 9

F2 Double  
(208, 240, 480VAC) 9

Pole Mount Fusing
FP1 Single  
(120, 277, 347VAC) 9

FP2 Double  
(208, 240, 480VAC) 9

FP3 Canadian 
Double Pull (208, 
240, 480VAC) 9

Surge Protection
(10kA standard)

SP2  Increased 20kA

Square Pole 
Adapter 
included in 
standard 
product

TB 
Terminal 
Block 12

RPA 
Round Pole  
Adapter  
(fits to 3"- 
3.9" O.D. 
pole) 13

HIS 
Internal 
Housing 
Side Shield 14

Textured
BK Black
WH White
BZ Bronze
DGY  Dark Gray
MGY  Medium Gray

Customer 
specified
RAL  Specify 

optional  
color or RAL 
(ex: RAL7024)

CC Custom color 
(Must supply 
color chip 
for required 
factory quote)

1. BL-IMRI3/7 equipped with out-boarded sensor housing 
when voltage is HVU (347-480V)

2. Mounts to a 4" round pole with adapter included for 
square poles.

3. Limited to a maximum of 45 degrees aiming above 
horizontal.

4. Not available with other dimming control options.
5. Not available with motion sensor.
6. Not available with photocontrol.

7. Available only in 120 or 277V.
8. Not available in 347 or 480V
9. Must specify input voltage.
10. Dimming will not be connected to NEMA receptacle if 

ordering with other control options.
11. Not available in 480V.
12. Not available with DCC.
13. Not available with SF and WS. RPAs provided with black 

finish standard.

14. HIS not available with Type 5 and 5W optics.
15. Available only with SW, LLC, and BL control options.
16. Available only with SW and BL control options.



ECF-S_EcoForm_area_small 01/19 page 2 of 8

ECF-S EcoForm small
Area luminaire
EcoForm Accessories  (ordered separately, field installed)

14. Not available with Type 5 or 5W optics

Controls Accessories Shielding Accessories

Pole Mount Motion Sensor
MS-A-120V  120V Input
MS-A-277V  277V Input

Wireless system  
Remote mount module
LLCR3-(F)  #3 lens

Central Remote Motion Response  
(used connected to SiteWise main panel)

MS2-A-FVR-3
MS2-A-FVR-7

House Side shield
Standard optic orientation: 
HIS-80-H 14  Internal House Side Shield for 80 LEDs (5 modules)
HIS-96-H 14  Internal House Side Shield for 96 LEDs (6 modules)

Optic at 90 or 270 orientation: 
HIS-80-V 14  Internal House Side Shield for 80 LEDs (5 modules)
HIS-96-V 14  Internal House Side Shield for 96 LEDs (6 modules)

Predicted Lumen Depreciation Data

Predicted performance derived from LED manufacturer’s data and engineering design estimates, based on IESNA LM-80 methodology. 
Actual experience may vary due to field application conditions.L70 is the predicted time when LED performance depreciates to 70% of 
initial lumen output. Calculated per IESNA TM21-11. Published L70 hours limited to 6 times actual LED test hours

Ambient Temperature °C Driver mA Calculated L70 Hours L70 per TM-21 Lumen Maintenance % at 60,000 hrs

25°C up to 1200 mA >100,000 hours >60,000 hours >88%

Luminaire Accessories

ECF-BD-G2 Bird deterrent
ECF-RAM-G2-(F) Retrofit Arm mount kit
ECF-SF-G2-(F)  Slip Fitter Mount (fits to 2 3⁄8" O.D. tenon)
ECF-WS-G2-(F)  Wall mount with surface conduit rear entry permitted

EcoForm PTF2  
(pole top fitter fits 23⁄8-21⁄2" OD x 4" depth tenon) 

PTF2-ECF-S/L-1-90-(F) 1 luminaire at 90°
PTF2-ECF-S/L-2-90-(F) 2 luminaires at 90°
PTF2-ECF-S/L-2-180-(F) 2 luminaires at 180°
PTF2-ECF-S/L-3-90-(F) 3 luminaires at 90°
PTF2-ECF-S/L-4-90-(F) 4 luminaires at 90°
PTF2-ECF-S/L-3-120-(F) 3 luminaires at 120° 

(F) = Specify finish

EcoForm PTF3  
(pole top fitter fits 3-31⁄2" OD x 6" depth tenon) 

PTF3-ECF-S/L-1-90-(F) 1 luminaire at 90°
PTF3-ECF-S/L-2-90-(F) 2 luminaires at 90°
PTF3-ECF-S/L-2-180-(F) 2 luminaires at 180°
PTF3-ECF-S/L-3-90-(F) 3 luminaires at 90°
PTF3-ECF-S/L-4-90-(F) 4 luminaires at 90°
PTF3-ECF-S/L-3-120-(F) 3 luminaires at 120°

EcoForm PTF4  
(pole top fitter fits 31⁄2-4" OD x 6" depth tenon) 

PTF4-ECF-S/L-1-90-(F) 1 luminaire at 90°
PTF4-ECF-S/L-2-90-(F) 2 luminaires at 90°
PTF4-ECF-S/L-2-180-(F) 2 luminaires at 180°
PTF4-ECF-S/L-3-90-(F) 3 luminaires at 90°
PTF4-ECF-S/L-4-90-(F) 4 luminaires at 90°
PTF4-ECF-S/L-3-120-(F) 3 luminaires at 120°

Optical distribution

Based on configuration ECF-S-48L-1A-NW-G2 (159W) mounted at 20ft.

0.2 fc

0.5 fc
1 fc

2 fc
1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

4 MH

4 MH

0

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

4 MH

4 MH

0

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

4 MH

4 MH

0

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

4 MH

4 MH

0

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

4 MH

4 MH

0

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

1 MH

2 MH

3 MH

4 MH

4 MH

0

1 MH2 MH3 MH 1 MH 2 MH 3 MH 5 MH5 MH 4 MH 4 MH0 1 MH2 MH3 MH 1 MH 2 MH 3 MH 5 MH5 MH 4 MH 4 MH0 1 MH2 MH3 MH 1 MH 2 MH 3 MH 5 MH5 MH 4 MH 4 MH0
 Type 2  Type 3  Type 4

1 MH2 MH3 MH 1 MH 2 MH 3 MH 5 MH5 MH 4 MH 4 MH0 1 MH2 MH3 MH 1 MH 2 MH 3 MH 5 MH5 MH 4 MH 4 MH0 1 MH2 MH3 MH 1 MH 2 MH 3 MH 5 MH5 MH 4 MH 4 MH0
AFRType 5W Type 5

0.2 fc

0.5 fc1 fc 2 fc

0.2 fc

0.5 fc
1 fc 2 fc

0.2 fc

0.5 fc
1 fc 2 fc

0.2 fc

0.5 fc

1 fc

2 fc

0.2 fc
0.5 fc

1 fc

2 fc



ECF-S_EcoForm_area_small 01/19 page 5 of 8

Dimensions

Standard Arm (AR)
Weight: 22 Lbs (9.9 Kg) EPA: 0.21ft2 (.019m2)

Retrofit Arm (RAM)
Weight: 24 Lbs (10.9 Kg) EPA: 0.24ft2 (.022m2)

Slip fitter (SF)
Weight: 27 Lbs (12.2 Kg) EPA: 0.33ft2 (.031m2)

Wall (WS)
Weight: 27 Lbs. (12. 2Kg) EPA: 0.27ft2 (.025m2)

6.5"
(16.5cm)

28.7" (73cm)

14.9"
(37.9cm)

2.2"
(5.7cm)

1.3"
(3.2cm)

28.7" (73cm)

7.0"
(17.8cm)

5.0"
(12.7cm) 3.6"

(9cm)

14.9"
(37.9cm)

5.4" 
(13.6cm)

9.7" (24.7cm)

15.4" (39.2cm)
37.2" (94.4cm)

37.2" (94.4cm)

5.0"
(12.7cm)

27.5" (69.7cm)

14.9"
(37.9cm)

2.4"
(6cm)

27.5" (69.7cm)

5.7"
(14.6cm)

7.6" (19.4cm)

29.3" (74.5cm)

6.5"
(16.5cm)

14.9"
(37.9cm)

29.3" (74.5cm)

2.0"
(5.1cm)

Outboard IMR-HVU sensor
Retrofit Arm (RAM) 
drill pattern

Standard Arm (AR) 
drill pattern

3.1"
(7.9cm)

3.4"
(8.6cm)

5.3"
(13.4cm)

4.7"
(11.9cm)

0.41"
(1.04cm)

1.0"
(2.5cm)

0.41"
(1.04cm)

5.2"
(13.2cm)

1.0"
(2.5cm)

2"
(5.1cm)

0.41"
(1.04cm)

1.0"
(2.5cm)

0.41"
(1.04cm)

3"
(7.6cm)

1.0"
(2.5cm)

1.0"
(2.5cm)

ECF-S EcoForm small
Area luminaire



ECF-S_EcoForm_area_small 01/19 page 7 of 8

ECF-S EcoForm small
Area luminaire

Housing

One-piece die cast aluminum housing with integral arm and separate, self-
retained hinged, one-piece die cast door frame. Luminaire housing rated to 
IP66, tested in accordance to Section 9 of IEC 60598-1.

Vibration resistance

Luminaire is tested and rated 3G over 100,000 cycles conforming to 
standards set forth by ANSI C136.31-2010. Testing includes vibration in three 
axes, all performed on the same luminaire.

Light engine

Light engine comprises of a module of 16-LED aluminum metal clad board 
fully sealed with optics offered in multiples of 2, 3, and 4 modules or 32, 48, 
and 64 LEDs. Module is RoHS compliant. Color temperatures: 3000K +/-125K, 
4000K, 5000K +/- 200K. Minimum CRI of 70. LED light engine is rated IP66 in 
accordance to Section 9 of IEC 60598-1.

Energy saving benefits

System efficacy up to 133 lms/W with significant energy savings over Pulse 
Start Metal Halide luminaires. Optional control options provide added energy 
savings during unoccupied periods.

Optical systems

Type 2, 3, 4, 5, 5W, and AFR distributions available. Internal Shield option 
mounts to LED optics and is available with Type 2, 3, 4, and AFR distributions. 
Types 2, 3, 4, and AFR when specified and used as rotated, are factory 
set only. Performance tested per LM-79 and TM-15 (IESNA) certifying its 
photometric performance. Luminaire designed with 0% uplight (U0 per IESNA 
TM-15).

Mounting

Standard luminaire arm mounts to 4" O.D. round poles. Can also be used with 
5” O.D. poles. Square pole adapter included with every luminaire. Round Pole 
Adapter (RPA) required for 3-3.9" poles. EcoForm features a retrofit arm 
kit. When specified with the retrofit arm (RAM) option, EcoForm seamlessly 
simplifies site conversions to LED by eliminating the need for additional pole 
drilling on most existing poles. RAM will be boxed separately. Also optional are 
slipfitter and wall mounting accessories.

Control options

0-10V dimming (DD): Access to 0-10V dimming leads supplied through back of 
luminaire (for secondary dimming controls by others). Cannot be used with 
other control options.

Dual Circuit Control (DCC): Luminaire equipped with the ability to have two 
separate circuits controlling drivers and light engines independently. Permits 
separate switching of separate modules controlled by use of two sets of 
leads, one for each circuit. Not recommended to be used with other control 
options, motion response, or photocells.

SiteWise (SW): SiteWise system includes a controller fully integrated in 
the luminaire that enables the luminaires to communicate with a dimming 
signal transmitter cabinet located on site using patented central dimming 
technology. A locally accessible mobile app allows users to access the system 
and set functionalities such as ON/OFF, dimming levels and scheduling. 
SiteWise is available with motion response options in order to bring the light 
back to 100% when motion is detected. Cannot be used with other control 
options or photocell options. Additional functionalities are available such 
as communication with indoor lighting and connection to BMS systems. 
Complete information on the control system can be found on the SiteWise 
website at philips.com/sitewise.

Automatic Profile Dimming (CS/CM/CE/CA): Standard dimming profile of 
30% or 50% provide flexibility towards energy savings goals while optimizing 
light levels during specific dark hours. When used in combination with not 
programmed motion response it overrides the controller’s schedule when 
motion is detected. After 5 minutes with no motion, it will return to the 
automatic diming profile schedule. Automatic dimming profile scheduled with 
the following settings:

• CS50/CS30: Security for 7 hours night duration (Ex., 11 PM - 6 AM)
• CM50/CM30: Median for 8 hours night duration (Ex., 10 PM - 6 AM)
• CE50/CE30: Economy for 9 hours night duration (Ex., 9 PM - 6 AM)
• CA50/CA30: for all night (during all dark hours)

All above profiles are calculated from mid point of the night. Dimming is set 
for 6 hours after the mid point and 1, 2, or 3 hours before depending of the 
duration of dimming. Cannot be used with other dimming control options.

Field Adjustable Wattage Selector (FAWS): Luminaire equipped with the ability 
to manually adjust the wattage in the field to reduce total luminaire lumen 
output and light levels. Comes pre-set to the highest position at the lumen 
output selected. Use chart below to estimate reduction in lumen output 
desired. Cannot be used with other control options or motion response.

Wireless system (LLC): Optional wireless controller integral to luminaire 
ready to be connected to a Limelight system (sold by others). The system 
allows you to wirelessly manage the entire site, independent lighting groups 
or individual luminaires while on-site or remotely. Based on a high-density 
mesh network with an easy to use web-based portal, you can conveniently 
access, monitor and manage your lighting network remotely. Wireless 
controls can be combined with site and area, pedestrian, and parking garage 
luminaires as well, for a completely connected outdoor solution. Equipped 
with motion response with #3 lens for 8-25' mounting heights. Also available 
with remote pod accessory where pod is mounted separate from luminaire to 
pole or wall.

Motion response options

Bi-Level Infrared Motion Response (BL-IMRI): Motion Response module is 
mounted integral to luminaire factory pre-programmed to 50% dimming 
when not ordered with other control options. BL-IMRI is set/operates in the 
following fashion: The motion sensor is set to a constant 50%. When motion is 
detected by the PIR sensor, the luminaire returns to full power/light output. 
Dimming on low is factory set to 50% with 5 minutes default in "full power" 
prior to dimming back to low. When no motion is detected for 5 minutes, the 
motion response system reduces the wattage by 50%, to 50% of the normal 
constant wattage reducing the light level. Other dimming settings can be 
provided if different dimming levels are required. This can also be done with 
FSIR-100 Wireless Remote Programming Tool (contact Technical Support for 
details).

Infrared Motion Response with Other Controls: When used in combination 
with other controls (Automatic Dimming Profile and SiteWise), motion 
response device will simply override controller’s schedule with the added 
benefits of a combined dimming profile and sensor detection. In this 
configuration, the motion response device cannot be re-programmed with 
FSIR-100 Wireless Remote Programming Tool. The profile can only be re-
programmed via the controller.

FAWS 
Position

Percent of 
Typical Lumen Output

1 25%

2 50%

3 55%

4 65%

5 75%

6 80%

7 85%

8 90%

9 95%

10 100%

Note: Typical value accuracy +/- 5%

0'

20'

10'

10'

20'

40'
10'

20'

0'

15'

5'

0' 10'10' 20'20'  20' 18' 15' 12' 9' 6' 3' 0 3' 6' 9' 12' 15' 18' 20'

LLC wireless controller with #3 lens

Specifications



ECF-S_EcoForm_area_small 01/19 page 8 of 8

© 2019 Signify Holding B.V. All rights reserved. Signify reserves the right to make 
changes in specifications and/or to discontinue any product at any time without 
notice or obligation and will not be liable for any consequences resulting from the 
use of this publication. signify.com/outdoorluminaires

ECF-S_EcoForm_area_small 01/19 page 8 of 8

Signify, North America Corp., 
200 Franklin Square Drive,  
Somerset, NJ 08873  
Tel. 855-486-2216

Signify, Canada Ltd., 
281 Hillmount Rd, Markham, ON, 
Canada L6C 2S3  
Tel. 800-668-9008

www.gardcolighting.com

ECF-S EcoForm small
Area luminaire

Infrared Motion Response Lenses (IMRI3/IMRI7): Infrared Motion Response 
Integral module is available with two different sensor lens types to 
accommodate various mounting heights and occupancy detection ranges. 
Lens #3 (IMRI3) is designed for mounting heights up to 20’ with a 40’ 
diameter coverage area. Lens #7 is designed for higher mounting heights 
up to 40’ with larger coverage areas up to 100’ diameter coverage area. See 
charts for approximate detection patterns:

Infrared Motion Response Outboard (IMRO): Infrared Motion Response 
Outboard can be used in combination with automatic profile dimming and 
stand alone motion response. The pole mounted motion sensor is a PIR 
(passive infrared) device that can be mounted to a pole. One motion sensor 
per pole is required. Sensor finish is white Wattstopper EW-200-120-W or 
the EW-200-277-W. Order MS-A-120 or MS-A-277 separately. IMRO sensors 
require single voltage 120V or 277V input. If motion is detected during the 
time that the luminaire is operating at profile dimming mode specified, the 
luminaire returns to 100% power and light output. The luminaire remains 
on high until no motion is detected for the duration period, after which 
the luminaire returns back to automatic profile dimming. Duration period 
is factory set at 15 minutes, and is field adjustable from 5 minutes up to 15 
minutes. The area motion detector provides coverage equal to up to 6 times 
the sensor height above ground, 270° from the front-center of the sensor 
(see chart for approximate detection patterns).

Pole Details: IMRO requires that the pole include additional hand hole 15 feet 
above the pole base, normally oriented 180° to the standard hand hole. For 
Gardco poles, order the pole with the Motion Sensor Mounting (MSM) option 

which includes the hand hole and a special hand hole cover plate for the 
sensor with a 1/2" NPT receptacle centered on the hand hole cover plate into 
which the motion sensor mounts. Once the motion sensor is connected to 
the hand hole cover plate, then wiring connections are completed in the pole. 
The plate (complete with motion sensor attached and wired) is then mounted 
to the hand hole. If poles are supplied by others, the customer is responsible 
for providing suitable mounting accommodations for the motion sensor in the 
pole (see Gardco Poles specification sheets for more information).

Electrical

Twist-Lock Receptacle (TLRD5/TLRD7/ TLRPC): Twist Lock Receptacle with 
5 pins enabling dimming or with 7 pins with additional functionality (by others) 
can be used with a twistlock photoelectric cell or a shorting cap. Dimming 
Receptacle Type B (5-pin) and Type D-24 (7-pin) in accordance to ANSI 
C136.41. Can be used with third-party control system. Receptacle located 
on top of luminaire housing. When specifying receptacle with twistlock 
photoelectric cell, voltage must be specified. When ordering Twist-lock 
receptacle (TLRD5 or TLRD7), photocell or shorting cap is not included.

Driver: Driver efficiency (>90% standard). 120-480V available (restrictions 
apply). Open/short circuit protection. Optional 0-10V dimming to 10% power. 
RoHS compliant.

Button Photocontrol (PCB): Button style design for internal luminaires 
mounting applications. The photocontrol is constructed of a high impact UV 
stabilized polycarbonate housing. Rated voltage of 120V or 208-277V with a 
load rating of 1000 VA. The photocell will turn on with 1-4Fc of ambient light.

Surge protection (SP1/SP2): Surge protection device tested in accordance 
with ANSI/IEEE C62.45 per ANSI/IEEE C62.41.2 Scenario I Category C High 
Exposure 10kV/10kA waveforms for Line-Ground, Line-Neutral and Neutral-
Ground, and in accordance with DOE MSSLC Model Specification for LED 
Roadway Luminaires Appendix D Electrical Immunity High test level 10kV/10kA. 
20kV / 10kA surge protection device that provides extra protection beyond 
the SP1 10kV/10kA level.

Listings

UL/cUL wet location listed to the UL 1598 standard, suitable for use in 
ambient temperatures from -40° to 40°C (-40° to 104°F). Most EcoForm 
configurations are qualified under Premium and Standard DesignLights 
Consortium® categories. Consult DLC Qualified Products list to confirm your 
specific luminaire selection is approved. CCTs 3000K and warmer are Dark 
Sky Approved.

Finish

Each standard color luminaire receives a fade and abrasion resistant, 
electrostatically applied, thermally cured, triglycidal isocyanurate (TGIC) 
textured polyester powdercoat finish. Standard colors include bronze (BZ), 
black (BK), white (WH), dark gray (DGY), and medium gray (MGY). Consult 
factory for specs on optional or custom colors.

Service Tag

Each individual luminaire is uniquely identifiable, thanks to the Service tag 
application. With a simple scan of a QR code, placed on the inside of the 
mast door, you gain instant access to the luminaire configuration, making 
installation and maintenance operations faster and easier, no matter what 
stage of the luminaire’s lifetime. Just download the APP and register your 
product right away. For more details visit: signify.com

Warranty

EcoForm luminaires feature a 5-year limited warranty 
See signify.com/warranties for complete details and exclusions.

Specifications

30'
27'

20'

12'

6'
3'

3'
6'

12'

20'

27'

30'

0' 60'

0'

10'

20'

30'

40'

0'

20'

10'

10'

20'

40'
10'

20'

0'

15'

5'

0' 10'10' 20'20'

 27' 20' 12' 6' 3' 0 3' 6' 12' 20' 27' 30'  30'  20' 12' 6'  0  6' 12' 20' 30'

  20' 18' 15' 12' 9' 6' 3' 0 3' 6' 9' 12' 15' 18' 20'

IMRI3 Luminaire or remote mount controller 

with #3 lens

IMRI7 Luminaire or remote mount controller 

with #7 lens

90°
90°

1H 3H 6H

270° Front Coverage

Distances are 
approximate. 
H =  height above ground

Height



SlimSurfaceLED-5in-7in-Round-S5R-S7R 09/17 page 1 of 7

Project: 

Location: 

Cat.No: 

Type: 

Lamps:  Qty: 

Notes: 

Downlighting

5" and 7" round aperture  

surface mount downlight

SlimSurface LED 

White

Black

Aluminum

Ordering guide example: S5R830K7AL

Family CRI CCT Lumens Finish Dimming

S5R  SlimSurface  
5" Round

8 80
9 90 1

27K 2700K
30K 3000K
35K 3500K
40K 4000K

7 650 lm blank White
AL Aluminum
BK Black

blank  ELV / Triac (120V)

W White
AL Aluminum
BK Black

Z10U  0-10V (120V-277V)

S7R  SlimSurface 
7" Round

8 80
9 90 1

27K 2700K
30K 3000K
35K 3500K
40K 4000K

10 1000 lm blank White
AL Aluminum
BK Black

blank  ELV / Triac (120V)

W White
AL Aluminum
BK Black

Z10U  0-10V (120V-277V)

1. Configurations using 90 CRI are only available with 2700K and 3000K CCT.

Features

1. Flange: One piece plastic flange. Injection 
molded white, applied aluminum or black.

2. Lens: High transmittance lens allowing 
for smooth, comfortable light pattern.

3. Power supply: Integral class 2 driver.  
Factory wired electronic LED driver 
(see Electrical section for specifications)

4. LED Strip: Utilizes Philips LEDs.

5. Lifetime: Expected lifetime 50,000 
hours and backed by a 5-year warranty 
(see Philips.com/warranties for details).

6. Compliance: Non-conductive fixture for 
shower light application.

Electrical

Electronic power supply: RoHS compliant.  
Class 2 power unit. Unit tolerates sustained 
open circuit and short circuit output conditions 
without damage.

Dimming: Intended for ELV/Triac (120V) or 
0-10V dimming (120V-277V) based on the 
configuration. Min 90°C supply conductors.

Labels

cULus listed. 
Wall-mounted: damp location only. 
Ceiling-mounted: wet location. 
Title 24 (JA8-2016) on 90CRI S7R models. 
ENERGY STAR® certified.

Electrical 
specifications Dimming 

Input 
volts

Input 
frequency

Input 
current

Input 
Power

THD 
Factor

Power 
Factor

Minimum 
Operating Temp.

Slim 5" 650lm Triac 120V 50/60Hz 0.08A 9.5W <15% >0.9 -20°C

0-10V 120V 50/60Hz 0.09A 10.1W <20% >0.9 -20°C

277V 50/60Hz 0.04A 10.2W <20% >0.9 -20°C

Slim 7" 1000lm Triac 120V 50/60Hz 0.13A 14.2W <15% >0.9 -20°C

0-10V 120V 50/60Hz 0.12A 14.4W <20% >0.9 -20°C

277V 50/60Hz 0.06A 14.7W <20% >0.9 -20°C

Fore more details, please see LED-Dim spec sheet.

SlimSurface LED is a 5/8" thick surface mounted 

luminaire with the appearance of a recessed 

downlight. Easy to install into most standard 

j-boxes, the SlimSurface LED round apertures 

are available as a  5" 650 lm & 7" 1000 lm fixture.

Proj

Loca

Cat.

Type

Lam
D i 5/8" thick f c o t d



SlimSurfaceLED-5in-7in-Round-S5R-S7R 09/17 page 2 of 7

S5R & S7R SlimSurface LED
5" and 7" round aperture surface mount downlight

Compatibility 

Installs into standard J-box applications: 

Note: A 2 1/8" deep octagon junction box is recommended for through circuit wiring applications.

3 1/2" round (plastic) 4" square (plastic)

Not compatible with S5R

4" octagonal (metal) 4" square (metal)

Not compatible with S5R

Fire rated J-box

Fire rated classification is per the 
ceiling and junction box ratings.

Dimensions

SlimSurface LED 5" downlight

SlimSurface LED 7" downlight

Ø 5 3�3 8�� "
137 mm

Ø 4 1�1 2�� "
115 mm

5�5 8�� "
16 mm

Ø 7 7�7 8�� "
201 mm

Ø 7"
179 mm

5�5 8�� "
16 mm

Ø 5 3�8"
  137 mm

Ø 7 7�8"
  201 mm



LPW16_LytePro_sconce www.stonco.com  11/18 page 1 of 3

Stonco LytePro LED small wall sconce LPW16 features outstanding value in a 
compact, architectural design. This wall sconce features state-of-the-art, 
long-life and maintenance savings, in a combined discreet LED package with 
high precision over-optic design. This powerful and precise combination offers 
outstanding energy savings with excellent photometric performance. LPW16 
is ideal for entryways and corridors in addition to wall lighting applications 
requiring strong lateral spacing and forward pattern projection.  

Stocked luminaires – Ordering guide  (LPW16 products are only available in the following stock luminaire configurations shown)

Catalog Number Description Master Pack, Qty UPC Code

LPW16-58BZ LPW16, 30W, 530mA, 4000K, 120-277V, Bronze textured paint 6 786034960540

LPW16-51BZPCB LPW16, 30W, 530mA, 4000K, 120V, Bronze textured paint, w/button photocell 6 786034960557

LPW16-78BZ LPW16, 40W, 700mA, 4000K, 120-277V, Bronze textured paint 6 786034960502

LPW16-78DGY LPW16, 40W, 700mA, 4000K, 120-277V, Dark gray textured paint 6 786034960489

LPW16-71BZPCB LPW16, 40W, 700mA, 4000K, 120V, Bronze textured paint, w/button photocell 6 786034960519

Stocked accessories - Ordering guide  (Must be ordered separately)

Catalog Number Description Master Pack, Qty UPC Code

LPWCVRPLT-BZ LPW Universal wall cover mounting plate, Bronze textured paint (none) 786034960618

LytePro LED

Small wall sconce LPW16

Project: 

Location: 

Cat.No: 

Type: 

Lamps:  Qty: 

Notes: 

Wall Mount



LPW16_LytePro_sconce www.stonco.com  11/18 page 2 of 3

Features

LPW16 wall sconce delivers 3,374 lumens at 36W, with an efficacy of 93 
lumens per watt.  Other wattages available per charts noted below--.   

• LP16W-5, 30W LED may effectively replace 70-100W HID luminaires2

• LP16W-7, 40W LED may effectively replace 100-150W HID luminaires1

• 4000K neutral white at 70 CRI (minimum) is standard

• Button photocell available in 120V, bronze luminaires only

• 5-year limited warranty, see philips.com/warranties for specific details

Performance/Specifications (LP16W-7)

Distribution Type 3

Initial Lumens 3,374
Average Wattage 36
Lumens/Watt 93
BUG Rating* B1/U0/G1
Luminaire Weight ~6lbs (2.7Kg)

Performance/Specifications (LP16W-5)

Distribution Type 3

Initial Lumens 2,698
Average Wattage 28
Lumens/Watt 96
BUG Rating B1/U0/G1
Luminaire Weight ~6lbs (2.7Kg)

Ratings/Approbations/Certifications

Ingress Protection IP65 Optical
DLC Listed DLC QPL
cETLus Certified for use in wet locations
Rated Ambient Temperature -40°C (-40°F) to 40°C (104°F)

Fixture Dimensions3

Accessory Dimensions (ordered separately)
LPWCVRPLT-BZ LPW Universal wall cover mounting plate, 0.08" aluminum, bronze 
textured paint (used to cover larger pre-existing opening or surfaces, field installed).  
Offers same J-Box pattern as luminaire or may lagged to wall using (4) knockouts.

10.0”

18.0”

Universal J-Box mounting hole pattern

8.5”

1.5”

16.5”

1.5”

0 1 2 3 4

1

2

3

4

0.5

2

1

0.2

LPW16-7  10' MOUNTING HEIGHT

MOUNTING HEIGHT 8' 10' 12'

MULTIPLIER 1.60 1.0 0.70

• Isolines shown at 2.0, 1.0, 0.5, & 0.2 FC.

• Choose mounting height. Use MULTIPLIER (X) 
EXISTING FC VALUE = NEW FC VALUE.

• FC values are based on initial lumen output.

• Gridline spacing is in units of chosen mounting height

• For LPW16-5 configuration, scale down by 29%.

Distribution Pattern

5.71” 5.14”

12.02” 5.71”

4.61”

2. Comparable equivalency to HID and other lamp sources depends on multiple criteria including mounting height, fixture spacing, efficiency, performance and 
 classification of the luminaire being replaced and application lighting criteria required for the given project.

3. PCB shown for placement only,  available on specific models only (see ordering guide). 

LPW16 LytePro LED small wall sconce



LPW16_LytePro_sconce www.stonco.com  11/18 page 3 of 3

General Description
The Stonco LytePro LED small wall sconce 
LPW16 combines excellent performance, design 
and value to meet the needs of the energy and 
budget conscious. The LPW16 is available for 
use in downward facing, surface wall mount 
applications, over recessed j-boxes or where 
power can be directly fed through back surface, 
whereby connections splices can be made inside 
the luminaire housing.  Five SKU's are available as 
in-stock configurations  only (2-day 
quick ship).  

40W Model: Two standard units are available in 
two different finishes.  120V button photocell is 
available in bronze only.  30W Model: Standard 
units available in bronze only, with and without 
photocell.  30W model is California Title 24 
compliant.    

Housing

Die-cast housing houses both the LED and driver 
assemblies. Design incorporates an integrated 
heat sink to maximize thermal performance and 
reliability.  Backplate is corrosion free, composite 
polycarbonate, with built-in level bubble, offers 
integral interlocking hook and mount design for 
easy installation.  

Mounting

Easy interlocking hook and mount housing/
backplate design for easy installation.  Mounts 
over 3.5", 4" octagonal j-boxes and single gang 
switch boxes or can be directly lagged to surface.  
Ensure proper steps for gasket/sealing luminaire 
to surface.

IP Rating

Optical compartment is IP65 rated.

LED Board and Array

Provides up to 93 lm/W in LPW16-7 and 96 lm/W 
in LPW16-5 at the system level. Standard color 
temp is 4000K +/- 250K, minimum 70 CRI.

Electrical

Driver efficiency (>90% standard). 120-277V.  
Temp range: -40°C (-40°F) to 40°C (104°F).  
Open/short circuit protection. Inherent surge 
protection up to (4KVA).  RoHS compliant.

Listings

Product is cETLus listed suitable for Wet 
Locations. Suitable for use in ambients from 
-40°C to 40°C (-40°F to 104°F). DesignLights 
Consortium® qualified. Stocked SKUs of the LPW 
family are made in China. 

Finish

Each luminaire receives a fade and abrasion 
resistant, electrostatically applied, thermally 
cured, triglycidal isocyanurate (TGIC) textured 
polyester powdercoat finish.   

Warranty

LPW16 luminaires, the LED arrays, and the drivers 
are all covered by a 5-year limited warranty. See 
philips.com/warranties for details.

LED Performance:

PREDICTED LUMEN DEPRECIATION DATA4,6

Ambient Temp. °C Calculated L70 hrs5 Reported L70 Per TM-215,6
Calculated Lumen Maint. % 

@60,000 hrs

up to 40°C >200,000 hrs >60,000 hrs 94.0%

4.  Calculated performance derived from LED manufacturer’s data and engineering design estimates, based on IESNA LM-80 methodology. 

     Actual experience may vary due to field application conditions.

5.  L70 is the predicted time when LED performance depreciates to 70% of initial lumen output.

6.  Reported per IESNA TM21-11. Published L70 hours limited to 6 times actual LED test hours.

LPW16_LytePro_sconce www.stonco.com  11/18 page 3 of 3

© 2019 Signify Holding. All rights reserved. This document may be subject to change.  
No representation or warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of the information  
included herein is given and any liability for any action in reliance thereon is disclaimed.  
All trademarks are owned by Signify Holding or their respective owners. 

LPW16_LytePro_sconce www.stonco.com  11/18 page 3 of 3

Signify North America Corporation 
200 Franklin Square Drive, 
Somerset, NJ 08873 
Telephone 855-486-2216

Signify Canada Ltd. 
281 Hillmount Road, 
Markham, ON, Canada L6C 2S3  
Telephone 800-668-9008

LPW16 LytePro LED small wall sconce



City of North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-53 
Page: 1 

Resolution No. 2019-53 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN 
FOR LOT 10, LIBERTY CENTRE – PART ONE NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
  
 WHEREAS, the owner and developer, Penn Street Group, LLC, has filed with the City 
Clerk a development site plan;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as:  
 

Lot 10, Liberty Centre – Part One, North Liberty, Iowa in accordance with the Plat 
thereof recorded in Plat Book 47, at Page 107, in the Records of the Johnson County 
Recorder’s Office, containing 1.59 acres, and subject to easements and restrictions of 
record;  

    
 WHEREAS, said site plan is found to conform with the Comprehensive Plan and the 
Zoning Ordinance of the City of North Liberty; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said site plan has been examined by the North Liberty Planning and 
Zoning Commission, which recommended that the site plan be approved with no 
conditions.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, 
does hereby approve the development site plan for Lot 10, Liberty Centre, Part One, North 
Liberty, Iowa.  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2019. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above 
was adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Community Visioning 
Project 

 























































 

 
 

Zoning Code Amendment 
 



North Liberty – 2019  Ordinance Number 2019-07 
Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF THE NORTH 
LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES  
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENTS.   
A. Chapter 169, Zoning Code – Development Regulations, of the North of the North Liberty 

Code of Ordinances (2017) is hereby amended by revising Section 169.06, Location of 
Accessory Buildings and Uses, Yards, to read as follows: 

 
169.06    LOCATION OF ACCESSORY BUILDINGS AND USES.  Accessory buildings and 
uses shall occupy the same lot as the main use or building.  No lot shall have an accessory 
building or use without the principal use.  No accessory building shall be used as a dwelling 
unit. 

1. Separation from Main Building.  All accessory buildings shall be separated from the 
main building by 10 feet. 

2. Private Garages.  No detached garage shall be located within the front yard area of 
any lot. An accessory building used as a private garage may be located in any 
portion of the rear or side yard under the following conditions: 

A. Maximum one private garage per lot.  

B. A maximum square feet gross building area not to exceed 30% of the rear 
yard area with a maximum size of 850 square feet.  

C. No portion of the structure located in a rear yard area shall be located in any 
of the following areas:  

(1) Less than four feet from an adjoining property line.  

(2) Less than 20 feet from a public or private alley.  

(3) Within any easement.  

D. No portion of the structure located in a side yard area shall be located in any 
of the following areas: 

(1) Less than the required side yard setback for the main building.  

(2) Within any easement.  

(3) Maximum building height of 15 feet. 

3. Storage Buildings.  All accessory buildings used for storage or other similar use may 
be located in any portion of the rear yard under the following conditions: 

A. Maximum 200 square feet gross building size.  



North Liberty – 2019  Ordinance Number 2019-07 
Page 2 
 

B. No portion of the structure shall be located in any of the following areas:  

(1) Less than four feet from any adjoining property line. 

(2) Less than 10 feet from a public or private alley. 

(3) Within any easement. 

C. Maximum building height of 10 feet.  

4. Other accessory uses. 

A. Swimming pools. No swimming pool shall be located within the front yard 
area of any lot, or closer than four feet from any adjoining property line. 

B. Play and recreational structures. No clubhouse, swing set, gazebo, slide, or 
similar uses or equipment shall be located within the front yard area of any 
lot.  

5. Front Yard Area.  No private garage or storage buildings shall be located in a front 
yard area. 

6. Accessory Uses in RS and RD Districts. 
A. Storage of wood, lumber, and other material where the land occupied by such 

storage is confined to one location in the rear yard area with a maximum 
area of one hundred square feet, provided that there are at least eight inches 
of free air space under such storage. 

B. Keeping of small animals commonly housed in a dwelling, but not for sale 
purposes.  Dog runs constructed solely for the purpose of confining dogs for 
exercising and feeding may be located in a residential zone, provided that 
they shall not be located in a front yard or side yard or closer than 10 feet to 
any lot line. 

7. Miscellaneous Parking and Storage.  No person shall park, keep or store, or permit 
the parking or storage of an inoperable vehicle, vehicle component parts, or 
miscellaneous junk and debris on any public or private property, in any zoning 
district, unless it shall be in a completely enclosed building.  This regulation does not 
apply to legitimate businesses operating in a lawful place and manner, in 
accordance with the zoning regulations, provided however, that any outside areas 
used for parking and storage shall be screened from public view if required by the 
regulations of the zoning district within which they are located. 

8. Accessory Uses in All Other Zones.  A conditional use permit is required for outdoor 
storage or display of any kind, except that 100 square feet or less of merchandise 
associated with the principal use may be displayed outdoors. 

9. Guard Dogs in all C, O/RP and I-1 Zone Districts.  Guard dogs may be allowed in all C, 
O/RP and I-1 Districts and dog runs constructed solely for the purpose of confining 
said watchdogs for exercising and feeding of the same, may be located in said 



North Liberty – 2019  Ordinance Number 2019-07 
Page 3 
 

districts provided that they shall not be located in a front yard, or side yard, nor 
closer than 10 feet to a lot line. 

10. Food Pantry.  One accessory building to provide services as a food pantry is allowed 
as an accessory use only under the following conditions: 

A. Permitted only as an accessory use for places of worship. 
B. A maximum of one accessory use building is allowed on the lot with the 

principal use structure in addition to one storage building or garage 
associated with the principal use structure. 

C. Commercial for-profit uses are expressly disallowed. 
D. Any type of housing, including transient housing, is expressly disallowed. 
E. The accessory use building and underlying land shall remain at all times in 

the same ownership as the principal use on the lot. 
F. Parking shall be provided in accordance with code requirements. 
G. Maximum accessory use signage:  1 sign, ground or wall, not larger than 8 

square feet. 
H. Maximum accessory building height:  1 floor. 
I. Principal structure setback requirements are to be observed for the 

accessory building described herein. 
J. Maximum size of the accessory building is to be 2,500 square feet, but in no 

case larger than the square foot total of the principal structure. 
K. Design standards apply to the accessory building as well as the principal 

building. 
L. A conditional use approval is required. 

B. Chapter 171, Zoning Code – Nonconforming, Conditional and Temporary Uses, of the 
North of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances (2017) is hereby amended by revising 
Section 171.03, Temporary Uses, to read as follows: 

171.03    TEMPORARY USES.  These regulations are intended to prescribe the conditions 
under which activities of limited duration may be conducted.  The intent is to prevent the 
creation of nuisances or annoyances to the occupants of adjacent buildings, premises, or 
property, and to the general public. Considerations for all types of temporary uses listed 
herein shall include:  compatibility with adjacent uses; potential adverse effects to the 
surrounding neighborhood because of odor, noise, dust, or other nuisances, especially as 
they may relate to the consumption of alcohol; parking needs, if applicable; and potential 
traffic increases and resulting impacts on the surrounding neighborhood or city at large.  
Temporary uses are categorized into the following three types: Minor Temporary Uses, 
Special Events, and Zoning Temporary Uses, as defined and restricted herein; and several 
special uses. 

1. Minor Temporary Uses.  Minor temporary uses are those very minor events or uses that 
are generally short in duration and have negligible effects on surrounding properties. No 
signage is allowed for these uses and no permit is required. Examples include: 

A. Events held inside existing structures. 



North Liberty – 2019  Ordinance Number 2019-07 
Page 4 
 

B. One-day gatherings on private property, such as graduation parties, reunions, and 
block parties, that do not include amplified music and are not arranged or held as 
commercial ventures. 

C. Model homes. 
D. Construction offices, trailers, and other equipment but only on active construction 

sites and as provided for in a construction permit. 
E. Garage sales, but see restrictions identified later in this section. 

2. Special Events.  Special events are those minor events or uses that are generally not 
more than five days in duration and occur infrequently except as noted. A permit is 
required, subject to approval by the City Administrator and issuance by the City Clerk. 
The following general regulations apply to these events and will be further defined and 
restricted in any permit issued: 

A. Each special event shall be described in a permit issued by the City Clerk prior to 
commencement of the event.  This permit shall be in addition to all other licenses, 
permits, or approvals otherwise required by any governmental entity. The City 
Administrator may impose such conditions on a special event permit as are 
necessary to meet the purposes of this chapter and protect the public health, safety 
and welfare, and adjacent uses.  Conditions and limitations that may be imposed 
may include, but are not limited to: 

(1) Yard setback and open space requirements; 

(2) Parking; 

(3) Fences, walls or other screening; 

(4) Number and placement of signs; 

(5) Vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress; 

(6) Property maintenance during the course of the activity; 

(7) Control of illumination, noise, odor, vibration or other nuisances; and 

(8) Hours of operation. 

B. Proof of ownership or a signed letter from either the property owner or said 
owner’s authorized representative for the property on which the activity is to take 
place shall be presented at the time the temporary permit is requested, as well as 
other contact information for individuals and groups involved. 

C. All unimproved parking areas and main walk areas shall be maintained to prevent 
mud tracking or dust entrainment. 

D. Sanitary facilities, either portable or permanent, shall sufficient in quantity and be 
made available to all employees, attendants and participants of the activity during 
its operation hours. 

E. A bond or cash deposit of up to $1,000.00, to be set by the City Administrator, shall 
be provided to the City to be used for reimbursement of costs for cleanup and 
repair of public property, police services, and any other damages to the City or its 
property resulting from the special event; however, the requirement for said bond 



North Liberty – 2019  Ordinance Number 2019-07 
Page 5 
 

or cash deposit shall be waived by the City Administrator for typical 
noncommercial “block parties” privately arranged by and for residents of a street 
or neighborhood and lasting less than six hours. 

F. All sites shall be completely cleaned of debris and temporary structures, including 
but not limited to trash receptacles, signs, stands, poles, electrical wiring, or any 
other fixtures and appurtenances or equipment connected therewith, within 48 
hours after the termination of the special event. 

G. The following activities are prohibited unless specifically approved in the permit: 

(1) Use of public property including streets and rights-of-way. 

(2) Consumption of alcohol. 

(3) Amplified music. 

(4) Signage, either on-site or off-site. 

(5) Temporary structures or uses located within setback areas established within 
this ordinance. 

H. A permit fee shall be set by the City and collected prior to issuance of the permit. 

I. Examples of special events requiring a permit issued by the City Clerk include: 

(1) Annual seasonal events such as Christmas tree sales, Halloween haunted 
houses, and community-sponsored events, permitted only in commercial and 
industrial zones. 

(2) Nonprofit events such as runs, walks, bike rides, and similar. 

(3) Temporary outdoor eating establishments, permitted only in commercial 
zones. 

(4) Parking lot sales, sidewalk sales (private sidewalks only), permitted only in 
commercial zones. 

3. Zoning Temporary Uses.  Zoning temporary uses are those events or uses that are 
generally more than five but not more than 90 days in duration and occur not more 
than once per year. The following general regulations apply to these events and will be 
further defined in any permit issued: 

A. Each use shall be described in a permit issued by the Code Official prior to 
commencement of the event. This permit shall be in addition to all other licenses, 
permits, or approvals otherwise required by any governmental entity. The Code 
Official may impose such conditions on a temporary use permit as are necessary to 
meet the purposes of this chapter and protect the public health, safety and welfare, 
and adjacent uses.  Conditions which may be imposed may include but are not 
limited to: 

(1) Yard setback and open space requirements. 

(2) Parking. 

(3) Fences, walls or other screening. 



North Liberty – 2019  Ordinance Number 2019-07 
Page 6 
 

(4) Signs. 

(5) Vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress. 

(6) Property maintenance during the course of the activity. 

(7) Control of illumination, noise, odor, vibration or other nuisances. 

(8) Hours of operation. 

B. Proof of ownership or a signed letter from either the property owner or said 
owner’s authorized representative for the property on which the activity is to take 
place shall be presented at the time the temporary permit is requested, as well as 
other contact information for individuals and groups involved. 

C. All unimproved parking areas and main walk areas shall be maintained to prevent 
mud tracking or dust entrainment. Use of unimproved areas may be prohibited for 
those uses that are permitted for a longer duration to avoid damaging those areas. 

D. Sanitary facilities, either portable or permanent, shall be made available to all 
employees, attendants and participants of the activity during its operation hours. 

E. A bond or cash deposit of up to $1,000.00, to be set by the City Administrator, shall 
be provided to the City to be used for reimbursement of costs for cleanup and 
repair of public property, police services, and any other damages to the City or its 
property resulting from the zoning temporary use. 

F. All sites shall be completely cleaned of debris and temporary structures, including 
but not limited to trash receptacles, signs, stands, poles, electrical wiring, or any 
other fixtures and appurtenances or equipment connected therewith, within 48 
hours after the termination of the special event. 

G. The following activities are prohibited unless specifically approved in the permit: 

(1) Use of public property including streets and rights-of-way. 

(2) Consumption of alcohol. 

(3) Amplified music. 

(4) Signage, either on-site or off-site. 

(5) Temporary structures or uses located within setback areas established within 
this ordinance. 

H. A permit fee shall be set by the City and collected prior to issuance of the permit. 

I. Examples of zoning temporary uses permitted include: 

(1) Stands for the sales of agricultural products. 

(2) Retail sales of nursery materials. 

(3) Other similar uses described in the definition of this type of use. 
4. Temporary Portable Storage Containers.  A permit is required prior to placement of 

any temporary portable storage containers, to be obtained from the Building 
Department. Requirements of the permit include the following: 



North Liberty – 2019  Ordinance Number 2019-07 
Page 7 
 

A. Maximum duration of use is no more than 30 days in any calendar year. 
B. No container shall be more than 8 feet in height, nor more than 16 feet in length in 

residential districts or 40 feet in length in all other districts. 
C. Containers shall not be stacked vertically. 
D. Containers shall be located totally on the owner’s lot, and no part of any container 

shall be located on any public property. 
5. Commercial Dumpsters. Commercial dumpsters located on a private lot for more than 

7 consecutive days are permitted only as part of another permit issued by the Building 
Department, such as a building permit or demolition permit; or through the 
commercial dumpster permit listed in item B of this section. Commercial dumpsters 
located on a private lot for 7 consecutive days or less do not require a permit.   
A. Commercial dumpsters permitted with issuance of another permit are subject to 

the following requirements: 
(1) Containers shall not be stacked vertically. 
(2) Containers shall be located totally on the owner’s lot, and no part of any 

container shall be located on any public property. 
B. Commercial dumpsters permitted by commercial dumpster permit are subject to 

the following requirements: Containers shall not be stacked vertically. 
(1) Containers shall be located totally on the owner’s lot, and no part of any 

container shall be located on any public property. 
(2) Maximum duration of use is no more than 30 days in any calendar year. No 

container shall be more than 8 feet in height, nor more than 16 feet in length in 
residential districts or 40 feet in length in all other districts. 

6 Garage Sales.  Garage sales are restricted to no more than one three-day event per 180-
day period. Garage sales occurring more frequently shall be considered a commercial 
retail sales business in a residential zone, which is prohibited. Permits are not 
required, but temporary sign regulations as specified in section 173.13 apply. 

 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on ________. 
Second reading on _____________. 
Third and final reading on _______________. 



North Liberty – 2019  Ordinance Number 2019-07 
Page 8 
 

 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
_______________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR    
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above 
was adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2019-07 in the North Liberty 
Leader on the ____ day of ______, 2019.   
 
________________________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Annexation 
 



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-54 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2019-54 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 
PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the owner of property located generally on the west side of Jones 

Boulevard and North of Forevergreen Road in the west part of the City has applied for 
annexation to the City of North Liberty;  

 
WHEREAS, the total property to be annexed is legally described below and included 

in Exhibit A, including street right-of-way:   
 
Lot 2, Chipman’s Subdivision; and the adjacent half-street of Jones Boulevard along 
the easterly property line. 

All county roadways adjacent to the annexation area are included in this legal description; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has agreed to the following relating to the property:  
1. Provide for the maximum tax increase deferral, which is: 

a. 75% exemption for years one and two 
b. 60% exemption for years three and four 
c. 45% exemption for years five and six 
d. 30% exemption for years seven and eight 
e. 15% exemption for years nine and ten; and  

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of North Liberty that said property be 
annexed to the City at this time. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North Liberty, 

Iowa, that the property referred to herein and shown and mapped in Exhibit A shall 
hereinafter be and become a part of the City of North Liberty, Iowa.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Planning Director is hereby directed to file 

the appropriate documentation with the City Development Board in order to proceed with 
the finalization of this annexation.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2019. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-54 
Page 2 

 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

April 18, 2019 

To:  Johnson County Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Notice of Annexation 
 
 

 

This memo is to notify you that the City of North Liberty will soon consider a voluntary annexation of one-lot 
property generally located on the west side of Jones Boulevard north of Forevergreen Road. A location map is 
shown on the right and the legal description is: 

Lot 2, Chipman’s Subdivision; and the adjacent half-
street of Jones Boulevard along the easterly property 
line. 
 
The annexation is scheduled to be on the agenda for 
public hearing and action by the City Council at their 
meeting on May 14, 2019 at 6:30 PM in the North 
Liberty City Council Chambers, 1 Quail Creek Circle.  
  
If you have any questions about this annexation, please 
contact me at your convenience. Thank you. 
 
 
 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
City of North Liberty 
3 Quail Creek Court, PO Box 77, North Liberty, Iowa   
52317 
319-626-5747 
dwheatley@northlibertyiowa.org  

 

mailto:dwheatley@northlibertyiowa.org
dwheatley
Text Box
Example of notices sent by certified mail.



 

 
 

Trail Network 
Improvements Project 

 



Coralville Wide Sidewalk

Trails Network
January 2017

Existing Trails: 19 Miles

Approved Network: 27.9 Miles

City Parks

Al
ex

an
de

r W
ay

FY18
Priority 3

W Penn Street

Penn Court

Ka
ns

as
 Av

en
ue

FY19
Priority 4

FY19
Priority 6

W Cherry Street

96
5/R

an
sh

aw
 W

ay

Recreation Center

& Library

FY19
Priority 5

Penn Meadows Park

E Penn Street

FY19
Priority 7Fox Valley Drive

Pheasant Lane

Sc
ale

s B
en

d R
oa

d

FY18
Priority 2

96
5/R

an
sh

aw
 W

ayW Zeller Street

N 
Jo

ne
s B

ou
lev

ar
d

Quail Ridge ParkFY19
Priority 8

FY19
Priority 9

St Andrews Drive

Pr
air

ie 
St

Centennial Park

North
Bend
School

FY20
Priority 10

W Penn Street

Ka
ns

as
 Av

en
ue FY18

Priority 1

S a
dl e

r D
ri v

e

Creekside
Park

FY21
Priority 11

4

4
4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

FY21
Priority 12
Park walk

FY21
Priority 13
Park walk

FY21
Priority 14
Park walk

FY21
Priority 15
Park walk

FY23
Priority 16

Add E Penn/NL Road to
Trails Plan. Trail grading
done with reconstruction
in CY2017. Trail paving to
be completed by
developers as adjoining
property is developed.
Already in place along
Dahnovan Estates
subdivision.

E Penn Street

No
rth

 Li
be

rty
 R

oa
d

Dubuque St

4

4

FY19 CIP
Attachment 2
Trails

.
0.5

Miles



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-55 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2019-55 
 
RESOLUTION FINALLY APPROVING AND CONFIRMING PLANS, 
SPECIFICATIONS, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE TRAIL NETWORK 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, has heretofore given 

preliminary approval to the plans, specifications, and estimate of cost (the “Contract 
Documents”) for the proposed Trail Network Improvements Project (the “Project”), as 
described in the notice of hearing on the Contract Documents for the Project and the taking 
of bids therefor; and 

WHEREAS, a hearing has been held on the Contract Documents on May 14, 2019; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North Liberty, 
Iowa, as follows: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby delegates to the City Clerk and/or the Project Engineer 
the duty of receiving bids for the Project until 10:00 o’clock a.m. on May 16, 2019 at the City 
Administration Building in the City.  At such time and place the City Clerk and/or the Project 
Engineer open such bids received and announce the results thereof.  The City Council will 
consider bids received at the City Council meeting to be held on May 28, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. at 
City Council Chambers in the City. 
 
Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to give notice of the hearing and 
taking of bids by publication as required by law, which publication shall be made not less 
than 4 and not more than 45 days prior to the date for receipt of bids and not less than 4 and 
not more than 20 days prior to the date of the said hearing.  The said notice shall be in the 
form substantially as attached to this resolution. 
 
Section 3. “Pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the Income Tax Regulations (the “Regulations”) of 
the Internal Revenue Service, the City declares (a) that it intends to undertake the Project, 
(b) that other than (i) expenditures to be paid or reimbursed from sources other than the 
issuance of bonds, notes or other obligations (the “Bonds”), or (ii) expenditures made not 
earlier than 60 days prior to the date of this Resolution or a previous intent resolution of the 
City, or (iii) expenditures amounting to the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceeds of the 
Bonds, or (iv) expenditures constituting preliminary expenditures as defined in 
Section 1.150-2(f)(2) of the Regulations, no expenditures for the Project have heretofore 
been made by the City and no expenditures will be made by the City until after the date of 
this Resolution or a prior intent resolution of the City, and (c) that the City reasonably 
expects to reimburse the expenditures made for costs of the City out of the proceeds of the 
Bonds.  This declaration is a declaration of official intent adopted pursuant to Section 1.150-
2 of the Regulations. 
 



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-55 
Page 2 

Section 4. The Contract Documents referred to in the preamble hereof are hereby finally 
approved, and the prior action of the City Council giving preliminary approval is hereby 
finally confirmed, and the Project, as provided for in the Contract Documents, is necessary 
and desirable. 
 
Section 5. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2019. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



Prepared by and Return to: 
Grant D. Lientz, 3 Quail Creek Circle, P.O. Box 77, North Liberty, IA 52317 319-626-5700 

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

This agreement is made and entered into by and between U.S. BANK NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION, successor by merger to First National Bank Iowa City, Iowa, and owner of the 
real estate described herein (hereinafter referred to as "Property Owner," which expression shall 
include its heirs, agents, successors or assigns), and the CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA, a 
municipal corporation, (hereinafter referred to as "City," which expression shall include its 
agents, successors or assigns). 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

For the sum of one dollar plus other valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Property Owner hereby quitclaims to the City a temporary construction 
easement (the "Easement") for the public purpose of improving sidewalks and trails (the 
"Project"), under, over, through and across the area generally as shown in Exhibit A, which is 
attached. 

The Easement is described as follows: 

The south 15-feet of Lot 5 North Liberty Commercial Park (final plat recorded in plat 
book 32 page 242 at the Johnson County Recorder's office), North Liberty, Johnson 
County, Iowa. (the "Easement Area") 

Further, the City agrees as part of the consideration noted above that the Property Owner will not 
be assessed for any costs for the design and construction of the Project, plans for which are on 
file at City Hall. 

The Property Owner and the City further agree that: 

1. The City shall be fully responsible for the costs of designing, constructing and 
maintaining the Project. 

2. The Property Owner shall not erect any landscaping, fences, or structures over, under or 
within the Easement Area without obtaining the prior written approval of the City 

1 



Administrator. 

3. The Property Owner shall not change the grade, elevation or contour of any part of the 
Easement Area without obtaining the prior written consent of the City Administrator. 

4. The City shall have the right of access to the Easement Area and have all rights of ingress 
and egress reasonably necessary for the use and enjoyment of the Easement Area as 
herein described, including but not limited to the right to remove any unauthorized 
obstructions or structures placed or erected on the Easement Area. City shall provide 
public ingress and egress to the Property Owner ' s property at all times, and shall at no 
point close both driveways as shown on Exhibit A. City shall provide directional and 
traffic signage indicating the location of the Property Owner's property and the access 
points. All signage shall be approved by the facility manager for the Property Owner 
(Mary Molloy, (515) 245-6311). City shall not use the Easement Area for staging or the 
storage of construction materials or equipment. 

5. The City agrees to indemnify and hold Property Owner, its successors, and assigns, 
harmless from and against any and all claims, liabilities, suits, causes of action, (including 
reasonable attorneys ' fees and costs) arising directly from City's acts or omissions in the 
Easement Area. City, and its contractors, shall carry a commercially reasonable amount of 
general liability insurance. 

6. Following the construction and installation of the Project and final acceptance by the 
City, the City shall restore the Easement Area to substantially the same condition as 
existed prior to the commencement of construction operations. 

7. The rights as described above in this Easement shall cease and terminate following the 
completion of the construction of the Project upon final acceptance by the City. In no 
event shall the Easement extend beyond December 31 , 2019, without the authorization of 
the Property Owner. 

Further, each of the Property Owner hereby relinquishes all rights of dower, homestead and 
distributive share, if any, in and to the interests conveyed by this Easement. 

The provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and bind the successors and assigns of the 
respective parties hereto, and all covenants shall apply to and run with the land. 

Dated this ___ day of ________ , 2019. 

PRO~ 

Signed: J-ti. -~ 

Signed r;/-7 r1'17-

CITY: 

Signed: ________ __ _ 
Terry L. Donahue, Mayor 

Signed: __________ _ 
Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 

2 



STATE OF :I:"o \A..)q, , COUNTY of ~ \:_ : ss 

On this 2.'-\~day of A-r, ,,.; l , 2019, before me, the undersigned, a 
• 

Notary Public in and for the State of :r0 ....,. q. , personally appeared fno.r~ 1\toUi. te' 
to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that ey are e 

\1ka {>yt1\o.cJ of U.S. Bank National Association, a national banking association, and that 
the instrument was signed on behalf of the corporation by the authority of its members, and that 
A\'\\,\ Bo..rVJ&A acknowledged the execution of the instrument to be their voluntary act and 
deed and the voluntary act and deed of the corporation, by it and by them voluntarily executed. 

~~~ 
Not~ d for the State of lowi !A~ ANN D. BARRON 

commission No. 724987 
My Comm. Expires/J;!d--11 

'Ow" 

TEOF Oh.,u , CO UNTY of B v+f er : ss STA 

On this iea ~ day of A:e t-~ \ , 2019, before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of c) h"lo , personally appeared ~ tlt(}tj_av'l , 
to me w s~~ally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that they ;;.e the 
~ p-~~ -E:!u,fe of U.S. Bank National Association, a national banking association, and that 
the instrument was signed on behalf of the corporation by the authority of its members, and that 
Ut~f\~ Jl\b7'c.. {\ acknowledged the execution of the instrument to be their voluntary act and 

rl~oo,0 q th ~ oluntary act and deed of the corporation, by it and by them voluntarily executed. 
~ .~Y. P(J '' ,, '-<. ~ ... ·,· ·1 ·1·····.Jr , ,, .-·q .... ~\ .. /~··(,/-:. 

~~::::::: ::;.,: \'\ JACOB BAILEY t \ /*} Notary Public, State of Ohio' 
-:.,~·-::. __ ... ··i~/ My Comm. Expires Mar. 27, 2022 

,,,r.~·6¥-" q,,,' 
'1,' "' \ \ \ 

teo~ 
OJ,:ro 

STATE OF IOWA, JOHNSON COUNTY: ss 

On this day of , 2019, before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Terry L. Donahue and Tracey 
Mulcahey, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that they are the 
Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, a municipal corporation ; 
that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of the municipal 
corporation, and that the instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of the municipal 
corporation by the authority of its City Council, as contained in Resolution No. of 
the City Council on the day of , 2019, and that Terry L. 
Donahue and Tracey Mulcahey acknowledged the execution of the instrument to be their 
voluntary act and deed and the voluntary act and deed of the corporation, by it and by them 
voluntarily executed. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

3 



6" PCC SIDEWALK 

row-
I 
I 

~ 
I 

EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT A 

0 20 40 80 ... ---· ,a • I 
SCALE I FEET 

580 W CHERRY STREET 
(LOT 5 NORTH LIBERTY COMMERCIAL PARK) 

OJ 
15' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 

·-I·, 

CHERRY STREET 

- - ---- -
' 



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-56 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2019-56 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN U.S. 
BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION AND THE CITY OF NORTH 
LIBERTY 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty is planning the Trail Network Improvements 

Project adjacent to property owned by U.S. Bank National Association;  
  
WHEREAS, a temporary construction easement is necessary for the project;  
 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their 

understanding concerning the agreement for the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreement between 

the City of North Liberty and U.S. Bank National Association is approved for the Trail 
Network Improvements Project, North Liberty, Iowa. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2019. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above 
was adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Assignment of Paying 
Agent for Bonds 

 



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-57 
Page 1 
 

MINUTES TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 
CONSENTING TO ASSIGNMENT OF 
TRUSTEE AGENT AGREEMENTS; 
ESCROW AGENT AGREEMENTS; AND/OR 
PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR AND 
TRANSFER AGENT AGREEMENTS 

North Liberty, Iowa 

May 14, 2019 

The City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, met on _______________, 2019, at 
______ o’clock __.m., at the _________________________________, North Liberty, Iowa. The Mayor 
presided and the roll was called showing the following members of the City Council present 
and absent: 

Present:   

Absent:  . 

Council Member ________________________ introduced the resolution hereinafter next set 
out and moved its adoption, seconded by Council Member __________________________; and after 
due consideration thereof by the City Council, the Mayor put the question upon the 
adoption of the said resolution and the roll being called, the following named Council 
Members voted: 

Ayes:   

Nays:  . 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as hereinafter set out. 

• • • • 

At the conclusion of the meeting and upon motion and vote, the meeting adjourned. 

  
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 

Attest: 

       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
  



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-57 
Page 2 
 

Resolution No. _________ 

RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO ASSIGNMENT OF TRUSTEE AGENT 
AGREEMENTS; ESCROW AGENT AGREEMENTS; AND/OR PAYING AGENT 
AND REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT AGREEMENTS 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA:  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa (the “City”), has 
adopted certain resolutions (the “Resolutions”) duly authorizing and providing for the 
issuance of certain bonds, notes or other obligations (collectively, the “Outstanding 
Obligations”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Resolutions, the City appointed Bankers Trust Company, 
Des Moines, Iowa (“Bankers Trust”), as the registrar and paying agent for the Outstanding 
Obligations and approved the execution of Paying Agent and Registrar and Transfer Agent 
Agreements with Bankers Trust with respect to the Outstanding Obligations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of certain Outstanding Obligations, the 
City may have also entered into certain Trustee Agent Agreements and/or Escrow Agent 
Agreements with Bankers Trust; and 
 
 WHEREAS, UMB Bank, n.a. (“UMB”) will acquire the corporate trust business of 
Bankers Trust, and any existing Trustee Agent Agreements; Escrow Agent Agreements; and 
Paying Agent and Registrar and Transfer Agent Agreements (collectively, such Agreements 
are hereinafter referred to as the “Agreements”) between the City and Bankers Trust will 
be assigned by Bankers Trust to UMB; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Bankers Trust and UMB have requested that the City consent to the 
assignment of the Agreements;  
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North 
Liberty, as follows: 
 

Section 1. The City hereby consents to the assignment of the Agreements from 
Bankers Trust to UMB.  The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute such 
documents as may be necessary to carry out the assignment of the Agreements, including 
the “Acknowledgment to Assignment” that has been prepared by Bankers Trust and 
presented to the City.   
 
 Section 2. The effective date of the assignment of the Agreements shall be as set 
forth in the Acknowledgment to Assignment.   
 
 Section 3. To the extent that the City has continuing disclosure requirements 
pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act relative to the Outstanding 



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-57 
Page 3 
 

Obligations, the City will cause a notice of the assignment of the Agreements to be posted 
on the MSRB Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA).  
 
 Section 4. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2019. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above 
was adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
  



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-57 
Page 4 
 

ATTESTATION CERTIFICATE 

STATE OF IOWA 
JOHNSON COUNTY  SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, do hereby certify that 
attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the City Council relating to 
adopting a resolution consenting to assignment of Trustee Agent Agreements; Escrow 
Agent Agreements; and/or Paying Agent and Registrar and Transfer Agent Agreements, as 
referred to therein. 

WITNESS MY HAND this _____ day of __________________, 2019. 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

 



 

 
 

Easement for Electrical 
Utility 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Preparer & Return to 
Information  Julie L. Pulkrabek, 4698 Fox Lane NE, Iowa City, IA 52240 319/354-2110 
 

EASEMENT FOR ELECTRIC UTILITY  
 

 The City of North Liberty, Johnson County, State of Iowa (“Grantor”), being the owner 
of the real estate described below does hereby grant to the Linn County Rural Electric 
Cooperative Association (“Grantee”), the right, privilege, and non-exclusive easement to enter in 
and upon its land to place, lines, install, lay, construct, operate, maintain, replace and remove, 
conduits, cable, pipes, and electric lines below the surface of the ground for the transmission and 
distribution of electric energy, including without limitation all appropriate cable, wire, 
transformers, ground connection, attachments, equipment, accessories, and appurtenances 
necessary and appropriate for the transmission and distribution of electric energy (“Facilities”).  
 

The easement is situated in the County of Johnson, State of Iowa, and described to-wit:  
 
In a part of the SW ¼ of S8-T80N-R6W in Johnson County, a 15 feet wide easement as 
shown on the Plat of Survey Auditor’s Parcel 2018060 attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
 

 The Facilities erected hereunder shall remain the property of Grantee.  Grantee shall have 
the right to inspect, rebuild, remove, repair, improve, and make changes, alterations, 
substitutions, and additions in and to its Facilities as it may from time to time deem advisable, 
including the right to increase or decrease the number and size of wires, cables, manholes, 
connection boxes, switching enclosures, transformers and transformer enclosures. 
 
 GRANTOR SHALL AT ALL TIMES KEEP THE EASEMENT CLEAR OF 
BUILDINGS, CONCRETE OR OTHER HARD SURFACE, STRUCTURES (ABOVE OR 
BELOW GROUND), TREES, AND SHRUBBERY OR OTHER LANDSCAPING OTHER 
THAN GRASS.  In the event Grantor places anything other than grass in the easement contrary 
to the terms of this Agreement, Grantor shall pay all costs of returning the easement to its prior 
appearance after Grantee accesses its Facilities for repairs and/or replacements.  In addition, 
Grantor shall reimburse Grantee for any additional costs to Grantee due to Grantor’s use of the 
easement area contrary to this Agreement.   
 



 Grantor may use the land within the easement for any purpose not inconsistent with the 
rights hereby granted, provided such use does not interfere with or endanger the construction, 
operation, replacement and maintenance of Grantee’s Facilities.   
 
 For the purposes of constructing, inspecting, maintaining, or operating its facilities, 
Grantee shall have the right of ingress and egress from the easement over lands of Grantor 
adjacent to the easement and lying between public or private roads and the easement, such right 
to be exercised in such manner as shall occasion the least practicable damage and inconvenience 
to Grantor. 
 
 Grantee shall hold Grantor harmless from, and reimburse Grantor for, all damage to real 
estate of the Grantor or his tenant, which may result from the construction, operation, and 
maintenance of said electric line of the aforesaid system at the above-described location, except 
damage caused by Grantor’s placement of anything other than grass in the easement or the 
negligence of Grantor or his tenant.   
 

Grantor shall be responsible for all other maintenance of the easement area, including 
mowing, maintaining the level of grade of the ground any repairs necessary due to nature.  
Grantee shall not, however, be responsible for reimbursement of such damages or costs involved 
in the event of the relocation of Grantee’s Facilities at the request of Grantor at a future date due 
to development of the underlying property. 
 
 This Easement and the acceptance thereof by Grantee shall be binding upon both the 
Grantor and the Grantee and its respective successors and assigns forever.  
 
Dated:______________________   
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Terry L. Donahue, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Tracy Mulcahey, City Clerk 
 
STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF JOHNSON, ss: 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________________, 2019 by Terry L. 
Donahue and Tracy Mulcahey, Mayor and City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, 
respectively. 
 
_________________________________________ 
Notary Public in an for the State of Iowa 



Exhibit A

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Line

JPfannebecker
Callout
15' utility easement
behind C2 on auditor's parcel 2018060



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-59 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2019-59 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CONTRACT AMENDMENT #1 
FOR THE WATER QUALITY INITIATIVE GRANT 
AGREEMENT FOR THE CORAL RIDGE AVENUE/RANSHAW 
WAY RECONSTRUCTION PHASE TWO BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF NORTH LIBERTY, THE CITY OF CORALVILLE AND THE 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND LAND 
STEWARDSHIP 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty was jointly awarded funds from the Iowa 

Department of Agriculture and Land Stewardship for water quality improvements to the 
Coral Ridge Avenue/Ranshaw Way Reconstruction Phase Two Project;  

  
WHEREAS, due to the poor weather, an extension of expiration is needed to June 30, 

2020;  
 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their 

understanding concerning the agreement for the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreement between 

the City of North Liberty, the City of Coralville and the Iowa Department of Agriculture and 
Land Stewardship is approved for the Water Quality Initiative Project. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2019. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

Urban Water Quality 
Initiative Grant 

Extension 
 



1 
 

WATER QUALITY INITIATIVE 
Urban Conservation Demonstration Projects 

 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:    URBAN18WQI-010 
Project Name:  Coral Ridge Avenue/Ranshaw Way Reconstruction Phase Two 

 
COST-SHARE GRANT CONTRACT AMENDMENT #1 

 
BETWEEN  IOWA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND LAND STEWARDSHIP 

(IDALS)  
                                

AND CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY & CITY OF CORALVILLE 
 

This amendment is entered into by the Iowa Department of Agriculture and Land Stewardship; 
hereinafter referred to as IDALS, and the Cities of North Liberty and Coralville; hereinafter 
referred to as the Grantees. 
I. Relative to the Coral Ridge Avenue/Ranshaw Way Reconstruction Phase Two Project 
 
II. Purpose of the Amendment 

A. In response to the Grantee’s request to extend the Project Completion Date in general 
accordance with Section 2 of the Cost-Share Grant Contract. 

The Project Completion Date will be amended from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. 

B. This Amendment does not change any other provisions of the agreement. 

 
III. Effective Date of this Amendment 

This amendment takes effect upon signature by all parties below. 
 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
                                                                      /         /         
Signature          Date 
 
CITY OF CORALVILLE: 
 
                                                                 /         /         
Signature          Date 
 
FOR IDALS: 
 
 
                                                                      /         /         
Julie Kenney, Deputy Secretary of Agriculture      Date 



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-59 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2019-59 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REVISED WATER 
QUALITY INITIATIVE GRANT AGREEMENT FOR THE CORAL 
RIDGE AVENUE/RANSHAW WAY RECONSTRUCTION PHASE 
TWO BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, THE CITY 
OF CORALVILLE AND THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF 
AGRICULTURE AND LAND STEWARDSHIP 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty was jointly awarded funds from the Iowa 

Department of Agriculture and Land Stewardship for water quality improvements to the 
Coral Ridge Avenue/Ranshaw Way Reconstruction Phase Two Project;  

  
WHEREAS, due to the poor weather, an extension of expiration is needed to June 30, 

2020;  
 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their 

understanding concerning the agreement for the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreement between 

the City of North Liberty, the City of Coralville and the Iowa Department of Agriculture and 
Land Stewardship is approved for the Water Quality Initiative Project. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2019. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-59 
Page 2 

ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above 
was adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Speed Limits 
 



 

36

22

11

24

1

12

34

27

2
8

29 30

21

26

26
A

32

6

5

15

27
B

9 10

33

23

17

31

4

14

18

13
16

27A

25

26
B

28

19

37

20

.

North Liberty Speed Limits
Map Keyed to Resolution
May 2019

n

12
15

4 3

19

20

35

0.25

Miles



City of North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-60 
Page: 1 
 

Resolution No. 2019-60 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING SPECIAL SPEED LIMITS IN 
THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
 

WHEREAS, Section 63.04 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances authorizes 
the City Council to determine and adopt by resolution speed limits on its streets as it 
deems reasonable and safe in accordance with Chapter 63 of the City’s Code;  
 

WHEREAS, such determinations and adoptions by the City Council shall be 
based on engineering, traffic investigations, and other conditions at any particular 
location; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has previously established speed limits 
throughout the City and has now reviewed the same. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of North Liberty, Iowa,  
  



City of North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-60 
Page: 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Zone #  Road General Location School Zones Regular Time Early Out Descripti
 

USNG Coord #1 Centerline USNG Coord #2 Centerline 
1  240th St E of Alexander to 965    35 Mph 15TXG1568824041 15TXG1415524010 
2  Alexander Way Penn to 240th    35 Mph 15TXG1407724005 15TXG1406123209 
3  Birch Ct Approaching Front Buford Garner 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1663122037 15TXG1658422042 
4  Birch St Approaching Front Buford Garner 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1634422050 15TXG1657522042 
5 N Dubuque St 965 to N of North Bend    45 Mph 15TXG1604423539 15TXG1576023849 
6 N Dubuque St Adjacent to Penn Elementary Penn Elementary 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1693722495 15TXG1658122865 
7 Not used         
8 S Dubuque St W of Dahnovan Estates    35 Mph 15TXG1752021843 15TXG1804621262 
9 S Dubuque St Unincorp section at church    35 Mph 15TXG1804621262 15TXG1844521183 

10 S Dubuque St W of NL Rd & Fronting Liberty High Liberty High   35 Mph 15TXG1835421183 15TXG1883121184 
11 W Forevergreen Rd W Corp Limit to 965    35 Mph 15TXG1578919965 15TXG1254219952 
12 S Front St Zeller to Forevergreen    30 Mph 15TXG1659819974 15TXG1657522385 
13 S Front St Fronting North Central North Central 8:10 am - 9:20 am 3:20 pm - 4:30 pm 8:10 am - 9:20 am 2:20 pm - 3:30 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1659819974 15TXG1659620268 
14 S Front St Fronting Van Allen Van Allen 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 7:15 am - 8:25 am 1:15 pm 2:25 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1659620268 15TXG1659620662 
15 S Front St Zeller to S of Hackberry Buford Garner 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1658321856 15TXG1657522385 
16 N Front St N&S of E Jefferson    35 Mph 15TXG1655723397 15TXG1655323648 
17 N Front St N of E Jefferson to E of Cedar Springs    45 Mph 15TXG1655323648 15TXG1678524002 
18 N Front St E of Cedar Springs to Corp Limit    55 Mph 15TXG1678524002 15TXG1713024004 
19  Hackberry Approaching Front Buford Garner 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1665421940 15TXG1658621940 
20  Hickory St Approaching Front Buford Garner 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1662422280 15TXG1658022278 
21 N Highway 965 N Corp Limits to N of Scales Bend    45 Mph 15TXG1466225224 15TXG1534224307 
22 N&S Highway 965 N of Scales Bend to S of Ashley    35 Mph 15TXG1534224307 15TXG1579720391 
23 S Highway 965 S of Ashley to S Corp Limits    45 Mph 15TXG1579720391 15TXG1579619966 
24 N&S Jones Blvd Penn to Forevergreen    35 Mph 15TXG1495123192 15TXG1498119975 
25 S Kansas Ave Fronting North Bend Elementary Clear Creek 

 
7:30 am - 8:45 am 3:20 pm - 4:30 pm 7:30 am - 8:45 am 12:35 pm - 1:45 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1331421756 15TXG1334021567 

26 N&S Kansas Ave S of West Lake Rd to St Andrews    35 Mph 15TXG1342322692 15TXG1334621567 
26A S Kansas Ave St Andrews to Forevergreen    35 Mph 15TXG1334021567 15TXG1336019957 
27B S Kansas Ave Approaching St Andrews from South Clear Creek 

 
7:30 am - 8:45 am 3:20 pm - 4:30 pm 7:30 am - 8:45 am 12:35 pm - 1:45 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1334321420 15TXG1334021567 

27  North Liberty Rd E of Arlington to N of Dahnovan    45 Mph 15TXG1844721953 15TXG1772823207 
27A  North Liberty Rd E of Juniper to E of Arlington    35 Mph 15TXG1772823207 15TXG1739623205 
27B  North Liberty Rd Dubuque to N of Dahnovan    35 Mph 15TXG1760021753 15TXG1844721953 
28  North Liberty Rd Dubuque to S Corp Limit    35 Mph 15TXG1844521183 15TXG1844621106 
29 W Penn St Kansas to Country Ln    45 Mph 15TXG1454623200 15TXG1331123188 
30 W Penn St Country Ln to 965    35 Mph 15TXG1454623200 15TXG1575323201 
31 W Penn St W Corp Limit to Kansas, EB only    45 Mph 15TXG1211123184 15TXG1249023185 
32  Scales Bend Rd N Corp Limit to 965    40 Mph 15TXG1574524198 15TXG1575425132 
33  St. Andrews Dr Fronting North Bend Elementary Clear Creek 

 
7:30 am - 8:45 am 3:20 pm - 4:30 pm 7:30 am - 8:45 am 12:35 pm - 1:45 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1334021567 15TXG1378521574 

34  St. Andrews Dr Kansas to Jones    35 Mph 15TXG1334621568 15TXG1496721536 
35  Stewart St Approaching Birch near Front Buford Garner 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1646222009 15TXG1646322045 
36  Vandello Dr Approaching Front Van Allen 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1654620323 15TXG1659320324 
37  Windsor Rd Approaching Front Van Allen 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 7:15 am - 8:25 am 2:15 pm to 3:25 pm 20 Mph 15TXG1664520620 15TXG1660020620 



City of North Liberty – 2019  Resolution Number 2019-60 
Page: 3 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2019. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    
 
_______________________________________   
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a 
meeting of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other 
proceedings, the above was adopted.  
 
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Council Vacancy 
 



 

of North Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

May 6, 2019 

 
Mayor and City Council 
City of North Liberty 
P.O. Box 77 
North Liberty, IA 52317 
 
 RE:   Vacancy in Elective City Office 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council members: 
 

I am writing in advance of the upcoming vacancy on the Council to provide 
information about the options available for filling that vacancy. My hope is that this memo 
will be useful in answering any procedural questions you may have. If you have any further 
specific questions not addressed herein, please don’t hesitate to let me know. 
Communications about the vacancy or deliberations concerning the procedures involved in 
filling it are subject to Iowa’s Open Meetings (Chapter 21) and Open Records (Chapter 22) 
laws. 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Generally speaking, state law requires that a vacancy on the Council be filled either 

by election or appointment. If a special election is held, the individual elected will serve for 
the remainder of the departed Councilor’s term. In this case, Ms. Goings’ term would extend 
to the end of 2021. If the Council chooses to appoint an individual to fill the vacant position, 
the individual so appointed will serve until a candidate is elected and seated following the 
next regular election this November.   

 
There is nothing in the Code which explicitly favors special elections over 

appointment. That decision is left to the Council’s good discretion. The Code does provide, 
however, for mandatory special elections in two scenarios: First, if the Council were to fail 
to take action for 60 days following the vacancy, a special election would be required. Second, 



2 
 

if the Council decides to fill a vacancy by appointment, a resident citizen may file a petition 
within two weeks of the decision to appoint, or within two weeks of the appointment itself, 
requesting that a special election be held. If a valid petition is filed, any appointment which 
may already have taken place becomes temporary, lasting only until a mandatory special 
election can be held at the earliest practicable date.  

 
GENERAL PROCEDURE 
 
No resolution is required for either the calling of a special election or the appointment 

of an individual. A motion, seconded, and followed by a voice vote is the appropriate method 
to initiate either action. The dates below all presume Council action on May 14. If no action 
is taken on that day, the dates will need to be adjusted accordingly. 

 
SPECIAL ELECTION 
 
If a majority of the Council decides to call for a special election at the May 14 meeting, 

the election date should be included as part of the motion. Since the vacancy will not officially 
exist until May 16, the motion should provide that the special election would be contingent 
upon the vacancy occurring on May 16, and that staff should send notice of the vacancy to 
the Johnson County Auditor on May 16 to formalize the vacancy. 

 
With respect to the date, the Code provides that the election take place “as soon as is 

practicable.” The earliest day for the special election to take place, by law, is the first Tuesday 
which is more than 32 days after the vacancy occurs. That date is June 18.  Ms. Carrie Nierling, 
the Elections Deputy at the Johnson County Auditor’s office, recommends that the special 
election, if called, be held on either June 18, June 25, or July 9. July 2 is not recommended 
because of its proximity to a holiday. A special election on June 18 would be held in the 
library, and one on the 25th would be held in the recreation center on the lower level.  

 
Some considerations for the Council when determining a date might be that the main 

floor of the library provides easier access, whereas the recreation center option gives 
potential candidates an additional week to file their nomination papers. Nominations for the 
vacant seat will require 25 signatures. The nomination period begins as soon as the County 
Auditor is informed that a special election has been called.  

 
According to conversations with the Johnson County Auditor’s office, the costs 

associated with conducting a special election are likely to be similar to those of the most 
recent special election, or around $3,000.00. 
 

APPOINTMENT 



3 
 

 
 Publication of notice of the Council’s intent to fill a vacancy by appointment is 
required between 4 and 20 days prior to the appointment itself. If a majority of the Council 
determines that appointment is appropriate, then the motion and second on the May 14 
meeting should be that the Council intends to appoint a new Councilor at the May 28 meeting. 
A decision made on May 14 about the Council’s intent to appoint a new Councilor does not 
have to specify who will be appointed on May 28. Following such a vote on May 14, the City 
Clerk would submit notice to the North Liberty Leader on May 15, providing notice about the 
expected action on May 28, and notifying citizens of their right to petition for a special 
election. Assuming publication on May 23, citizens would have the right to file a petition 
calling for a special election with the City Clerk no later than June 11. 
 
 Following the decision to appoint on May 14, the Council would effect such 
appointment by voice vote during the May 28 meeting. An appointment made on May 28 is 
effective immediately. The term for a Councilor appointed on May 28 would extend until 
after the next regular election, in November. There would then be four seats up for election 
this November:  the three four-year terms that are currently scheduled to be up for election, 
and a fourth, two-year term to fill the remainder of Ms. Goings’ term. 
 

PETITION FOR SPECIAL ELECTION 
 

 To be valid, a petition calling for special election must have a number of signatures 
equal to or greater than fifteen percent of the number of votes cast for candidates for those 
offices in the preceding regular election, divided by the number of seats filled. In this case, 
turnout from 2017 requires a petition to have 74 signatures. The City Clerk will determine 
the validity of those signatures. If a special election is called by petition on or prior to June 
11, then the term of the appointment made on May 28 lasts only until the winner of that 
special election can be seated. The timeframes for doing so would follow the general 
requirements set forth above, but specific dates would need to be coordinated again with the 
Johnson County Auditor’s office. 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
 The above memorandum is intended to provide the Mayor and Council with a basic 
procedural framework, so that you can re-familiarize yourself with which options are 
available to fill a vacancy, and which actions are required by law. If you should have any 
further questions on or arising from any of the above, please don’t hesitate to let me know. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 

       
      Grant D. Lientz 
      City Attorney, City of North Liberty 



 

 
 

Additional Information 
 



 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
April Permit Report: 
 
One hundred seventy one permits were issued in April with estimated construction value of 
$3,865,312.00.  Fifteen permits issued for new single family dwelling units. Staff completed 
335 inspections.   
 
 
Certificate of Occupancy: 
 
Forty‐one certificates were issued for various projects including new dwelling units, 
commercial unit, rental units and several renovation projects. 
 
 
Rental/Code Enforcement: 
 
Nineteen rental permit applications were received in April.  Thirty‐eight rental inspections 
were completed along with forty‐nine code enforcement complaints were handled in April.        
 

 
2018 International Building and Fire Codes: 
 
Over the past year the Building and Fire Department staff members have reviewed the 2018 
International Codes. Staff also met with other jurisdictions to discuss proposed amendments. 
Copies of staff’s proposed code amendments were provided to Iowa City Home Builders 
Association for their review and comments. April 29th the public was given an opportunity to 
attend an open forum meeting with Board of Appeals, Fire Chief Platz, Fire Marshal Hardin and 
Building Official Tom Palmer. No public comments were received at the April 29th meeting.       

 

 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Tom Palmer, Building Official

CC:  City Administrator 

Date:  5/7/2019 

Re:  Monthly Report 



April 2019
Monthly Permit Reports

Department of Building Safety
319-626-5713

www.northlibertyiowa.org

Code Permit Purpose Permits Construction Value Permit Fees Bldgs. Units Notes
1 New Single Family Dwelling 11 $2,786,420.00 $29,977.86 11 11
2 New Single Family Dwelling Attached 4 $700,000.00 $8,846.88 2 4
3 New Townhouse 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0
4 New Multi-Family Housing 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0
5 New Commercial 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0
6 New Industrial 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0
7 School 0 $0.00 $0.00
8 Residential Alteration 0 $0.00 $0.00
9 Residential Addition 10 $61,494.00 $1,216.50
10 Commercial Alteration 0 $0.00 $0.00
11 Commercial Addition 4 $33,250.00 $836.97
12 Industrial Alteration 0 $0.00 $0.00
13 Industrial Addition 0 $0.00 $0.00
14 Other 95 $254,148.96 $7,075.51
15 Public 0 $0.00 $0.00  
16 Manufactured Home 1 $30,000.00 $322.97 1 1

Totals 125 $3,865,312.96 $48,276.69 14 16

SFD Attached are zero lot line units
Townhouse are 3 or more units with shared side walls and have a rear yard area





Certificate of Occupancy Monthly Report

Applicant Parcel Address Date C.O. 
Issued

Balanced Design Consulting-Alan Pittman & 
Justine Zimmer 

993 236th Street Unit 3 4/30/2019

Steve & Julie Hansen 1270 Trinity Lane 4/30/2019

Kacena Real Estate Management LLC 440 Bradley Place Unit 7 4/24/2019

Hartwood Salon-Leah Ostby 565 Cameron Way Unit 104 4/25/2019

Shananhan Lawncare dba Custom Landscapes 993 236th Street Unit 4 4/23/2019

Kacena Real Estate Management 80 Circle Drive Unit 6 4/23/2019

Megan Recker Design 650 Pacha Parkway Suite 3 4/17/2019

Jalapeno Mexican Restaurant-Alexander Perez 40 Sugar Creek Lane Unit 5 & 6 4/16/2019

Holiday Mobile Home Court-Briana Evans 248 Holiday Lodge Road 4/30/2019

Zoning Certificate 

Zoning Certificate 

Manufactured Home

Rental

Rental

Zoning Certificate 

Zoning Certificate 

Rental

04/01/2019 - 04/30/2019

Permit Type

Zoning Certificate 



Certificate of Occupancy Monthly ReportLance Mekota Construction 995 236th Street Unit 4 & 5 4/11/2019

Darts and More 2 Hawkeye Drive Unit 102 4/10/2019

Brittany L. Benninghoven 10 Alydar Drive 4/25/2019

Corridor Kitchens-Rick Corkin 995 236th Street Unit 2 4/5/2019

Beachy Plumbing LLC-Joshua Beachy 320 Broadmoor Place 4/4/2019

Alexander N. Place 415 Washington Avenue 4/4/2019

Bradley J. Shannon 1002 Maple Street 4/4/2019

Thomas Schneider 215 Brookfield Avenue 4/22/2019

Newbies Real Estate LLC-Brooke E. Braem 545 Penn Court Unit 5 4/5/2019

Steve McCoy Construction 40 Sugar Creek Lane Unit 5 & 6 4/17/2019

Smart Insight-Rajini Matharasi 4 Hawkeye Drive Suite 105 4/12/2019

Ron LeClere 1875 Tupelo Drive 4/22/2019

Rental

Rental

Building  

Zoning Certificate 

Rental

Rental

Zoning Certificate 

Zoning Certificate 

Rental

Rental

Zoning Certificate 

Zoning Certificate 



Certificate of Occupancy Monthly ReportLivingspace LLC-Liren Zhang 105 Alydar Drive 4/4/2019

Brandon Combs-Martin Combs Custom Homes 1350 Suttner Drive 4/26/2019

Peter T. Lower 245 Heritage Drive 4/10/2019

Super Sweet Construction-Dusty Overman 565 Cameron Way Unit 104 4/11/2019

Patrick Denahey 20 Penn Oaks Drive 4/4/2019

Thomas D. & Caroline M. Litterer 1029 Cory Court 4/12/2019

NL Homes LLC 1247 Mary Lane 4/30/2019

NL Homes LLC 1242 Mary Lane 4/30/2019

Jamie & Hannah Watson 420 Locust Drive 4/5/2019

Duane Musser-Watts Group 1330 Franklin Street 4/25/2019

Jennie Kingery 137 War Admiral Lane 4/29/2019

Lucas Grout- Eastern Iowa Building, Inc. 955 236th Street 4/1/2019

Building  

Building  

Building  

Building  

Building  

Building  

Building  

Rental

Building  

Rental

Building  

Building  



Certificate of Occupancy Monthly ReportCurtis & Nicole Strong 220 N. McKenzie Lane 4/23/2019

Dylan Robson-Robson Homes 745 Pace Court 4/9/2019

Dylan Robson-Robson Homes 760 Pace Court 4/8/2019

Ryan Abraham 1236 Ronald Way 4/18/2019

Ryan Abraham 1234 Ronald Way 4/16/2019

Ryan Abraham 1232 Ronald Way 4/16/2019

Ryan Abraham 1230 Ronald Way 4/18/2019

Frank Lenane 1180 Ivy Lane 4/17/2019

Total Records: 41

Building  

Building  

Building  

Building  

Building  

Building  

Building  

Building  



New Businesses

Tenant Name Parcel Address
Heartwood Salon 565 Cameron Way Unit 104 

Megan Recker Design 650 Pacha Parkway Suite 3 

Jalapeno Mexican Restaurant 40 Sugar Creek Lane Unit 5 & 6

Darts and More 2 Hawkeye Drive Unit 102 

Smart Insight LLC 4 Hawkeye Drive Suite 105 

 

04/01/2019 - 04/30/2019



Case Date Case # Complaint
4/2/2019 3490 have installed a hot tub and run electrical wiring without the required permits

4/2/2019 3491 outside storage of miscellaneous junk and debris
4/5/2019 3492 No Zoning Compliance permit application 
4/5/2019 3493 No Zoning Compliance permit application 
4/8/2019 3494 Natural drainage of land has been changed due to natural debris piled along 

fence.  
4/8/2019 3495 trailer parked on the landscaped area of the property
4/8/2019 3496 washer and dryer and misc. trash on property
4/8/2019 3497 dumpster enclosure door is in disrepair 
4/8/2019 3498 trailer is parked on the landscaped area of the property
4/8/2019 3499 vehicle parked on the landscaped area of the property
4/9/2019 3500 tenants are dumping cat litter and other food waste onto the yard
4/9/2019 3501 vehicle parked on the landscaped area of the property

4/10/2019 3502 renting without a permit 
4/11/2019 3504 renting without a permit 
4/11/2019 3505 past due annual backflow perventer test report 
4/11/2019 3506 past due annual backflow perventer test report 
4/11/2019 3503 Void
4/12/2019 3507 past due annual backflow perventer test report 
4/12/2019 3508 past due annual backflow perventer test report 
4/16/2019 3509 placing two for sale signs on property
4/16/2019 3510 have failed to cut grass and weeds to within City code requirements
4/18/2019 3512 outside storage and garbage and rubbish on property
4/18/2019 3513 Install RPZ backflow preventer on the water supplied backup sump pump unit 

4/18/2019 3514 Unsafe sidewalk has created a trip hazard
4/18/2019 3515 Unsafe sidewalk has created a trip hazard
4/18/2019 3516 Unsafe sidewalk has created a trip hazard
4/18/2019 3517 illegal sign on property
4/18/2019 3518 Broken fence has fallen into neighbors yard

Code Enforcement Report

04/01/2019 - 04/30/2019

Page: 1 of 2



4/22/2019 3519 outside storage and dumpsters not in the required enclosures
4/22/2019 3520 parking vehicles on the landscaped area of the property
4/22/2019 3521 illegal sign on property
4/22/2019 3522 trailer parked on the landscaped area of the property
4/22/2019 3523 illegal sign on property
4/23/2019 3524 have left unattended trailers parked on the street
4/25/2019 3525 past due annual backflow perventer test report 
4/25/2019 3526 Removal snow and ice from public sidewalk
4/25/2019 3527 past due annual backflow perventer test report 
4/25/2019 3528 have allowed the unit to be occupied by someone other than the owner without 

the owner having a valid Rental Permit
4/29/2019 3529 illegal sign on property
4/29/2019 3530 illegal sign on property
4/29/2019 3531 illegal sign on property
4/29/2019 3532 multiple illegal signs on property
4/29/2019 3533 illegal sign Scanlon Farms
4/29/2019 3534 illegal sign on property
4/29/2019 3535 Junk vehicle
4/29/2019 3536 illegal sign on property
4/30/2019 3537 illegal sign on property
4/30/2019 3538 Unlicensed electricians on the job site 
4/30/2019 3539 Wetland not draining

Page: 2 of 2



Breakdown of Backflow Preventer Compliance

116

5

174

6

102

0

82

0

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Domestic- (121) Fire- (180) Irrigation- (102) Isolation- (82)

Non Compliant Compliant
Fire Protection / Fire Detector Bypass=Fire
Domestic / Domestic Bypass=Domestic
Lawn Irrigation=Irrigation
All Others=Isolation



Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

North Liberty 100 99 85 101 385 84.25%
Madison Township 8 6 6 9 29 6.35%
Penn Township 7 5 9 8 29 6.35%
Mutual Aid 3 3 3 5 14 3.06%
Total Responses 118 113 103 123 457

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

100 - Fire 3 3 6 7 19 4.16%
200 - Over Pressure, Overheat 2 1 3 0.66%
300 - EMS 49 56 56 65 226 49.45%
400 - Hazardous Condition 10 1 3 2 16 3.50%
500 - Service Call 8 2 4 11 25 5.47%
600 - Good Intent Call 23 29 23 22 97 21.23%
700 - False Alarm & False Call 25 19 11 15 70 15.32%
800 - Severe Weather
900 - Special Incident Type 1 1 0.22%
Total Responses 118 113 103 123 457

North Liberty Fire Department
2019 Monthly/YTD Response Report

North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Fire District

North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Type of Incident

North Liberty
84%

Madison 
Township

7%

Penn Township
6%

Mutual Aid
3%

2019 District Responses YTD
(Rounded Percentage)

North Liberty Madison Township Penn Township Mutual Aid

100 - Fire, 4.16%

200 - Over 
Pressure, 

Overheat, 0.66%

300 - EMS, 
49.45%

400 - Hazardous 
Condition, 3.50%

500 - Service Call, 
5.47%

600 - Good Intent 
Call, 21.23%

700 - False Alarm 
& False Call, 

15.32%

800 - Severe 
Weather, 0.00%

900 - Special 
Incident Type, 

0.22%

2019 Type of Incidents YTD 
(Percentage)



North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Risk Management Zone
Year Percent

January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date
1000 - Mutual Aid 3 3 3 5 14 3.06%
1001 - City of North Liberty 6 5 3 3 17 3.72%
1002 - City of North Liberty 8 6 6 10 30 6.56%
1003 - City of North Liberty 22 15 19 18 74 16.19%
1004 - City of North Liberty 19 28 13 17 77 16.85%
1005 - City of North Liberty 23 20 21 27 91 19.91%
1006 - City of North Liberty 3 1 3 7 1.53%
1007 - City of North Liberty 5 12 12 5 34 7.44%
1008 - City of North Liberty 14 13 10 18 55 12.04%
1009 - Madison Township 8 6 6 9 29 6.35%
1010 - Penn Township 7 5 9 8 29 6.35%

North Liberty Fire Department
2019 Monthly/YTD Response Report



Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

Ovelapping Incidents 29 20 17 20 86 18.82%
Total Responses 118 113 103 123 457

North Liberty Fire Department
2019 Monthly/YTD Response Report

North Liberty Fire Department Overlapping Incidents

Sunday, 54
Saturday, 69

Friday, 70
Thursday, 79

Wednesday, 62
Tuesday, 64

Monday, 59

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90

2019 Responses by 
Day of Week

14
12

9

14

9

13
11

17 17

24

29

20

33

21

32

23

19
21

26

21
19

22

14

17

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

0:00

1:00

2:00

3:00

4:00

5:00

6:00

7:00

8:00

9:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

19:00

20:00

21:00

22:00

23:00
N

U
M

BE
R 

O
F 

IN
CI

DE
N

TS

2019 Responses by 
Hour of Day

0

50

100

150

200

2019 Overlaping Incident 
by Month



January February March April May June July August September October November December
2015 84 77 85 74 85 91 87 93 100 78 91 76
2016 98 87 101 97 72 84 85 86 92 106 106 123
2017 98 95 92 75 114 108 124 104 115 121 105 118
2018 112 95 109 113 116 131 125 122 89 96 92 100
2019 118 113 103 123 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

North Liberty Fire Department 2019 Monthly/YTD Response Report
2015 - 2019 Monthly Incident Response Comparison



Calls Percent
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec To Date To Date

Responses for Month 118 113 103 123 457
Barney, Mallory 19 7 10 7 43 9.41%
Burleson, Lynn 11 9 10 25 55 12.04%
Chiles, Branden 7 4 5 12 28 6.13%
Coleman, Leah 2 0 0 0 2 0.44%
Coyle, Jim* 1 0 0 0 1 0.22%
Dolezal, Dan 3 12 2 29 46 10.07%
DuBay, Rob 16 13 12 8 49 10.72%
English, Joseph 13 10 21 7 51 11.16%
Hardin, Bryan 22 21 11 22 76 16.63%
Jaeger, Jeff 32 26 33 31 122 26.70%
Johnston, Mike 9 8 3 9 29 6.35%
Keitel, Brad 2 1 8 5 16 3.50%
Kelchen, Jessica 13 9 2 7 31 6.78%
Kochanny, Chris 23 15 19 34 91 19.91%
Kramer, Adam 6 2 3 8 19 4.16%
Lundquist, Jonathan 31 19 12 15 77 16.85%
Marks, Isaac 27 15 9 20 71 15.54%
McDonald, James 12 26 12 11 61 13.35%
Messinger, Matt 11 15 19 9 54 11.82%
Miller, Jordan 16 11 24 27 78 17.07%
Moliterno, Brad 3 1 8 7 19 4.16%
Newkirk, Richard 7 0 14 4 25 5.47%
Pecora, Tyler 4 5 4 7 20 4.38%
Place, Alexander 10 15 15 10 50 10.94%
Platz, Brian 38 37 39 52 166 36.32%
Reasner, Rich 7 6 7 10 30 6.56%
Rennekamp, Bryan 11 6 12 19 48 10.50%
Rhomberg, Peter 8 2 0 0 10 2.19%
Schellenberg, Phillip 10 12 14 13 49 10.72%
Schmooke, Bill 17 11 7 14 49 10.72%
Schoening, Austin 9 8 14 4 35 7.66%
Schultz, Christine 3 8 10 3 24 5.25%
Scott, Sam 10 10 3 5 28 6.13%
Smith, Landon 31 34 34 6 105 22.98%
Story, Carson 11 9 9 0 29 6.35%
Voparil, Craig 4 2 3 5 14 3.06%
Welter, Jonathan 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
White, Austin 51 44 38 39 172 37.64%
White, Geoffery 17 21 19 14 71 15.54%
Wichmann, Megan 12 15 8 7 42 9.19%
Williams, Justin 6 1 5 0 12 2.63%
* Fire Dept. Chaplain

Member Responses By Month

2019 Monthly/YTD Response Report
North Liberty Fire Department



1 White, A 51 White, A 44 Platz 39 Platz 52

2 Platz 38 Platz 37 White, A 38 White, A 39

3 Jaeger 32 Smith 34 Smith 34 Kochanny 34

4 Lundquist 31 Jaeger 26 Jaeger 33 Jaeger 31
Smith McDonald

5 Marks 27 Hardin 21 Miller 24 Dolezal 29
White, G

1

2

3

4

5

1 White
2 Platz
3 Jaeger
4 Smith
5 Kochanny 91 19.91%

37.64%
36.32%
26.70%

172
166
122

22.98%105

North Liberty Fire Department
2019 Monthly/YTD Response Report

Top 5 Calls Made by Members by Month

2019 - Top 5 Calls Made by Year-To-Date

Jul

JunMayAprMarJan Feb

DecAug Sept Oct Nov



  

TO: City Administrator and City Council 
FROM: Jennie Garner, Library Director  
DATE April 4, 2019 
SUBJECT:  Library Monthly Report 
 

 

 

At a Glance   
Computer Usage 2730 

Database Use 8151 

Meeting Room Use 1108 

Door Count 13497 
 

 

  

 
Library News 
 
The North Liberty Library’s podcast, Stork Storytime TALKS, was featured in American 
Libraries, the magazine of the American Library Association. The magazine is sent to about 
65,000 individuals and organizations worldwide so that’s some pretty great visibility for NLCL. 
The story was even retweeted by a library in the UK. You can read the article, written by 
Assistant Director, Jennifer Jordebrek, here: 
https://americanlibrariesmagazine.org/2019/05/01/stork-storytime-podcast-that-delivers/ 
 
The Flamingo Flocking fund-raiser for our endowment has been a great success. Our marketing 
and events coordinator, Melanie, came up with this fun fund-raising even to help raise 
awareness about the library’s endowment and the fantastic Communications team helped 
create this great video to launch it: 
https://www.facebook.com/NLibertyLibrary/videos/2442409445770890/. The flamingos will be very 
busy visiting many North Liberty homes during the month of May – the whole calendar filled up 
for the month in less than a week. We are thrilled that some who have found that the Flocking 
was sold out have still wanted to donate to the endowment.  
 
A special thank you this month to the Coralville/North Corridor Rotary for their ongoing support 
of the library. Each year we are invited to a lunch to celebrate literacy and receive a generous 
contribution. 
 
The library launched a new online streaming video service in April. The database is called 
Kanopy and features 1000s of great films. We’ve already seen good usage in the first month 
and are excited to add this to Digital Johnson County, our partnership with Coralville and Iowa 
City Public Libraries.  
 
  
Scroll down for highlights of some of the diverse programs offered at the library in April. 

https://americanlibrariesmagazine.org/2019/05/01/stork-storytime-podcast-that-delivers/
https://www.facebook.com/NLibertyLibrary/videos/2442409445770890/


  

April Program Highlights  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
                                  
Fun 

                       
The Cedar Rapids Museum of Art 
brings their Doodlebugs program to 
the library.  



To: Mayor and City Council 
 Parks and Recreation Commission 
 City Administrator 
 
 
From: Guy Goldsmith, Director of Parks, Building and Grounds  
 
Date: May 1, 2019 
 
Re:    Monthly Report 
  
 
We performed various building maintenance tasks as needed this month. We installed a new camera system at 
the fire station.     
 
We picked up trash and pet waste stations from our Parks as needed this month.  
   
We performed ground and landscape maintenance.  We have trimmed and pruned trees as needed. We applied 
turf grass fertilizer and landscaping pre-emergent as needed.  
 
We continue to maintain ball fields and facilities this month. We continue to make improvements to the Babe 
Ruth field in preparation for Liberty High Baseball. Park staff continues to maintain ball fields on weekends in 
support of weekend tournaments.   
 
Parks staff continues to maintain and paint lines on the soccer fields in support of the soccer programs.  The 
program runs through the end of May. 
 
Park staff prepared and tilled the Community Gardens site located at the northeast corner of Penn Meadows 
Park next to the barn in preparation of the May 1st garden plot renters. This program has been a great success. 
 
We graded and seeded around the new concrete trail at Penn Meadows Park.  
 
The annual Muddy Creek and Bike Trail Clean-up on April 6th was a success. I would like to thank the Tree & 
Storm Water Board, Boy Scouts and Cub Scouts, City staff, and the Public for helping with removing trash and 
debris along Muddy Creek and the trail that had accumulated over the winter. 
 
I would like to personally thank all City staff that participated in the Employee Day of Service on April 25th.  City 
staff provided much needed pond, waterway and trail clean-up.   
 
The Parks Department participated with the Streets Department on April 27th in the annual City Wide Clean- up 
Day.  
 
There are a number of projects currently underway and I have been overseeing and attending progress meetings 
regarding the dog park, the new roundabouts and new trails projects that will be completed this summer and fall. 
 
Planning and preparation continues for the July 13th Blues & BBQ celebration.   
 
We have 6 of our 10 seasonal employees currently working. The remaining employees will start work later this 
month.  



North Liberty Police 
Monthly Report 

April 2019 
 
 

Training: 
 

• Attended Canine, Bomb Squad, Dive team and 
SERT team training for the month.  (40 hours) 

• Officers completed 1 hour of Autism awareness 
training for the month.  (20 hours) 

• Several officers and office staff attended a city 
sponsored training on Diversity awareness 

• Sergeant attended training in East Moline for 
managing the property and evidence room.   

• An investigator attended the two week long school 
on intelligence gathering and available resources. 
(80 hours)  

• Two officers attended a week long Field Training 
Officer School in East Moline (80 hours)  

• Three firearms instructors were recertified in Glock 
Armoring (24 hours) 

• Two officers attended training in Milwaukee for 
Honor Guard training (80 hours). This was the 
initial training for our county wide team. 

• Two officers attended training to become CPR or 
Basic Life Support instructors (8 hours)  

• All officers attended mandatory training for rifle, handgun, shotgun and Defensive Tactics 
(168 hours).  

• Our GTSB coordinator attended the state and national conference on traffic safety.  This 
was paid out of the state grant.   

 
Public Relations: 
 
• Participants graduated from the Citizen’s Police Academy 
• Officer assist with the Kites for Kids festival 
• Officer participated and served donuts at the Dudes and Donuts events at North Bend 

Elementary  
• Two officers competed in a Garner Reading contest 
• Officers assisted with the Easter Egg Hunt at Centennial Park.   
• We participated in the National Prescription Drug Take back day and took in over 200 

pounds of prescription medication. 
• Officers worked the Liberty HS prom and overtime was paid by Liberty. 
• Officers worked traffic control for the Run Crandic marathon through town. The overtime will 

be reimbursed by the Run Crandic Committee. 
• Held the official ground breaking Ceremony for the PD.   
• An officer completed three child seat safety inspections this month. 
• An employee participated in the Employee Day of Service/City Clean-up day. 
 
 
 

  
Traffic Contacts 404 

Parking Contacts 27 
Vehicle Inspections 26 

Vehicle Unlocks 37 
Crash Investigations 19 

Public Assists 401 
Assist Other Agency 121 

    Crimes Against Persons Report 13 
      Crimes Against Property Report 17 
                                   Other Reports 47 
                                              Arrests 45 
                                           Warrants  6 

Alcohol/Narcotics Charges 30 
Crimes Against Persons Charges 11 
Crimes Against Property Charges 4 

Other Charges 17 
Animal Calls 85 

Total Calls for Service 2301 
*Total Calls for Service for the year 9018 



 
 
 
North Liberty Police Monthly Report Continuation --- April 2019 

 

 
Equipment:                                                                                                       
 
• Leasing of new two new copiers for the department. The lease for one of our previous 

machines was up, so the company offered to buy us out of our other contract.  
• We outfitted two new officers with all duty gear, weapons and vests.  
• Officers who needed to replace their vest have been fitted and the order has been placed.    
• Still getting the last vehicle outfitted and removing items from the older vehicle. It will be in 

service next month. 
• In process of researching and replacing our handguns to 9mm. Pistols are replaced every 5 

years and we are coming up on that deadline in the fall.   
 
 

Enforcement: 
 
• We have had multiple runaway reports once the weather has gotten nicer.  All juveniles 

have been located and returned home.   
• Officers worked texting and traffic safety grant programs in North Liberty. 
• Have seen almost a significant increase in animal calls from last month. 
 

 
Department Admin:     

 
• A new hire, Ames Helzer (505) was sworn in and has started.  He is a certified officer and 

started his field training this month.  This was the July hire that we started early because of 
funding and availability.     

• A new hire, Jacob Minick (503) was sworn in and will start the academy on April 29th and 
graduate on August 16th.  

• Continue to work with the Architect on design features.  A time lapse camera was installed 
to show the progression on the site  

 
Respectfully Submitted by Chief Diane Venenga and Alisha Ruffcorn 5/6/2019 
 
 
 
 



To: Mayor, City Council and City Administrator 
From: Shelly Simpson, Recreation Director 
Date: May 1, 2019 
 

Monthly Report – April 2019 
 
Recreation Update: 
April was a busy month for summer registration. First Week totals; Recreation was $75,263.36 which was mainly 
summer camp registration and Pool was $41,785.27 which was mainly swim lesson registration; totaling $117,048.63. 
 
The Easter Egg Hunt this year on April 13 was held inside due to weather. This is an annual event co-sponsored with the 
Optimist Club. Run CRANDIC came through town on April 28. 
 
Done Done Services was awarded the bid to remodel the women’s locker room. Work will begin soon.   
 
Our fire sprinkler system has been repaired and is back in service.  
 
We began our switch over of our operations software to RecDesk. We have trainings every Wednesday afternoon and 
began entering custom lists and will focus on facility reservations next. 
 
 
Pool Update: 
Indoors, Arthritis Aqua and Aqua Zumba are two programs that continue with strong participation. April session of swim 
lessons totaled 230 participants.  
 
New outdoor pool play feature was delivered and installation began but is slow due to rain/weather. Opening of the 
outdoor pool on Memorial Day weekend could be impacted due to new installation work, weather, cure time, fill and 
water chemistry.  We will do our best to keep the public posted. 
 
Summer session of swim lessons begins week of June 10.  
 
 
Miscellaneous: 
See attached reports for more information. 
 
 
Submitted by Shelly Simpson 
 



To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Michael Pentecost, Street Superintendent 

Re: April 2019 Monthly Report 

May 1, 2019 

The following items took place in the month of May that involved the Streets Department. 

• Locating of City Utilities (504 job tickets) ongoing  
a. This is a 47% increase from April 2018  

• Continued animal control services (20 responses to animal issues) 
• Cemetery plot locates (3 in total) 
• Projects 

a. Forevergreen Rd (West of Covered Bridge Rd)  
i. Contractor finished paving for detour section and continues project to the west 

b. Forevergreen Rd (East of Covered Bridge Rd) 
i. Section has been closed and contractor has started removals 

c. Kansas Ave Project 
i. 97% complete 

d. Penn St / Front St Corridor Improvement Project  
i. 21% complete 

e. Main St Project  
i. 31% complete 

f. North Bend Drive Project  
i. 30% complete 

• A large amount of time was spent working with contractors, utility companies, and property 
owners on projects this month 

• Traffic Control Committee met and reviewed residential requests 
• Sign installation, repair, and replacement included additional Pedestrian Crossing signs on Scales 

Bend Rd 
• Winter equipment completely removed and put into storage 

a. All trucks serviced for the season 
• Staff training 

a. Operations of Ranshaw Way/Cherry St bridge lights  
i. Lights have been programmed to change colors for various holidays 

b. Lock out/ Tag out and PPE training by IAMU for staff 
c. PCC street repair training by APWA  

• Leaf collection 
a. 3 week process and collected 85 cubic yards total 

• Street sweeping  
a. Every public street completed 
b. Around  480,000 pounds of dirt, sand, and debris removed and hauled to the landfill 

costing around $11,400 
c. This process keeps our storm systems and area ponds cleaner from run off and silt 



• Staff conducted monthly safety inspections for all street equipment and buildings 
a. Annual Fire Extinguishers inspected by Summit Fire Protection 

• All 8 civil defense warning sirens were inspected, tested, and maintenance for season 
• City Spring Cleanup Day on April 27th 

a. Shop was prepared for public to efficiently drop off items 
b. Numerous trash containers were filled 
c. Batteries, tires, electronics, yard debris, and appliances were all separated for recycling 

purposes 
• Staff installed, monitored race, and removed traffic control devises for the Crandic Run on April 

28th 
• Johnson County Emergency Management requested equipment and sandbags for flooding 

around the Davenport area 
a. Crews delivered these items late Tuesday evening on 4-30 

 

 

 

 

Ranshaw Way/Cherry St Bridge lighting 

 

 



 

Street sweeping dumpsite 

 

   

Gas mowers and tires recycled from North Liberty Clean Up Day 

 



Communications Department Report  
Submitted to the North Liberty City Council 
May 2, 2019, for the month of April 2019 

Book Madness 
Nick, reading Sleepy the Goodnight Buddy, beat Jillian, reading Giraffe Problems, in Garner 
Elementary School’s Book Madness read off. Honestly, it wasn’t even close. (Jillian would like to 
note that Nick has a superior book.) 

Blues & BBQ 
Preparations continue for the July 13 event. In April, volunteer opportunities opened (you can see 
the list and signup at northlibertyblues.org/volunteer), tickets went on sale for Pig & Pint Prelude 
fundraiser held on July 12, we selected food vendors and prepared materials for our May 1 
music lineup announcement in cooperation with The Englert. The stage lineup features three-time 
Grammy-nominee Shemekia Copeland with support from Southern Culture on the Skids, Gloria 
Hardiman and the Monday Night All-Stars, Kevin Burt, Joe and Vicki Price and Brian Johannesen. 
Details will be available at northlibertyblues.org as they’re released.  

Placemates 
Registration for Placemates, a program to help residents of North Liberty get to know their 
neighbors by matching them for potluck dinners held concurrently in homes throughout town, 
closed at the end of the month, with 80 households signing up. In May, Jillian will match 
households, make introductions via email and let hosts and guests take over for their Thursday, 
June 20, potlucks. 

Soil Quality Restoration 
Jillian started work with North Liberty, Coralville and Iowa City staff to develop a marketing plan 
for soil quality restoration to residents throughout the metro area. The work is funded by an Iowa 
Department of Natural Resources grant and with Water Words That Work, an environmental 
outreach firm. 

Centennial Park Pavilion 
Nick worked with Parks Director Guy Goldsmith and a group of University of Iowa engineering 
students on a design for Centennial Park’s future pavilion. The project is to get a layout, size, cost 
and design that could be used to move forward with additional engineer and identifying funding 
sources. The project team is due to present their final work on May 1. 

(Un)official Minutes 
We’ve been trying to figure out how to make public meeting agenda and decisions more 
approachable and shareable when they’re often not very visual. Joel has worked out a mobile-



friendly video format, similar to other mobile-friendly outlets like Now This, in which to include 
items either before or after public meetings, depending on the item. This is somewhat 
experimental, and we’ll continue to learn and tweak as we go, but the format allows for inclusion 
of short items and highlights for which we don’t have a lot of video or can’t produce full 
segments, often because they’re considerations of future action. 

Other items 
Derek and Nick have been working through items to prepare for upgrades to council chamber 
production equipment. Audio improvements have been installed, but some video upgrades will 
require some additional outside work, such as networking and wiring, to fully implement. 

Staff had interviews with KCJJ, the Gazette and the Iowa City Press-Citizen about various city 
projects and updates. 

We produced and submitted City Council meetings to the Iowa City government channel. 

Staff represented the city in meetings with Run CRANDIC, the Iowa City Area Chamber of 
Commerce, LINC (a joint networking event with ICAD, Think Iowa City and Chamber), and the 
Complete Count Committee. 

We sent news releases about bike month, boards and commission openings, Run CRANDIC, the 
NLPD’s ground breaking, and more. 

  



Completed Videos 
Title Requested By Date Completed Duration 
Social: Trout Stocking Communications March 30 0:01 
Eye on North Liberty: Special Projects Communications April 1 0:02 
Planning and Zoning Commission City Administration April 2 1:18 
Social: ICCSD’s Book Madness Final Showdown Communications April 4 0:01 
Parks and Recreation Commission City Administration April 4 1:04 
City Council City Administration April 9 2:13 
Tree and Storm Water Advisory Board City Administration April 10 0:30 
Unofficial Minutes April 9 Communications April 10 0:01 
Library Board of Trustees City Administration April 15 1:05 
Social: Art Show Promo Communications April 16 0:02 
Social: Kites for Kids Communications April 16 0:02 
Board of Adjustments City Administration April 17 0:40 
Unofficial Minutes April 23 Communications April 23 0:01 
City Council City Administration April 23 0:47 
Promo: Blues & BBQ Communication April 24 0:01 
Promo: Flamingo Flocking Communications April 25 0:02 
Social: May Bike Month Communications April 25 0:01 
Transit Task Force City Administration April 25 1:28 
Eye on North Liberty: Fire Department Communications April 30 0:03 
Total completed productions: 19  Duration of new video: 9.37 hours 

  



52317 Podcast  
Release schedule is every three weeks; episodes can be found at northlibertyiowa.org/52317.  

 

Downloads is the number times the podcast file was downloaded to a player, including a podcast client, webpage-embedded 
player or other device since its publication. Numbers are as reported by service provider LibSyn as of the date of this report. 

North Liberty Bulletin Email Newsletters 
Release schedule is first Thursday of the month; subscribe at northlibertyiowa.org/subscribe. 

 

Recipients is the number of email addresses to which an issue of the Bulletin was sent and is represented by the top line. Opens is 
the number of unique recipients who opened the Bulletin and is represented by the bottom line; the standard open rate for government 
is 25.4%. Numbers are as reported by service provider Mailchimp. 

248
164

659

182
256

207 241
191 164 161 161 137

437

186
145 143 156

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

1
: Revisit

2
: Big Picture

3
: M

osley's

4
: G

eek C
ity

5
: Rusciano's

6
: A

lphaG
raphics

7
: C

olony Pum
pkin Patch

8
: South Slope

9
: Z's C

atering

1
0

: Santa C
laus

1
1

: Sugar Bottom
 Bikes

1
2

: D
iventures

1
3

: N
LXF

1
4

: Sugapeach

1
5

: C
ham

paign

1
6

: BD
L

1
7

: M
oxie

7,185

8,179 8,151 8,100 8,091 8,241 8,206 8,334 8,401 8,467 8,468 8,527

3,093

3,914

2,786
2,178

2,988
3,619 3,481

2,105

2,796 2,841

1,903
2,320

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April



Social Media  
Month Facebook  

 new likes 
Facebook  

reach 
Twitter  

 new follows 
Twitter 

impressions 
Instagram  

 new follows 
Nextdoor 
members 

April 2019 81 30,549 16 47,400 94 (1597) 3,746 
March 2019 44 29,403 35 37,600 36 (1503) 3,571 
Feb 2019 138 47,462   26 42,500 34 (1503) 3,443 
Jan 2019 139 51,797   35 59,800 56 (1469) 3,391 
Dec 2018 65 40,942   31 36,700 47 (1413) 3,344 
Nov 2018 105 24,841   25 131,000 30 (1366) 3,308 
Oct 2018 108 29,171   42 48,200 44 (1336) 3,294 
Sept 2018 51 22,594 34 42,200 38 (1292)  
Aug 2018 74 37,607 16 47,900 64 (1254)  
July 2018 66 37,754 38 38,900 41 (1190)  
June 2018 187 45,976 37 52,800 28 (1149)  
May 2018 93 34,878 43 35,800 15 (1121)  
April 2018 378 45,215 51 33,300 17 (1106)  

Facebook new likes is the net number of new users liking the city’s Facebook page; it does not include new followers. Facebook 
reach is the number of unique users who saw any of the city’s Facebook content, reported on a 28-day period. Twitter new 
follows is the net number of new users following the city on Twitter. Twitter impressions is the total number of times a tweet from 
the city was shown to a user. Instagram new follows is the net number of new users liking the city’s Instagram account. 
Nextdoor members is the number of verified North Liberty residents who are users and able to receive our agency messages. 

Website Statistics (Current month and preceding 12) 
Month Sessions Users Pageviews Pages/Session Avg. Session 
April 2019 21,682 9,835 50,265 2.32 1:34 
March 2019 18,133 8,395 43,353 2.39 1:40 
Feb 2019 19,034 13,083 45,011 2.36 1:36 
Jan 2019 25,585 16,481 58,191 2.27 1:26 
Dec 2018 18,985 13,284 44,524 2.35 1:26 
Nov 2018 14,768 10,616 34,895 2.36 1:30 
Oct 2018 17,086 11,993 39,449 2.31 1:31 
Sept 2018 18,665 12,756 40,576 2.17 1:24 
Aug 2018 20,367 14,238 47,348 2.31 1:37 
July 2018 25,344 17,206 57,350 2.26 1:33 
June 2018 28,979 18,652 69,385 2.39 1:41 
May 2018 27,326 18,336 53,837 1.97 1:30 
April 2018 25,779 17,159 49,636 1.93 1:34 

Sessions is the number of time-bound user interactions with the website. Users is the number of unique devices loading the site in 
that month. Pageviews is the total number of pages loaded or reloaded. Pages/Session is the number of pages loaded per 
session. Avg. Session is the average length, in minutes and seconds, of user interactions. All stats are monthly. 



 

 

City of North Liberty 
3 Quail Creek Circle 

PO Box 77 
North Liberty, IA 52317 

 
 
 

Phone: 319-626-5738 
Fax: 319-626-5739 

northlibertyiowa.org 

 Water Pollution 
Control Plant 

Iowa 
TO:  City Council, Mayor and City Administrator 
 
FROM:  Drew Lammers 
 
DATE: May 1, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  April 2019 Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP) Report 
 
1. All scheduled preventative maintenance at the plant and lift stations was completed.  Staff 

also stayed very busy with numerous operational jobs throughout the month.  . 
 
2. This month’s staff safety meeting was on respiratory protection. Employees completed the 

target solutions tasks as well as reviewed safety training topics and procedures as a group. 
 
3. Staff completed the cleaning of all 10 lift station wet wells. This requires all grease to be 

removed then flushing the well with clean water while spraying down the walls and floors.   
 

4. Operations and Laboratory were busy with quality control testing.  Quarterly sampling was 
split with U of I State Hygenic Lab and all results came back accurate with our results.  
Whole Effluent Toxicity Testing was done on our Effluent which passed with 0 of 5 fish kills 
from any of the dilutions. DMR-QA testing was completed this month as well.  This requires 
us to test unknown samples and submit results to a testing agency and the EPA.  The study is 
open until July but we will likely not see our results until Aug. 

 
5. Ace Electric performed all of our annual generator preventative maintenance for the plant and 

lift stations.  All generators remain in good working condition. 
 

6. Bi-Annual recovery clean were performed on all 4 membrane Trains.  Each train is manually 
washed from above then soaked overnight in citric acid.  The cleaning process is repeated the 
following day and chlorine is then used to clean biological fouling from the membranes. 

 
We also removed all of our newest cassettes from Train 4 for a visual inspection of the air 
diffusers underneath.  This is a newer air system than our original 3 membrane trains but 
proves to be doing well.  We found a few areas that will require a follow up inspection but we 
will have the manufacture on-site to confirm any adjustments needed. I have included a few 
photos of us performing these inspections. 

 
 

Drew Lammers  
WPCP Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

City of North Liberty 
3 Quail Creek Circle 

PO Box 77 
North Liberty, IA 52317 

 
 
 

Phone: 319-626-5738 
Fax: 319-626-5739 

northlibertyiowa.org 

 Water Pollution 
Control Plant 

Iowa 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

City of North Liberty 
3 Quail Creek Circle 

PO Box 77 
North Liberty, IA 52317 

 
 
 

Phone: 319-626-5738 
Fax: 319-626-5739 

northlibertyiowa.org 

 Water Pollution 
Control Plant 

Iowa 
 

 
 
 

 



 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Greg Metternich, Water Superintendent  
 
Re: Monthly Report 
 
May 8, 2019  
 
 
 
We read 8,424 radio reads last month. We had to re-read approximately 26 accounts.     
 
We had a very busy month with 126 finals, 52 water shut-offs, 56 re-connects for water service, 
153 notices delivered, 10 new meter set inspections, 14-meter change outs, 14 MIU change outs, 
assisted 10 customers, and 62 calls for service.  Our monthly total service work averaged 24 calls 
per day. 
 
For the month of April, we treated a total of 36,157,000 gallons of water.  Our average daily flow 
was 1,205,000 gallons, and our maximum daily flow was 1,974,000 gallons. We injected an 
additional 9,378,000 gallons of water into the ASR well. We finished the injection process on 
April 10th it took a total of 40 days and we averaged around 900,000 gallons a day. The total 
amount of water used in the distribution system was 2.21% higher than last April.   
 
Portzen Construction has finished with the last few changes at the treatment plant. They removed 
about 20’ of three-inch vent pipe and replaced it with a 24” pipe, took care of a few minor 
electrical repairs, and installed a new chemical injection tap. Pinnacle Engineering finished 
making changes to the SCADA system, Steve Troyer and I have tested the operating system 
everything is working as it was designed.  
 
April was a very busy month for construction projects. Maxwell Construction had us shut down 
water at the intersection of Penn and Front, they were able to make the connection to the new 
water main for the roundabout, that water main has been tested and put into service, they also 
replaced an old hydrant and installed a new inline valve along Front Street.  
 
We hosted a Consumer Confidence Report workshop at the water plant last month. The 2018 
CCR has been approved by the IDNR for circulation.  
 
  
 
Water Superintendent, 
Greg Metternich 



North Liberty Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 
Thursday, May 2, 2019 

Proposal of Agenda 
7:00PM 

 
NEW BUSINESS:  
1. Approve minutes:   Approve April 4 meeting minutes. 
      
2. Public Comments/Concerns:  Guest introduction and concern. 
 
3. Board Member Terms:  (3) board member terms concluding June 30, 2019; Matt, Troy & Jami 
     Accepting applications, new and renewals by May 23. 
      
4. Building & Grounds Report:  Parks Monthly Report 
 
5. Summer Preparations:  Summer Camp, Knight Riders update 
     Outdoor Pool – Play Feature Installation 
     Community Gardens 
     Field Rentals 
 
6. RecDesk Software:   Staff has begun work in switching to new operations software. 
     Public will be asked in near future to set up new accounts online. 
     Full transition to Recdesk targeted for July 1  
      
7. Memorial Day Weekend Hours: May 25-27:  Rec Center / Indoor Pool: 8am-6pm 
       Outdoor Pool:  12(noon)-6pm depending on weather,   
         equipment installation and water chemistry. 
 
8. Upcoming Events:   Summer Programs:  Most begin this week 
     Bike2SchoolsCool  May 8, please register for count, thanks. 
     Bike Rodeo / Slow Roll  May 18 
     Indoor Disc Golf Challenge May 18 
     Summer Free Lunch & Fun June 3 
     Summer Camp / Knight Riders June 3 
     Youth Tennis Lessons  June 4 
     Jr High Disc Golf  June 6 
     Free Fishing Weekend  June 8 
     Swim Lessons – First session June 10 
 
9. Any new issues not on agenda? 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
1. Recreation Monthly Report:  Recreation Review from previous month. 
      
2. Any old issues not on agenda? 
 
CONCLUSION:  
1. Next Meeting:   Thursday, June 6, 2019 at 7:00 PM  

Location: City Council Chambers at 1 Quail Creek Circle  
 
2. Adjourn 

 
 



 
North Liberty Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 

Thursday, April 4, 2019 
Board Members Present:   Matthew Eckhardt, Jami Maxson, Megan Lehman, Amalia Gedney-Lose, Troy Carter, Richard 
Grugin 
Others Present: Shelly Simpson, Brian Motley, Guy Goldsmith, Tim Hamer 
Meeting called to order: 7:00 pm 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 

1.  Approve minutes:  Minutes from March 7 meeting approved.  
 
2.  New Board Member:  Welcome to Richard Grugin, newly appointed. 
 

      3.  Public Comments-   Concern voiced re condition of tennis nets by end of last season.  Guy aware of damage  
   (weather-related) and needs to be addressed. 
 
      4.  Pickleball Advocates-   Presentation by Duane Miller, representing contingent of pickleball players (have 300 local 
 members). Main purpose is to request building dedicated outdoor courts.  They are happy with availability of 
 indoor court use, equipment shed, and lines on tennis court.  Participation has greatly increased (locally was 
 12,577 in 2018, likely underestimate) and can be improved by dedicated courts.  Proposing dedicated courts in 
 North Liberty, particularly at Penn Meadows.  Presented option to construct 6 courts in NW corner of park, as 
 well as 2 different options to modify tennis court area to create dedicated courts.  Discussion undertaken re: 
 funding, best sites, amount of tennis court usage, other facility options to lessen demand/shift demand.  Will 
 consider further; since tennis court needs resurfacing and area has lights, best option at present may be to have 
 part of area redone as dedicated pickleball court. 
 
      5.  Building and Grounds Report- Busy opening parks and restrooms, getting ready for mowing season, preparing for 
 field use, work on the dog park (trees removed and chipped). 
 
      6.  Summer Brochure: Registration has begun for programs offered May-August.  
 

 7. Upcoming Events:    Community Garden signup  April 5/April 12 
    Easter Egg Hunt   April 13 
    Spring Shed Scavenger Hunt  April 26 
    Celebration Belle trip   April 26 
    Run Crandic    April 28 
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
      1.  Recreation Monthly Report: Bids received for remodel of women's locker room, also work on snow fence on roof 
 (at main entry to protect patrons) and do gas line support on roof, fire/sprinkler system repairs.  April 24 is 
 planned date for new pool play feature.  Switching recreation software, changing to Rec Desk on July 1, patrons 
 will need to re-register. 
 
       2.  Old issues:  Public forums/committees - research continues, waiting to speak with new city attorney. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
        1. Next Meeting  Thursday, May 2, 2019 at 7:00PM 
    Location: City Council Chambers at 1 Quail Creek Circle 
 

2.  Adjourned at 8:01 pm 
 

 Minutes submitted by Jami Maxson 
 



 
To:  Park & Recreation Commission Board Members 
 Mayor, City Council and City Administrator 
From:  Shelly Simpson, Recreation Director  
Date:  May 1, 2019  
Re:  Monthly Report – April 2019 
  

Program Summaries – April 
Swim Lessons:    

Adult Lessons: 4 participants 
Parent Tot: 28 participants 
Tadpoles:  15 participants 
Level 1:  Weekday, 13; Sat 14; 27 participants  
Level 2:  Weekday, 15; Sat 14; 29 participants  
Level 3:  Weekday, 14; Sat 12; 26 participants  
Level 4:  Weekday, 16; Sat 0; 16 participants   
Level 5:  Weekday, 14; Sat 0; 14 participants  
Level 6:  Weekday, 14; Sat 0; 14 participants   
Private - T: 31 participants   

TH: 26 participants  
 Totaling;  230 participants this session 
 
Pool Programs:  

Early Bird Aqua Aerobics:  3 participants, plus drop-ins.  
Easy Does It:    6 participants, plus drop-ins.  
Water Resistance AM:  4 participant, plus drop-ins.  
Aqua Boot Camp:   4 participants, plus drop-ins.  
Arthritis Foundation Aqua:  24 participants, plus drop-ins.  
Noodle Triathlon Workout:  1 participant, plus drop-ins.  
Aqua Zumba: 10am  2 participants, plus drop-ins. 
  11am  7 participants, plus drop-ins. 
  7:15pm  6 participants, plus drop ins. 
Aqua Aerobics, Toning:  4 participants, plus drop-ins. 
Blended Lifeguard Class: 11 participants 
First Aid:   canceled 
 

Preschool:  
Kids Campsite:    This month; 775 participants  
Lucky Duck:    This month $ 83.00 collected  
Wiggle Worms:    3 participants, plus drop-ins.  
Music & Movement:   6 participants, plus drop-ins. 
Kinder Club -  T:  8participants, plus drop-ins. 
  TH:  7 participants, plus drop-ins.  
Tippi Toes:  Baby Ballet 17 participants 
  Ballet Tap Jazz: 15 participants 
  Hip Hop Jazz: 3 participants 
Tippi Toes -  Toddler & Me: 5 participants  
  Princess Camp: 9 participants 
 

Youth Programs:   
 Recsters AM = 12 participants; PM = 67 participants; totals 79 
 Recsters All Day (Apr 26) no enrollment 
 Parents Night Out (Apr 12) no enrollment 



 
Youth Sports:   

Range Rovers  Canceled 
Tae Kwon Do M/TH:  3 participants 
Tae Kwon Do T/W:  7 participants 
Youth Outdoor Soccer: 56 participants 
 

Adult Sports/Programs:  
Co-ed Volleyball League: Resumes in Fall  
Men’s Basketball: Resumes in Fall   
 

Adult Fitness:  
Cardio Pump:  6 participants, plus drop-ins.  
Kickboxing:  1 participant, plus drop-ins. 
Boot Camp/Cross:  Drop-ins only.  
Body Blast:   1 participant, plus drop-ins.   
Body Sculpt:   1 participant, plus drop-ins. 
Yoga Sculpt:  Drop-ins only. 
Pop Pilates:  1 participant, plus drop-ins.  
 

Senior Citizens:  
Senior Dining:  Apr 5   24   

Apr 12   21  
Apr 19   -0- ; City Holiday, no meals    
Apr 26   20 
Total for month:    65 participants  

 
Special Events:    
 Community Gardens: Plot reservations: 32 
 Easter Egg Hunt:  April 13 - Annual community event held at inside this year due to weather. 
    Younger group: 250; Older group: 150 
 Celebration Belle: April 26 - canceled 
 Spring Shed Hunt: April 27 - canceled 
 
ActiveNet Totals:  Gross Income = $147,337.45 
 
See additional attached reports: 
 ActiveNet Monthly Revenue 
 Rec & Pool Revenue Monthly Summary 
 Daily Drop-ins Count 
 Memberships Issued  
 Memberships Scanned 
 Recreation, Pool and Community Center Expenditures 
  



Daily Drop-in Count by Month
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June

Pool 8,776 6,545 1,452 962 626 922 1,045 923 1,247 882
Weights/Exercise 902 853 625 412 490 646 809 718 706 447
Track 0 0 0 8 31 26 30 55 27 15
Open Gym Activities 359 376 368 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Facility 0 0 0 276 524 765 872 534 558 331
Total 10,037 7,774 2,445 1,658 1,671 2,359 2,756 2,230 2,538 1,675

1,045
923

1,247

882
809

718 706

447

30 55 27 15

872

534 558

331

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

Jan Feb Mar April

Daily Drop-In Count 

Pool Weights/Exercise Track Facility



Memberships by Package: Count Issued
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June

Black & Gold 43 49 27 52 27 43 60 41 42 35
Gold 82 83 90 116 110 117 134 115 111 88
Silver 126 45 50 21 26 19 30 36 19 26
Track 72 63 127 126 240 215 305 202 226 109
Basketball 4 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pickleball 20 22 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Volleyball 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Summer 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 6
Facility 0 0 0 259 161 158 149 91 116 80
Total 348 266 309 574 564 552 678 486 515 344

60
41 42 35

134
115 111

88

30 36
19 26

305

202
226

109

0 1 1 6

149

91
116

80

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Jan Feb Mar April

Memberships Issued by Month

Black & Gold Gold Silver Track Summer Facility



Membership Usage by Month: Scanned entries
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July August Sept

Black & Gold 445 500 504 665 622 680 485
Gold 2,119 2,342 2,704 3,016 2,561 2,926 2,511
Silver 833 849 741     809 779 835 761
Track 2,105 3,130 3,350 2,345 2,539 2,412 2,230
Summer 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Facility 0 1,469 1,791 2,026 1,454 1,676 1,429
Total 5,502 8,290 9,090 8,861 7,955 8,530 7,417

665 622 680
485

3,016

2,561

2,926

2,511

809 779 835 761

2,345
2,539 2,412

2,230

0 0 1 1

2,026

1,454
1,676

1,429

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Jan Feb Mar April

Membership Scanned Entries

Black & Gold Gold Silver Track Summer Facility



 

NORTH LIBERTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes  

May 7, 2019 
North Liberty City Council Chambers, 1 Quail Creek Circle 

 
 

Roll Call 
Chair Ronda Detlefsen called the May 7, 2019 Regular Session of the North Liberty 
Planning Commission to order at 6:31 p.m.  Commission members present:  Ronda 
Detlefsen, Jason Heisler, Becky Keogh, Kiley Pentecost and Pat Staber; absent: Jennifer 
Bleil and Adam Gebhart. 
 
Others present: Dean Wheatley, Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Grant Lientz, Kevin Trom, 
Joel Miller and other interested parties.  
 
Heiar introduced the new City Attorney, Grant Lientz. 
 
Bleil arrived at 6:32 p.m. 
 
Agenda Approval 
Staber moved, Heisler seconded to approve the agenda. The vote was all ayes. Agenda 
approved.  
 
Penn Street Group LLC Site Plan  
Staff Presentation 
Wheatley presented the request of Penn Street Group LLC to approve a commercial site 
plan for Lot 10 of Liberty Centre, Part One, located on Community Drive west of Ranshaw 
Way/965. Staff recommends approval of the application with no conditions.  
 
Applicants Presentation 
Ben Mitchell, MMS Consultants, was present on behalf of the applicant and offered to 
answer questions.  
 
Public Comments 
No public comments were offered.  
 
Questions and Comments 
The Commission discussed the application including the need for this service in the 
community, outdoor play areas, and traffic flow and impact.  
 



Recommendation to the City Council 
Pentecost moved, Staber seconded to recommend approval of the site plan application 
with no conditions.  The vote was: ayes – Heisler, Detlefsen, Staber, Pentecost, Keogh, 
Bleil; nays – none.  Motion carried.  
 
Approval of previous Minutes 
Bleil moved, Staber seconded to approve the minutes of the April 2 meeting.  The vote 
was all ayes. Minutes approved.  
 
Old Business 
Wheatley reported that he conveyed the Commission’s concerns regarding parking at 
The Preserve to Council. Council approved as presented.  
  
New Business 
Wheatley reported that next month’s agenda will have a code amendment and a rezoning 
request close to Liberty High School. 
  
Adjournment 
At 6:43 p.m., Staber moved, Keogh seconded to adjourn. The vote was all ayes. Meeting 
adjourned.  
 



NEW PRIORITY PROJECTS 2018-2020

NORTH LIBERTY CITY HALL

3 QUAIL CREEK CIRCLE

NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 52317

319-626-5700

2018 - 2020

City of North Liberty, Iowa



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA
Department Heads

City Administrator Ryan Heiar

Assistant City Administrator Tracey Mulcahey

Building Official Tom Palmer

City Attorney Scott Peterson

Communications Director Nick Bergus

Fire Chief Brian Platz

Human Resouces Director Debra Hilton

Library Director Jennie Garner

Parks, Buildings & Grounds Director Guy Goldsmith

Planning Director Dean Wheatley

Police Chief Diane Venenga

Recreation Director Shelly Simpson

Streets Superintendent Michael Pentecost

Waste Water Superintendent Drew Lammers

Water Superintendent Greg Metternich

Elected Officials

Mayor Terry Donahue

Councilor Jennifer Goings

Councilor Chris Hoffman

Councilor Sarah Madsen

Councilor Annie Pollock

Councilor Jim Sayre



NEW PRIORITY PROJECTS 2018-2020

introduction

organizational effectiveness;
2. Conduct a preliminary session 

with department heads;
3. Conduct a goal-setting session 

with elected officials; and
4. Prepare a final report.

City elected officials held a goal setting 
work session conducted by the IPA 
on Thursday, January 25, 2018.  In 
attendance and participating at this 
meeting were Mayor Terry Donahue 

The City of North Liberty requested staff 
from the Institute of Public Affairs (IPA) 
to assist the City with goal setting.  IPA  
Director Jeff Schott agreed to organize 
and facilitate a process that involved the 
following steps:

1. Prepare a questionnaire 
to identify recent 
accomplishments, issues/
trends/concerns, potential new 
initiatives/programs/policies, 
and suggestions to improve 

Contents

1 PRIORITY 1:  STRATEGIC PLAN, COMMUNITY IDENTITY & VISION PLANNING

2 PRIORITY 2:  FRONT STREET, DUBUQUE STREET & CHERRY STREET MASTER PLAN

3 PRIORITY 3:  HOUSING MARKET INVENTORY/NEEDS ANALYSIS

4 PRIORITY 4:  PARK PLAN UPDATE

5 PRIORITY 5:  STREET & SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS ON NORTH BEND DRIVE 

6 PRIORITY 6:  SIDEWALK INVENTORY & NETWORK ACCESSIBILITY EVALUATION

7 PRIORITY TIMELINE EXHIBIT

9 APPENDICES

and City Council Members Jennifer 
Going, Chris Hoffman, Sarah Madsen, 
Annie Pollock, and Jim Sayre.  Also in 
attendance and participating in this 
session were City Administrator Ryan 
Heiar and Special Projects Coordinator 
Angela McConville.

Prior to the council’s goal setting session, 
a preliminary meeting with department 
heads was held on January 10, 2018.  In 
attendance and participating in this 
session were City Administrator Ryan 

Heiar, Assistant City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Building Official Tom 
Palmer, City Attorney Scott Peterson, 
Communications Director Nick Bergus, 
Fire Chief Brian Platz, Human Resources 
Director Debra Hilton,   Library Director 
Jennie Garner, Parks Director Guy 
Goldsmith, Planning Director Dean 
Wheatley, Police Chief Diane Venenga,  
Recreation Director Shelly Simpson, 
Street Superintendent Michael 
Pentecost, Water Superintendent 
Greg Metternich, and Special Projects 
Coordinator Angela McConville.



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

STRATEGIC PLAN, 
COMMUNITY IDENTITY 

& VISION PLANNING
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 1 BACKGROUND

Since 2008, each year after a City election, the Mayor and City Council 
hold a goal-setting session to discuss the accomplishments of the 
prior two years and list specific priorities, concerns, trends, and goals 
for the following 24 months.  From the outset, this process has been 
facilitated by Institute of Public Affairs (IPA) Director Jeff Schott.  Now, 
the Council would like to explore a more in-depth and comprehensive 
strategic planning and visioning process so the elected bodies have 
a unified direction and identity under which all other decisions would 
follow, thereby establishing consistency.

PROGRAM

Task 1.1:  ENGAGE CONSULTANTS:  May 2019

Ongoing staff & stakeholder input and schedule citizen input.  

Task 1.2:  IMPLEMENT PROCESS:  May 2019 - November 2019

Task 1.3:  REVEAL:  December 2019

ESTIMATED COST:

Consultant:  $80,000 (FY18 Funds)

CURRENT STATUS

April 2019:  Council acknowledges that the City already has several 
major plans in place, all outlining strategies to further particular goals:  
Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Plan, Trails Plan, Park Plan, Water 
Facility Plan, Sewer Facility Plan, and Aquatics Plan.  Therefore, a City 
Visioning and Community Identity Project is under consideration.  
With help from de Novo Marketing and Shive-Hattery Architecture & 
Engineering, City staff and council can work to develop a community 
brand and identity, with public engagement opportunities so residents 
and business owners can offer input.

EXPECTED COMPLETION

December 2019

1



NEW PRIORITY PROJECTS 2018-2020

FRONT STREET, DUBUQUE 
STREET & CHERRY STREET 

MASTER PLAN
p

rio
rity 2

ESTIMATED COST:

Analysis, Public Input, Visioning & Research, Master Plan Deliverable

Graduate work:  $1,500

CURRENT STATUS

2019 January:  Graduate students met with the Planning Director and 
are developing scope.

EXPECTED COMPLETION

May 2019

BACKGROUND

The City of North Liberty owns property in the area of North Dubuque 
Street, Cherry Street, and North Front Street, which incorporates the 
current Police Station, new Police Headquarters (complete by March 
2020)/future City Hall and Fire Station.  This area has been identified 
as a prime location for development of a Civic Campus.  Extending 
west, the Master Plan would incorporate the previously discussed 
“Cherry Street Corridor” area, which includes additional public 
property (trail intersection and the North Liberty Community Center).  

PROGRAM

Task 2.1:  DEVELOP SCOPE:  January 2019

City Staff, with assistance from University of Iowa Graduate students, 
will to define visioning, goals, and master planning process.

Task 2.2:  ENGAGE:  February 2019 - May 2019 

Ongoing staff & stakeholder input and schedule citizen input.  

Task 2.3:  REVEAL:  May 2019

Public presentation of the final master plan.

2

Map for location familiarization only; actual project area to be determined.



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

HOUSING MARKET 
INVENTORY & NEEDS 

ANALYSIS
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 3 BACKGROUND

In conjunction with the Cities of Iowa City, Coralville, Tiffin, and 
University Heights, a consultant was hired to complete a housing 
market analysis of the Iowa City Metropolitan Area in 2007.  With 
assistance from the Metropolitan Planning Organization of Johnson 
County’s (MPOJC) and Housing Trust Fund of Johnson County, an 
update was prepared in 2015.   City Council feels that North Liberty is 
a unique community, which may result in different housing needs than 
other areas of the region.  

PROGRAM*

Task 3.1:  DEVELOP SCOPE:  January 2019

Under the direction and guidance of City Staff, University of Iowa 
Graduate students will help define visioning, goals, and process.

Task 3.2:  ENGAGE:  February 2019 - May 2019  

Assist students by furnishing available data.

Task 3.3:  DELIVERABLE DUE:  May 2019

Public presentation of the needs analysis.

ESTIMATED COST:

Inventory, Analysis, & Research; Needs Analysis

Graduate work:  $1,500

CURRENT STATUS

2018 June:  Study parameters are being defined.

2018 July:  Consulting with Johnson County Housing Trust Fund 
(JCHTF) and East Central Iowa Council of Governments (ECICOG).

2019 February:  Graduate students met with the Planning Director and 
are developing scope.

EXPECTED COMPLETION

May 2019

3



NEW PRIORITY PROJECTS 2018-2020

NORTH LIBERTY PARK 
PLAN UPDATE

p
rio

rity 4

CURRENT STATUS

2018 February:  The City Council wants to revisit the order of the 
phased projects to correspond with the Council’s priorities and 
anticipated budgeting limitations.  The Council wants to explore 
whether this may require a full Park Plan overhaul.

2018 April 5:   Joint meeting of City Council & Park and Recreation 
Commission.  Heiar reported that nearly all current Priority One 
projects have been completed in the plan.  

2019 January: Parks Director Guy Goldsmith presented the Park Plan 
to the Council with updated progress reports on each priority for each 
park.  Estimated costs and timeline was adjusted to reflect current 
status.  

COMPLETED

January 2019

BACKGROUND

The City Council approved a North Liberty Park Plan update in 
February 2016.  This plan outlines major projects, consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, in a phased sequence that can be budgeted on 
an annual basis. 

PROGRAM

Task 4.1:  COMPLETE INITIAL VISIONING:  April 2018

Joint meeting with City Council & Park and Recreation Commission.

Task 4.2:  PARK AND RECREATION COMMISSION CRAFT 
RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL:  May - November 2018

Task 4.3:  CITY COUNCIL CONSIDERATION OF RECOMMENDATION:  
December 2018

Task 4.4:  DOCUMENT NEW GOALS:  January 2019

Update Park Plan & Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) to reflect 
revisions, implementation & tracking schedule, and division of 
responsibility.

ESTIMATED COST:  

In-house

4



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

STREET & SIDEWALK 
IMPROVEMENTS ON 
NORTH BEND DRIVE

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 5 BACKGROUND

In 2016, the Iowa City Community School District (ICCSD) purchased 
21.5 acres of land adjacent to where North Bend Drive currently 
terminates, across from Southslope Cooperative, to construct a future 
elementary school anticipated to serve over 600 students.  In October 
2017, the ICCSD Board of Directors approved a schematic design for 
Christine Grant Elementary School, which will be completed in time to 
occupy students for the 2019-2020 school year.  In February 2018, the 
City Council approved the site plan.

ICCSD agreed to finance the cost to extend the existing North 
Bend Drive terminus to North Front Street, thereby expediting 
the completion of this project favorable to the school district’s 
construction project management timeline.  In December 2017, MMS 
Construction was contracted by ICCSD to prepare the civil engineering 
construction documents for North Bend Drive improvements.

PROGRAM

Task 5.1:   REQUEST MPOJC STUDY OF AREA:  June 2018

Task 5.2:  CITY COUNCIL & STAFF CONSIDERATION OF 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  August 2018

Task 5.3:  DEVELOP COST ESTIMATE TO COMPLETE IMPROVEMENTS: 
September 2018

Task 5.4:  EVALUATE FUNDING OPTIONS:  November 2018

Task 5.5:  COMPLETE PROJECT(S):  April - July 2019

ESTIMATED COST:

In-house

CURRENT STATUS

2018 February:  Once the school is constructed, increased foot, 
bicycle, and vehicular traffic will impact the surrounding trails, 
sidewalks, and streets.  Improvements to transportation infrastructure 
is a priority to the City Council so the City can craft the best possible 
circulation patterns (including mitigation of the vehicle queue and 
planning for overflow parking).  Metropolitan Planning Organization 
of Johnson County (MPOJC) staff completed the North Bend Drive 
Elementary School Transportation Impact Study of internal and 
external circulation.  Speed limit changes are anticipated for North 
Front Street.  

2018 June:  Requested MPOJC study of the North Bend Drive & 
Dubuque Street intersection.

2019 March:  Bids received.

2019 April:  Project has begun.

EXPECTED COMPLETION

July 2019

5



NEW PRIORITY PROJECTS 2018-2020

SIDEWALK INVENTORY & 
NETWORK ACCESSIBILITY 

EVALUATION
p

rio
rity 6

CURRENT STATUS

2018 July:  MPOJC staff sidewalk survey process begins.

2018 November:  GIS data deliverable made available to City 
Planning, Streets, and Building Departments of an inventory on the 
original part of town.  Building Department will follow up with private 
property owners.  Streets Department will utilize to plan for ramp 
improvements.

2019 March:  Letters have been sent to property owners outlining 
their responsibility for repairs.  The City requests these projects be 
completed within six months of notice. 

COMPLETED

November 2020

BACKGROUND

Existing sidewalk facilities were documented by the Metropolitan 
Planning Organization of Johnson County (MPOJC) in 2014, with 
detailed location information on missing curb ramps, curb ramp 
condition, and sidewalk widths.  Sidewalk connectivity is a priority of 
the Council and members would like staff to re-evaluate the existing 
pedestrian facilities.

PROGRAM

Task 6.1:  SURVEY SIDEWALKS IN CITY SEGMENT #1 (ORIGINAL 
TOWN):  July - October 2018

Task 6.2:  DELIVERABLE GIS MAP LAYER:  November 2018

Task 6.3:  REPAIRS:  March 2019 - August 2019

Task 6.4:  SURVEY SIDEWALKS IN CITY SEGMENT #2 (NEWER 
AREAS) & RECEIVE DELIVERABLE GIS MAP LAYER:  Fall 2019

Task 6.5:  REPAIRS:  March 2020 - August 2020

Task 6.6:  EVALUATION OF REMAINING CITY SEGMENTS: Ongoing 
until complete

ESTIMATED COST:  

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Johnson County (MPOJC) and 
minimal in-house staff time.

Funds for resulting necessary improvements included in FY20 budget.

6



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

tim
e

lin
e

7



NEW PRIORITY PROJECTS 2018-2020 8



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

a
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
9

APPENDIX A: New Initiatives or Programs Considered

APPENDIX B: City Projects Queued, Underway, or Completed



NEW PRIORITY PROJECTS 2018-2020
New Initiatives or Programs Considered 
(parentheses indicate number of votes received)

Develop over-arching strategic plan, including community identity and vision planning. (4)

Develop a master plan for the Front Street, Dubuque Street, and Cherry Street intersection. (4)

Conduct housing market inventory/needs analysis.  (4)

Update Park Plan, Including recreation. (4)

Street and sidewalk improvements on North Bend Drive from Centro Inc to Dubuque Street intersection (related to new Grant Elementary School). (3)

Inventory sidewalks and accessibility of network to ensure people can physically get around town. (3)

Create a Recycling and Reuse Center in North Liberty (e.g., public-private partnership with Habitat Restore, Johnson County Refuse and Republic 
Recycling). (2)

Financial support for Crisis Intervention Team center. (2)

Provide funding for a robust program to repair minor street and sidewalk failures before they become larger issues. (2)

Develop a holistic transportation plan, (1)

Work with the business community and social services organizations to hold initial and annual community workshops inviting citizens to identify gaps in 
needed professional, retail, and community services. (1)

Overhaul the commercial sign design standard. (1)

Establish an Employee Assistance Program. (1)

Create a committee to explore an outdoor public art program to add landmarks, place-making, and beauty. (0)

Penn Street improvements from Stewart to Front Street. (0)

Develop sub-area development plan for the northwest area to increase attention to development potential. (0)

Establish insurance program for private water and sewer line repair. (0)

Establish a local Animal Control Center. (0)

Create facility space for social services entities to operate in North Liberty. (0)

Install more sophisticated traffic signal operations to more efficiently move traffic. (0)

Traffic camera speed enforcement in key locations, such as near schools. (0)

Hire more zoning and nuisance enforcement personnel. (0)

Hire economic development director to focus on strategic planning, recruitment and retention, and allowing us to differentiate ourselves from other cities. 
(0)

Develop and implement a city-wide user-friendly geographic information system (GIS) - with global positioning system (GPS) capabilities - for infrastructure, 
utilities, and planning use. (0)

Increase fees and membership prices at Recreation Center to better cover operational costs. (0)

Review or establish performance standards for department heads based upon the City’s current direction and expectations. (0)

Identify land in undeveloped northwest area of North Liberty for a second Fire Station. (0)

a
p

p
e

n
d

ix a
10



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 b

11
City Projects Queued, Underway, or Completed 

Implement monthly email newsletter.

Develop new Library mission statement.

Install concrete border around playground with ADA ramp and trail at Creekside Park.

Implement business-focused podcast.

Research salaries and update the City's compensation program.

Pilot stormdrain public art project.

Restructure Fire Department leadership.

Restructure the Fire Department training program.

Construct new Water Treatment Plant.

Design and launch new City of North Liberty website.

Add new furniture to the Library’s teen lounge.

Install new playground and rock climbing structures at Centennial Park.

Purchase Dog Park property and zone accordingly.

Reconstruct Front Street from Cherry Street to Zeller Street.

Remodel men's locker room at Community Center.

Replace 33 security cameras at the Community Center.

Update Library baby play area.

Create Fire Department Strategic Plan.

Construct Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion.

Upgrade whole City of North Liberty staff phone system.

Implement quick public feedback tool

Implement new contractor portal access to Building permitting system.  

Implement new licensing program to manage contractor and business licenses.

Conduct Youth Impact Initiative outreach program (CPR, babysitting, safety, etc).

Remodel Fire Station (bunk rooms, locker room, and training officers office).

Begin Sewer Main Preservation Pilot Project at West Lake and Progress Park lift stations.

Install LED trail lighting. 

Rehabilitate aging and deteriorating manholes.

Line the west trunk sewer with a protective coating.

Incorporate new part-time Fire Department staff, currently hiring.

January 2018 - December 2020

Completed  March 2018

Completed Spring 2018

Completed Spring 2018

Completed May 2018

Completed May 2018

Completed Summer 2018

Completed Summer 2018

Completed Summer 2018

Completed June 2018

Completed June 2018

Completed Fall 2018

Completed Fall 2018

Completed Fall 2018

Completed Fall 2018

Completed Fall 2018

Completed Fall 2018

Completed Fall 2018

Completed  Fall 2018

Completed September 2018

Completed October 2018

Complete Completed December 2018

Completed 2018

Completed 2018

Completed February 2019

Completed March 2019

Completed Determine next steps & timeline

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 2,867 feet completed so far

Ongoing Begin April 2019



NEW PRIORITY PROJECTS 2018-2020

a
p

p
e

n
d

ix b
City Projects Queued, Underway, or Completed 

Install concrete base and upgrade storage building at Koser Park.

Install concrete border around playground with ADA ramp and trail at Deerfield Park.

Reconstruct Highway 965/Ranshaw Way from Penn Street to Zeller Street with trails.

Reconstruct Kansas Avenue with RISE grant from Forevergreen to St. Andrews.

Remodel women's locker room at Community Center.

Update Personnel Policies Manual.

Upgrade interior park trails at Penn Meadows.

Upgrade spectator seating and install shade structure at Koser Park.

Upgrade spectator seating and install shade/foul ball protection at Penn Meadows.

Prepare Automatic Aid Agreements with surrounding communities (IC, CV, Solon & Swisher).

Install safety wall in Aquatic Center outdoor pool.

Upgrade to new play structures in the Aquatic Center outdoor pool.

Rebuild city council chambers equipment

Implement Placemates program

Centennial Amphitheater design

Add Frontage Quail Ridge Park to Jones Blvd 4’ sidewalk to 8’ trail.

Add Sadler Drive 4’ sidewalk to 8’ connecting trail at Creekside Park.

Add trail to north side of West Cherry Street from Ranshaw Way to existing trail.

Add new pedestrian crosswalk connection at intersection of Alexander Way & Penn Street.

Install roundabout at Front Street and Penn Street.

Design and construct a new Police Headquarters.

Adopt and incorporate 2018 International Building Codes.

Conduct full inventory of Waste Water Treatment Plant.

Improve storm water drainage at West Penn Street and Liberty Way to prevent flooding.

Install roundabout at Southslope and Christine Grant Elementary School (North Bend Drive).

Update Department of Transportation and non-DOT substance abuse policies.

Improve East Penn Street.

Reconstruct North Main Street from Cherry Street to Dubuque Street.

Reconstruct West Forevergreen Road from Covered Bridge Road to Kansas Avenue.

Reconstruct West Forevergreen Road from Jones Boulevard to Covered Bridge Road.

January 2018 - December 2020

Underway Complete spring 2019

Underway Complete spring 2019

Underway Complete spring 2019

Underway Complete spring 2019

Underway Complete spring 2019

Underway Complete spring 2019

Underway Complete spring 2019

Underway Complete spring 2019

Underway Complete spring 2019

Underway Complete April 2019

Underway Complete May 2019

Underway Complete May 2019

Underway Complete May 2019

Underway Complete June 2019

Underway Complete Summer 2019

Underway Complete August 2019

Underway Complete August 2019

Underway Complete August 2019

Underway Complete August 2019 

Underway Complete fall 2019

Underway Complete March 2020

In Queue July 2019

In Queue Begin 2019 - complete 2019

In Queue Begin 2019 - complete 2019

In Queue Begin 2019 - complete 2019

In Queue Begin spring 2019 - complete summer 2019

In Queue  Begin March 2019 - complete fall 2019

In Queue  Begin March 2019 - complete fall 2019

In Queue  Begin March 2019 - complete fall 2019

In Queue Begin spring 2019 - complete fall 2019

12



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 b

13
City Projects Queued, Underway, or Completed 

Add trail to east side of Kansas Avenue from Penn Street to existing trail.

Add trail to south side of West Zeller Street from North Jones Blvd to Ranshaw Way.

Clean out Beaver Kreek and install rip rap rock. 

Complete Centennial Park Road. 

Construct a small shelter at Centennial Park.

Construct a tot lot at Centennial Park.

Improve the Dog Park property by grading and seeding and add fencing and parking.

Install concrete border around playground with ADA ramp and trail at Community Center.

Install monument signs at parks:  Creekside, Goose Lake, Beaver Kreek, and Parkview.

Replace Community Center's aging systems:  sprinkler, paging, roof gas line & snow guards.

Resurface the parking lot of the Community Center.

Stabilize Muddy Creek.

Update job descriptions for all City employees.

Replace 40 older City fire hydrants (20 in 2019 and 20 in 2020).

Construct new City services to the SW Growth Area (water and sewer) adding 530 acres.

Reconstruct St. Andrews Drive from South Jones Boulevard to Kansas Avenue.

Add concrete border around Fox Run Park playground with ADA ramp.

Add trail to south side of East Penn Street, north of Penn Meadows Park to connect trail.

Connect 8” water main from 230th Street to Highway 965/Ranshaw Way.

Construct pavillion, performance venue, and splash pad at Centennial Park.

Install flag pole with solar lighting at Freedom Park.

Perform repair work on the interior of Water Tower #3.

Recondition the two bridges at Beaver Kreek Park.

Replace Dectron dehumidification system at the Aquatic Center.  

Replace Fox Run Park playground equipment.

Replace membrane train cassettes at the Waste Water Treatment Plant.

Improve Hwy 965/Ranshaw Way with a full build out between Zeller St and Golfview Dr.

Paint the interior of the Community Center. 

Construct buildings and enclose electrical boxes at West Lake & Progress Park lift stations.

Add new utility GIS mapping for sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water networks.

January 2018 - December 2020

In Queue  Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020 

In Queue  Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020 

In Queue  Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020

In Queue  Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020

In Queue Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020

In Queue Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020 

In Queue  Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020

In Queue Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020 

In Queue Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020

In Queue Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020

In Queue Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020 

In Queue Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020

In Queue  Begin fall 2019 - complete spring 2020 

In Queue  Begin spring 2019 - complete fall 2020

In Queue  Begin fall 2019 - complete fall 2020

In Queue  Begin spring 2020 - complete fall 2020

In Queue  Begin fall 2020 - complete spring 2021

In Queue  Begin fall 2020 - complete spring 2021

In Queue  Begin fall 2020 - complete spring 2021

In Queue  Begin fall 2020 - complete spring 2021

In Queue  Begin fall 2020 - complete spring 2021

In Queue  Begin fall 2020 - complete spring 2021

In Queue  Begin fall 2020 - complete spring 2021

In Queue  Begin fall 2020 - complete spring 2021

In Queue  Begin fall 2020 - complete spring 2021

In Queue Begin fall 2020 - complete spring 2021

In Queue  Begin spring 2021 - complete fall 2021

In Queue Timeline undetermined

In Queue Timeline undetermined

In Queue  Timeline undetermined



14
City Projects Queued, Underway, or Completed 

New resident outreach

Branding, Streetscape and Visioning

Conduct IT risk assessment

January 2018 - December 2020

In Queue Begin April 2019 - complete August 2019

In Queue Begin May 2019 - complete 2020

In Queue Begin fall 2019 - complete winter 2019 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix b



Transit Committee Meeting Minutes 

April 25th, 2019 

Meeting convened at North Liberty City Council Chambers at 6:30 p.m. 

Members present:  Gerry Kuhn, Brenda Conry, Jim Jetter, Gary Boseneiler, Terry Donahue, Dena Hess, 
Brian Wasson 

The members were briefed on the status regarding the development of the contract between Yellow 
Cab and the City.  One of the issues is the company’s ability to follow ADA standards.  The primary focus 
is the matter of accessibility. There is a difference in the interpretation of how applied.  Most rules are 
based on contracts issued as part of a public transit authority or city owned enterprise.  The other is if 
Federal Transit Funds are being used to promote on-demand services.  The city is not.  The last is finding 
like service for extreme purposes such as motorized wheelchairs and scooters.  Clarification is needed. 

A related issue is that a performance measure needs to be put in the contract regarding insuring drivers 
are helping with mobility impaired persons in the storing of wheelchairs, walkers as they would with 
helping persons put luggage in and out of a vehicle. 

Eligibility for Services: 

1) Persons can quality for cab services if they are not in possession of automobile/truck or 
cannot drive.  

2) The next eligible groups are low-income verifiable persons who are 18 years of age or older. 
3) For persons who may need transport service on a temporary basis (such as medical or other 

type of recuperation/rehabilitation period), may be eligible for daily services on a week to 
week basis. 

Rider Rules and Responsibilities: 

1) The card holder will be responsible for paying the cab service $1.00 for each trip. 
2) It is necessary for trips to be well planned as needed. 
3) Consideration must be made that at least one-half hour or more is needed for cab response       

before scheduled appointments, planned pickup or planned arrival times. 
4) Persons should try to call ahead in order to place a food order (i.e. HyVee, Walmart), then go 

and pickup immediately, return to the cab for the ride back to the person’s residence thus 
eliminating a long wait time.  The same is true for persons who need to pick-up prescriptions 
at pharmacies. A qualified card holder who has a personal attendant can accompany such 
person.  

5) A person with a power chair or needs use of a motorized scooter still needs to use other 
services such as SEATS. 

6) Persons who are Medicaid eligible are encouraged to use other transportation services (i.e. 
Joy Rides) who honor the Medicaid transportation payments.   

7) Rides will not be honored for church attendence since many churches can provide needed 
transportation.  

8) If a rider and/or accompanying person displays aggression in terms of a physical nature or use 
of unacceptable/offensive language, the driver is to report such to the cab company 



supervisor and in turn the cab’s company to the city to determine if that rider’s privileges 
should be suspended or revoked.  The cab driver will return the person to the original pickup 
address. 

 

The next item was sign up procedures for individuals.  The group still wants to have a picture of the 
individual on each card.  Brian Wayson will see what may be done as taking pix offsite and put on the 
cards.  Off-site taking of applications were discussed for the three elderly centers in North Liberty. 

Public notice was the next item.  Donahue reported that Nick Bergus is will and able to help in the 
advertising and best ways to convey the message about service to our population. 

Other items noted were: 

1) Can the City integrate with I 380 Corridor Rides? 
2) Why is SEATS fulltime for Coralville and Iowa City and not in North Liberty where limited service 

and cost are much different? 
3) Information on Iowa City/Coralville transit study and how come we did not participate? 
4) What is cab policy regarding connections to bus line services at predetermined points at 

Coralville Mall? 

The last matter was committee persons concerns.  Dena Hess stated that we are on the best route of 
providing services here.  She has had an extreme difficulty in getting to places such as Walgreens and 
other nearby places because of road construction.  She stated she feels more isolated now more than 
ever.    

Meeting Adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 




